Public Document Pack

South Hams Council T~

South Hams

District Council

Title: Agenda

Date: Thursday, 27th September, 2018
Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber - Follaton House

Full Members:

Chairman Clir Holway
Vice Chairman Cllr Rowe

Members: Clir Baldry Cllr Hodgson
Cllr Bastone Cllr Hopwood
Clir Birch Cllr Huntley
Clir Blackler Clir May
Cllr Bramble Clir Pearce
Cllr Brazil Cllr Pennington
Clir Brown Clir Pringle
Clir Cane Clir Saltern
Cllr Cuthbert Cllr Smerdon
Clir Foss Clir Steer
Clir Gilbert Cllr Tucker
Cllr Green Cllr Vint
Cllr Hawkins Cllr Wingate
Cllr Hicks Cllr Wright
Cllr Hitchins

Interests -

Declaration and

Restriction on
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Commiittee
administrator:

Member.Services@swdevon.gov.uk




Page No

1. Minutes 1-26

to approve as a correct record and authorise the Chairman to
sign the minutes of the meetings of the Annual Council held on
17 May 2018 and the Special Council held on 26 July 2018;

2. Urgent Business

the Chairman to announce if any item not on the agenda should
be considered on the basis that he considers it as a matter of
urgency (any such item to be dealt with under '‘Business Brought
forward by the Chairman’);

3. Exempt Information

to consider whether the consideration of any item of business
would be likely to disclose exempt information and if so the
category of such exempt information;

4. Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal; or disclosable
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this

meeting;
5. Chairman's Engagements
6. Business Brought Forward by the Chairman

to consider business (if any) brought forward by the Chairman;

7. Commercial Property Strategy 27 - 48

8. Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24 49 - 108
9. Public Toilet Pay on Entry Contract Award 109 -120
10. South Devon AONB Management Plan Review 2019-24 121 - 156

Consultation Draft

11. Questions

to consider the following question received in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule 8:



(a)

From Clir Baldry to Clir Bastone, lead Executive Member
for Customer First

‘According to a report in the local press, new Housing Benefit
claimants in the South Hams had to wait more than 3 weeks
(23 days) for their claims to be processes. The figures are for
April 2017 to March 2018. This is worse than the British
average and exceeds the legal requirement for claims to be
processed within 2 weeks.

Would the Executive Member comment on the figures please?

Housing Benefit / Universal Credit is not a luxury that people
can wait for.”

(NOTE. ClIr Birch has provided the following preamble to
questions (b), (c¢), (d) and (e)):

In the introduction to the 2017/18 Annual Report, the following is
stated: "One of the key priorities over the coming year will be to
research the possible building of Council houses to support the
need of affordable houses for the residents of the South Hams.”

(b) From CllIr Birch to Clir Tucker, Leader of Council

(c)

(d)

'‘What research has been carried out in respect of the building
of affordable social rented housing by the Council and, if such
research has been carried out, when will its findings be
shared with Members? Who has carried out the research on
behalf of the Council?

From Clir Birch to Clir Bastone, lead Executive Member
for Customer First

‘What fresh initiatives are planned by the Council to reduce
the current Housing Waiting List which stands at 1,635?

From Clir Birch to Clir Bastone, lead Executive Member
for Customer First

'‘What is the Council’s target for the provision of affordable
social rented housing in the South Hams for the years
2018/19 and 2019/207?’

Page No



12,

13.

(a)

Page No

(e) From Clir Birch to Clir Bastone, lead Executive Member
for Customer First

‘In respect of the numbers provided in response to the
previous question, how many is it anticipated will be provided
by:

- The Community Housing Strategy;
- Registered Providers; and
- Developers pursuant to Section 106 Agreements?’

(f) From Clir Hodgson to Clir Bastone, lead Executive
Member for Customer First

‘Over the past five years, how much money has been
channelled through SHDC to Housing Associations to assist
them in the delivery of affordable housing and how many
affordable homes has this delivered?’

(g) From Clir Hodgson to Clir Tucker, Leader of Council

‘What legal right does the Council have to prevent local
Members from attending meetings in their ward that the
Council has organised? With regard to the recent meeting
between Totnes Town Councillors and SHDC Executive
Members and SHDC officers, what was the basis of refusing
the attendance of the local Ward Members?

(h) From Clir Birch to Clir Bastone, lead Executive Member
for Customer First

‘How many affordable social rented houses have been
facilitated by the Council in the last five years?’

Notice of Motion

to consider the following motions received (if any) in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule 10.1

Reports of Bodies

to receive and as may be necessary approve the minutes and
recommendations of the under-mentioned Bodies

* Indicates minutes containing recommendations to Council.

Salcombe Harbour Board - 16 July 2018 157 - 164



(b)

()

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Audit Committee - 26 July 2018

Development Management Committee - 1 August 2018
Overview & Scrutiny Panel* - 2 August 2018

Licensing Committee - 23 August 2018

Overview and Scrutiny Panel - 6 September 2018
Audit Committee - 6 September 2018

Executive* - 13 September 2018

Page No

165 - 168

169 - 174

175 - 184

185 - 190

191 - 202

203 - 208

209 - 218



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT
COUNCIL HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 17 MAY 2018

MEMBERS

* Clir P K Cuthbert — Chairman

* Clir M J Hicks — Vice-Chairman

*Clir K J Baldry * Clir T R Holway
*Clir H D Bastone * Clir E D Huntley

* Clir J P Birch o Clir D W May

* ClIr J | G Blackler * ClIr J A Pearce

* ClIr | Bramble * Clir J T Pennington
* Clir J Brazil * ClIr K Pringle

*Clir D Brown * Clir R Rowe

oClir B F Cane * Clir M F Saltern
*Clir R J Foss * Clir P C Smerdon

* Clir R D Gilbert * Clir R C Steer
*Clir J P Green * Clir R J Tucker

* Clir J D Hawkins * Clir R J Vint

* Clir P W Hitchins * Clir KR H Wingate
* Clir N A Hopwood * Clir S A E Wright

* Clir J M Hodgson

* Denotes attendance
@ Denotes apology for absence

Officers in attendance and participating:

For all items: Head of Paid Service, Acting Monitoring Officer; Community Of Practice

01/18

02/18

Lead (Place and Strategy); and Senior Specialist — Democratic Services

ELECTION OF THE CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL
RESOLVED
That Clir T R Holway be elected Chairman of the Council for
the period expiring on the date of the Annual Meeting of the

Council in 2019.

Clir Holway subsequently declared and signed his acceptance of office.

ADDRESS BY THE NEW CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

In addressing the Council, Clir Holway expressed his honour at being
elected as Chairman of the Council and wished to thank his fellow
Members for their vote of confidence. In particular, he proceeded to pay
tribute to the work undertaken during her year of office by Clir Cuthbert,
who he felt would be an incredibly hard act to follow.

Page 1



03/18

04/18

05/18

Cncl 17.5.18

In his address, ClIr Holway also made specific reference to:-

looking forward to his year of office and working closely with his Vice-
Chairman;

his pride to represent the Council at civic events. In addition, it was
his intention to attend as many town and parish council meetings as
was practically possible;

his wish to thank his wife for her support;

his hope that the Council could become a ‘Dementia Friendly
Council’ during this year;

his chosen charity for the year being the Erme Valley Riding for the
Disabled Group.

VOTE OF THANKS TO RETIRING CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED

That the thanks of the Council be extended to Clir Cuthbert for
the manner in which she performed her duties during his term
of office as Chairman of the Council.

RESPONSE OF THE RETIRING CHAIRMAN

Clir Cuthbert addressed the Council and highlighted how enjoyable she
had found her year of office. In so doing, she made particular reference

to:-

her gratitude for the support she received from the wider membership
during her year of office;

it being an honour and a privilege to have represented the Council at
SO many events;

how much she and her husband had enjoyed the last year;

how professionally organised each of the events that she had
attended had been. On reflection and, in citing some examples, she
had enjoyed attending the more informal events than the very
ceremonial engagements;

her wish to thank officers for their support. In addition, Clir Cuthbert
also wished to thank those individuals and organisations who had
sponsored and donated to her Charity Golf Day. In total, Members
were informed that Clir Cuthbert had raised £3,752.02 for her chosen
charity: Epilepsy Action; and

her hope that Clir Holway and his wife would have an equally
memorable year.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

RESOLVED

That Clir R Rowe be appointed Vice Chairman of the Council
for the period expiring on the date of the Annual Meeting of

the Council in 201:939?2



06/18

07/18

08/18

09/18

Cncl 17.5.18

Clir Rowe subsequently declared and signed her acceptance of office.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of Council held on 22 February 2018 and the
special meeting held on 29 March 2018 were both confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

REPRESENTATION ON POLITICAL GROUPS

The Chairman advised Members that a review of the representation of the
political groups on the Council's Bodies had been carried out in
consultation with the Leaders of the two Political Groups.

It was then:

RESOLVED

1. That it be noted that the Political Composition of the
Council is as follows:-

= A Conservative Group of 24 Members; and
= An Opposition Group of 7 Members.

2. That the overall political balance of Council Bodies, as
reflected in the paper tabled to the meeting, be approved.
APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS OF THE BODIES OF THE COUNCIL

The Council subsequently received nominations from the Group Leaders
for the membership of the Bodies of the Council.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That, for the 2018/19 Municipal Year, Members be appointed
to the Bodies of the Council as set out in Appendix A to these
minutes.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMEN AND VICE CHAIRMEN OF THE BODIES
OF THE COUNCIL

The Council received nominations from its Group Leaders for the
positions of Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of the Bodies of the Council.

Two nominations (Clirs J Birch and M F Saltern) had been received for
the position of Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

Page 3



10/18

Cncl 17.5.18

When put to the vote, it was declared CARRIED that Clir M F Saltern be
appointed to the role of Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairman.

Two nominations (Clirs J P Green and P C Smerdon) had also been
received for the position of Vice-Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel.

When put to the vote, it was declared CARRIED that Clir P C Smerdon be
appointed to the role of Overview and Scrutiny Panel Vice-Chairman.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of the Bodies of
the Council for the 2018 / 2019 Municipal Year be as
indicated below:-

Body Chairman Vice Chairman
Audit Committee Clir J A Pearce Clir J T Pennington
Development Clir R C Steer Clir R J Foss
Management Committee

Licensing Clir D W May Clir T R Holway
Committee

Overview and Scrutiny Clir M F Saltern Clir P C Smerdon
Panel

Salcombe Harbour CliIr J Brazil Co-opted Member
Board

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO OUTSIDE BODIES

A paper was considered that set out details of those Outside Bodies to
which the Council appointed representatives and included a list of
nominations for representation on these Outside Bodies.

Two nominations (Clirs E D Huntley and J A Pearce) had been received
for the position on the Avon Estuary Forum.

When put to the vote, it was declared CARRIED that Clir J A Pearce be
appointed to the position on the Avon Estuary Forum.

Three nominations (Clirs J Birch, J T Pennington and P C Smerdon) had
been received for the two positions on the Devon County/South Hams
Highways and Traffic Orders Committee.

In line with the Council Constitution, it was necessary for these two
vacancies to be filled by virtue of a ballot. Upon completion of the ballot,
it was subsequently declared CARRIED that Clirs J T Pennington and P

Pagg 4



11/18

Cncl 17.5.18

C Smerdon be appointed to serve on the South Devon AONB
Partnership Committee.

In the ensuing debate, reference was made to the importance of
appointed Members providing feedback on each meeting they had
attended. To reinforce this point, an addition was PROPOSED and
SECONDED to part 3 of the recommendation as follows:-

‘That Members appointed to Outside Bodies provide a written report
following each meeting; regular feedback and consultation on the
issues affecting the Bodies concerned.’

When put to the vote, this addition was declared CARRIED.
It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the Council be represented on the list of Outside
Bodies as presented to the meeting;

2. That the Members named in Appendix B to these minutes
be appointed as the Council’s representatives to those
Bodies for the 2017/18 Municipal Year, and that, for the
purposes of Members’ Allowances, attendance at
meetings of these bodies be regarded as an approved
duty; and

3. That Members appointed to Outside Bodies provide a
written report following each meeting; regular feedback
and consultation on the issues affecting the Bodies
concerned.

APPOINTMENT OF OTHER GROUPS

Members proceeded to consider the appointment for the 2018/2019
Municipal Year of the:-

(@)  Council Tax Setting Panel,

(b) Devon Building Control Partnership;

(c) Discretionary (Majors) Business Rate Relief Decision Panel;
(d) Investments Member Working Group;

(e)  Joint SH/WD/Plymouth Local Plan Steering Group;

() Political Structures Working Group;

(9) Public Spaces Working Group;

(h) Rate Relief Panel;

(i) Slapton Line Steering Group; and

)] Waste and Recycling Working Group.

Council then considered the appointments to the above bodies.

Page 5



12/18

13/18

14/18

15/18

Cncl 17.5.18

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the appointment of the Other Groups of the Council
for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year be approved, as shown
in Appendix C to these minutes.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to
be considered during the course of the meeting and these were recorded
as follows:-

Clir P W Hitchins declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in ltem 18:
‘Joint Local Plan Main Modifications Consultation’ (Minute 15/18 below
refers) and left the meeting during the debate and vote on this item.

Clir R F D Gilbert declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in ltem 24(e):
‘Reports of Bodies and specifically Minute E.85/17: ‘Procurement of Pay
on Entry Equipment for Public Toilets/Disposal of Toilets’ (Minute 21/18(a)
below refers) in light of the Ferry Steps at East Portlemouth becoming the
subject of debate. At the appropriate time, he left the meeting during the
debate on this matter.

CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

In accordance with this agenda item, the Chairman advised that he did not
have any further announcements to make.

BUSINESS BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE CHAIRMAN

The Chairman advised that he had no items of urgent business for
consideration at this meeting.

JOINT LOCAL PLAN MAIN MODIFICATIONS CONSULTATION

The Council considered a report that requested that delegated authority
be granted to the Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the Leader
of the Council and the Joint Local Plan (JLP) Joint Steering Group (JSG)
Members, to authorise the final version of the JLP for consultation.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) an amendment was PROPOSED and SECONDED to read as
follows:

Pagg 6



Cncl 17.5.18

‘That a Special Full Council meeting be convened following receipt of
the Inspectors’ Interim Report to consider its content and
recommendations and to determine the necessary steps to be taken
prior to the final version of the JLP going out for public consultation.
Prior to such a Special Full Council meeting, officers are to meet with
Members in order to identify those proposed modifications that are
non-contentious and those that require further consideration and
debate.”

In introducing his amendment, the proposer made the following
points:-

- It was his view that the overwhelming majority of Members would
be bypassed in the event of the agenda report recommendation
being approved;

- The impression had been given at a recent Member Briefing that a
Special Council meeting would be convened for this specific
purpose. As a consequence, the proposer had relayed this
information to his local town council and could see no explanation
in the published report for this recommended change of approach,;

- The proposed amendment would ensure that the process was
democratic. Moreover, whilst a similar way forward was being
proposed for West Devon Borough Council, there was no
reference to such an agenda report on the published Plymouth
City Council Annual Council summons.

During the consequent debate, some Members did not support the
amendment and reference was made to:

o the views of the Member representatives on the Joint Steering
Group. The representatives outlined and clarified the process and
stressed that they would not have supported the report
recommendation if they did not consider the risk to be minimal;

o the involvement of local Ward Member(s). Whilst considered to
be unlikely, it was noted that any significant changes deemed
necessary to the JLP (that had not already been considered by all
Members) would lead to those significantly affected Ward
Members being consulted with prior to a revised version being
signed-off;

o an additional Special Council being effectively a non-event that
could slow up the process;

o this meeting in fact presenting an opportunity to discuss the main
modifications.

Whilst the points about the risk being minimal and the process being
slowed up were disputed, when put to the vote, the amendment was
declared LOST;

(b) the importance of making representations to lead officers and
Members of the JSG. In the event of the recommendation being
approved, Members were urged to put any comments and/or
concerns that they had in writing to the lead officers and JSG
Members. Nonetheless, Members did also make a number of
comments during thelgebate %at included:-

age



16/18

Cncl 17.5.18

the suggested deletion of the point relating to the improved road
and junction connections to the south of the A38’. A Member
asked for his concerns over the proposed deletion of this point to
be formally recorded. The local Ward Member emphasised his
view that retention of this point was the only practicable way to
improve air quality levels in the Western Road, lvybridge Air
Quality Management Area;

a wish for Policy TTV (Thriving Towns and Villages) 29.7 to be
deleted. In requesting her wish for this Policy to be deleted, the
local Ward Member advised that this would prevent the
Neighbourhood Plan for Dartington from progressing any further;
with regard to the suggested additions related to the Dartington
Hall Estate, the local Ward Member was of the view that the
wording contained in the proposed comments needed revisiting;
and

disappointment was expressed over the suggested revisions to
Policy DEV8 (‘Meeting Local Housing Need in the Thriving Towns
and Villages Policy Area’) and the request was made for the
original wording to be reinstated;

(c) settlement boundaries. In light of the suggested revisions, a Member
urged all of his colleagues who represented villages to study their
settlement boundaries very closely;

(d) the policy relating to Rural Exception Sites. It was confirmed that the
policy relating to Rural Exception Sites had already existed prior to
any of the JLP project work commencing.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Paid
Service, in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the
Council Members who served on the Joint Local Plan Joint
Steering Group, to authorise the final version of the Joint
Local Plan for consultation.

UGBOROUGH NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

The Council considered a report that sought approval of the adoption of
the Ugborough Neighbourhood Development Plan.

In discussion, a number of Members congratulated the representatives
of the Neighbourhood Planning Group for achieving such a successful
outcome, with 91.53% of voters voting in favour of the Plan.

It was then:

Pagg 8



17/18

18/18

19/18

20/18

Cncl 17.5.18
RESOLVED

That approval be given to the making (adoption) of the
Ugborough Neighbourhood Development Plan.
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

Consideration was given to a report that sought approval of the
proposed amendments to Parts 1, 2, 3 and 5 of the Council Constitution.

In discussion, the Council thanked the role played by the Chairman of
the Overview and Scrutiny Panel and the Audit Committee Members for
their efforts and contributions in reaching this point.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the amendments to Parts 1, 2, 3 and 5 of the South
Hams District Council Constitution (as summarised in
paragraph 2.11 of the presented agenda report) be approved
and formally adopted.

APPOINTMENT OF SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD CO-OPTED
MEMBERS
Consideration was given to a report that recommended approval of the
appointment of two Co-opted Members to the Salcombe Harbour Board,
following the recommendations of the Interview Panel.
It was then:
RESOLVED
That, with immediate effect, Mr Malcolm Mackley and Mr lan
Stewart be appointed to the Salcombe Harbour Board as Co-
opted Members for the period to the date of the Annual
Council meeting in May 2021.
QUESTIONS
It was noted that no questions had been received in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule 8.

NOTICE OF MOTIONS

It was noted that no motions had been received in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule 10.1.

Page 9



21/18

REPORTS OF BODIES

RESOLVED

That the minutes and recommendations of the

Cncl 17.5.18

undermentioned bodies be received and approved subject to
any amendments listed below:-

(@)

Development Management Committee
Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Audit Committee

Development Management Committee
Executive

E.81/17: Corporate Strategy Review
It was then:

RESOLVED

7 March 2018
22 March 2018
22 March 2018

4 April 2018

26 April 2018

That the South Hams Corporate Strategy be adopted
and published, subject to delegated authority being
given to the Commissioning Manager, in consultation
with the Leader of the Council, to make any minor
amendments deemed necessary prior to publication.

E.82/17: Annual Report 2017/18

The Leader introduced the Annual Report and highlighted
some of the key achievements contained within the

document.

Whilst fully supportive of the Leader’'s comments around
building Council houses, a Member did express his
surprise at how little reference was made in the Annual

Report to the One Council project.
It was then:

RESOLVED

That the South Hams Annual Report for the 2017/18

Financial Year be adopted and published.

E.83/17: Devon Wide Housing Assistance Policy

It was then:

Page /10



Cncl 17.5.18

RESOLVED

That the existing Homes Assistance Policy be updated
and then adopted in line with the Devon Housing
Assistance Policy.

E.84/17: Parking Review
It was then:
RESOLVED

That the following amendments be made to the South
Hams Off-Street Parking Places Order:

1. Pay and Display Charges be amended in
accordance with Appendix 1 of the presented
agenda report, following consultation with local
communities; and

2. Newly created reserved parking bays at Batson
Creek, Salcombe (as shown at Appendix 2 of the
presented agenda report presented to the
Executive) be incorporated.

E.85/17: Procurement of Pay on Entry Equipment -
Public Toilets/Disposal of Toilets

Despite repeated requests, a Member expressed his
disappointment that he had not still received a copy of the
Business Plan that supported this initiative. As a
consequence, the Member had reservations over the
decision that had been taken by the Executive in this
respect.

When questioned, the commitment to consult (as part of
the decision-making process) with those local Ward
Members that would be affected by the charging proposals
was again reaffirmed.

E.86/17: Dartmouth Lower Ferry — Capital Repairs
Programme

Whilst some concern was expressed over the role played
by the Maritime and Coastal Agency (MCA), Members
acknowledged that the Council had to approve this capital
spend or risk the Ferry not being able to operate.

It was then:

Page 11



Cncl 17.5.18

RESOLVED

That the capital spend (as outlined in Section 2.5 of the
presented agenda report) from the Dartmouth Lower
Ferry Earmarked Reserve be approved, in order to
ensure that the Ferry vessels (both tugs and floats) are
compliant and seaworthy in line with the Maritime and
Coastal Agency requirements.

(Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 4.15 pm)

Chairman

Page 12



Cncl 17.5.18

Clir P W Hitchins
Clir J M Hodgson
Clir T R Holway
ClIr J A Pearce
Clir R Rowe

Clir R C Steer
Clir R J Vint

. Executive

Clir H D Bastone
Clir R D Gilbert
Clir N A Hopwood
Clir R J Tucker
Clir K R H Wingate
Clir S A E Wright

Page 13

Membership of Council Bodies 2018/19 Appendix A
A. Audit Committee D. Licensing Committee
Clir I Bramble Clir K J Baldry
Clir J Brazil Clir J 1 G Blackler
Clir T R Holway Clir D Brown
Clir J A Pearce Clir B F Cane
Clir J T Pennington Clir P K Cuthbert
Clir R J Foss
Clir P W Hitchins
Clir T R Holway
. Development Management Committee Clir N A Hopwood
Clir D W May
Clir I Bramble Clir K Pringle
Clir J Brazil Clir R Rowe
Clir D Brown
Clir P K Cuthbert
Clir R J Foss E. Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Clir K J Baldry
Clir J P Birch

Clir J | G Blackler
Clir B F Cane
Cllr J P Green
Clir J D Hawkins
Clir M J Hicks
Clir E D Huntley
Clir D W May

Clir J T Pennington
Clir K Pringle

Clir M F Saltern
Cllr P C Smerdon



Representation on Outside Bodies 2018 / 2019

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

ORGANISATION

Avon Estuary Forum

Dartmoor National Park Authority
Dartmoor National Park Forum

Devon Authorities Strategic Waste
Committee

Devon County/South Hams Highways
and Traffic Orders Committee

Employment Appeals Panel

Governance Board (South Devon Healthcare
NHS Foundation Trust)

Greater Dartmoor Local Enterprise Action
Fund

Heart of the South West Devolution Joint
Committee

Hope Harbour

iIESE Transformation Limited

Joint Advisory Committee (JAC) on Housing

for Local Needs in the Dartmoor National Park

Local Government Association:-
i) District Council Network — Leader
i) General Assembly — Deputy Leader

Cncl 17.5.18

Appendix B

Nominee(s)

Clir J A Pearce

Clir P W Hitchins

Clir P C Smerdon

lead Executive Member for
Commercial Services

(Substitute: Clir D Brown)

Clirs J T Pennington and P C
Smerdon

Clir M F Saltern

Clir P C Smerdon

Clir P C Smerdon

Leader of the Council
(Substitute: Deputy Leader of
the Council)

Clir S A E Wright

Clir S A E Wright

Clirs J | G Blackler and J Brazil

iv) Rural Commission — Leader or Deputy Leader

(
(
(iii) South West Branch — Leader
(
(

v) LGA Committee, Panel, etc appointments

(NB: These appointments are made via an Electoral College process
through the LGA. Council has been given delegated authority to the Monitoring
Officer, in consultation with the Leaders of the political groups, to agree any

such appointments).

PATROL - Parking and Traffic Regulations
Outside London

Plymouth and Peninsula City Deal

Clir K J Baldry

Leader of Council

Police & Crime Commissioners Scrutiny Panel Clir K R H Wingate

Page /14



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

River Yealm Harbour Authority

Salcombe-Kingsbridge Estuary
Conservation Forum

South Devon AONB Partnership Committee

South Devon Coastal Local Action Group

Cncl 17.5.18

Clir T R Holway

Clir J A Pearce and
Chairman of Salcombe
Harbour Board (or nominee)

Clirs D Brown and J Green

Clir M J Hicks

South Devon and Dartmoor Community Safety Clir T R Holway

Partnership
South Hams Citizens' Advice Bureau

South Hams Community and Voluntary
Services - Executive Committee

South West Councils

SPARSE Rural and Rural Services Network
Tamar Estuary Consultative Forum

Yealm Estuary Forum

Page 15

Clir P K Cuthbert

Clirs K Pringle and
P C Smerdon

Clir R J Tucker (Substitute: Clir S A E
Wright)

Clir M J Hicks
Clir P W Hitchins

Clir K J Baldry



Cncl 17.5.18

Appointment of Other Groups 2018/2019 Appendix C

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Council Tax Setting Panel

Chairman of Council

Leader of Council

Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Leader of the Opposition

Devon Building Control Partnership
Clir H D Bastone
Clir R C Steer

Discretionary (Majors) Business Rate Relief Decision Panel
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Lead Executive Member for Business Development

Leader of Council

Substitute Member:
Deputy Leader of Council

Investments Member Working Group

All Executive Members

Audit Committee Chairman

Development Management Committee Chairman
Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairman

Leader of the Opposition Group

Joint SH/WD/Plymouth Local Plan Steering Group
Clir M J Hicks
Clir J A Pearce

Political Structures Working Group
Clir K J Baldry

Clir J P Green

Clir P W Hitchins

Clir T R Holway

Clir J T Pennington

Clir M F Saltern

Clir R J Tucker

Clir S A E Wright

Public Spaces Working Group
Clir R J Foss

Clir R C Steer

Clir R J Vint

Clir S A E Wright

Rate Relief Panel
Leader of Council
Deputy Leader of Council

Slapton Line Steering Group
Clir J Brazil
Clir R J Foss

Page 16



(i)

Waste and Recycling Working Group
Clir K J Baldry

Clir D Brown

Clir R D Gilbert

Clir N A Hopwood

Page 17

Cncl 17.5.18



Page 18



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT
COUNCIL HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 26 JULY 2018

MEMBERS
o Clir T R Holway — Chairman

* Clir R Rowe — Vice-Chairman

* Clir K J Baldry * Clir N A Hopwood
* Clir H D Bastone * Clir J M Hodgson

* ClIr J P Birch @ Clir E D Huntley

* Clir J | G Blackler * Clir D W May

@ ClIr | Bramble * Clir J A Pearce

* Clir J Brazil * Clir J T Pennington
@ Clir D Brown * ClIr K Pringle

* Clir BF Cane * Clir M F Saltern

@ Clir P K Cuthbert * Clir P C Smerdon
* ClirRJ Foss * Clir R C Steer

* Clir R D Gilbert * Clir R J Tucker

* Clir J P Green * Clir R J Vint

@ Clir J D Hawkins * Clir K R H Wingate
@ Clir M J Hicks * Clir S A E Wright

Clir P W Hitchins

* Denotes attendance
o Denotes apology for absence

Officers in attendance and participating:
For all items: Head of Paid Service; Section 151 Officer; Group Manager —
Commercial Services; Deputy Monitoring Officer; Lead Specialist Waste Strategy; and
Senior Specialist — Democratic Services
22/18 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN
In light of the Chairman having sent his apologies to this meeting,
nominations were invited to serve as Vice-Chairman for the duration of
this meeting.
It was then:
RESOLVED
That ClIr R J Foss be appointed Vice-Chairman for the duration
of this meeting.

23/18 URGENT BUSINESS

The Chairman informed that she had no items of urgent business for
consideration at this meeting.

Page 19



24/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of
business to be considered during the course of the meeting. These were
recorded as follows:-

Clir N A Hopwood declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in ltem 5(d):
‘Reports of Bodies: Executive — 14 June 2018 (Minute 26/18(d) below refers)
and specifically the recommendation arising from Minute O&S.114/17
(‘Feasibility of Installing Electric Car Charging Points in the Council’s Public
Car Parks’) by virtue of her business interests and left the meeting during the
debate and vote on this recommendation.

25/18 FRONTLINE SERVICES (WASTE AND CLEANSING)
PROCUREMENT

Consideration was given to a report that outlined the ‘Detailed Solutions’
Stage of the Frontline Services (Waste and Cleansing) Procurement
process. The report highlighted that, if the Council approved the
recommendation of the Project Board, then the procurement process
would continue to the ‘Final Solutions’ Stage, with a further report being
brought to the Council meeting to be held on 4 December 2018.

In inviting Member questions, it was apparent that some related to the
exempt appendices and it was therefore PROPOSED and SECONDED
and, on being put to the vote, was declared CARRIED that:-

‘In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public and press be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item of business as the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A to
the Act is involved.’

During the questions phase on the exempt appendices, assurances
were given that more detailed information (e.g. in relation to the financial
figures quoted; direct comparisons with the existing in-house service;
and the added value from bidders) would be made available with the
agenda papers for the Council meeting on 6 December 2018.

Once all Members were content that they had no further questions to
raise on the exempt appendices, it was then PROPOSED and
SECONDED and, on being put to the vote, was declared CARRIED that:

‘The public and press be re-admitted to the meeting.’
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) An amendment to the motion was PROPOSED and SECONDED as
follows:-

‘That any changes necessary to harmonise the recycling
collection services with the ‘aligned waste service’ (as detailed in
the Waste and Resource Strategy for Devon) be approved and

introduced by 29 Sﬁ%%ng)g 6020.’



In support of the amendment, the proposer felt that this would enable
for greater flexibility to be built into the process. Having been asked
for a view, officers advised that the recommendation had been
drafted to take into account what was considered to be the optimum
start date to harmonise the recycling collection services.

When put to the vote, this amendment was declared LOST.

(b) Some Members acknowledged the comments in the agenda relating
to the potential risk of a procurement challenge. These Members
proceeded to express their concerns that a decision at this time to
continue to the next stage of the competitive dialogue process could
result in the final outcome effectively becoming a done deal with it
being very difficult to do anything other than award a Contract. This
was felt to be a particular cause for concern in light of the lack of
available information at this time making it difficult to make an
informed decision;

(c) Having sought assurances, officers confirmed that any proposals to
charge for a garden waste collection service were specifically listed
as being out of the scope of the ‘aligned waste service’ in this
instance;

(d) A Board Member advised that he personally had yet to be convinced
that the private sector could generate a profit; whilst maintaining
service quality and providing a financial return to the Council;

(e) In light of the same commercial restrictions applying and the number
of Member Workshops that had already been held, the majority of
Members did not support a request for the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel to consider the project at this time;

(f) In support of the project, a Member felt that the performance of these
frontline services was currently below the expected standard and she
was of the view that the private sector could manage these more
efficiently and effectively. In reminding those present of the
importance of the tourism industry to the South Hams, the Member
highlighted the need for this to be factored into the contractual
negotiations;

(g) Members wished to put on record their gratitude for the amount of
work that had been undertaken by lead officers to reach this project
milestone.

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the progress of the project be noted and the
recommendation of the Frontline Services (Waste
Procurement) Project Board to continue to the next stage of
the competitive dialogue process for waste collection,
recycling and cleansing services be endorsed; and

Page 21



2. That any changes necessary to harmonise the recycling
collection services with the ‘aligned waste service’ (as
detailed in the Waste and Resource Strategy for Devon) be
approved and introduced on 28 September 2020.

26/18 REPORTS OF BODIES

RESOLVED

That the minutes and recommendations of the
undermentioned bodies be received and approved subject to
any amendments listed below:-

Development Management Committee 2 May 2018
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 3 May 2018
Development Management Committee 6 June 2018
Executive 14 June 2018

E.08/18: Council Owned Asset Investment and
Development

In the absence of any detailed costings or financial
breakdown of how these monies were proposed to be
spent, some Members stated that they were unable to
support the recommendation. The Leader responded by
pointing out that, without approval of this recommendation,
these projects could not be advanced. Moreover, the
recommendation was seeking approval of up to £150,000
and it was by no means inevitable that all of these monies
would be spent.

In an attempt to mitigate some of these concerns and to
ensure greater flexibility, an amendment to the motion was
PROPOSED and SECONDED to read as follows:-

‘That approval be given to the expenditure of up to a
maximum of £150,000 in order to further enable exploration
and, if appropriate, to prepare a detailed business case....’
The Leader stated that the exploratory works had already
been carried out and he therefore could not support this
amendment.

When put to the vote, the amendment was declared LOST.

Page 22



It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That approval be given to the expenditure of up to a
maximum of £150,000 in order to prepare a detailed
business case for each of the proposed Council-
owned asset investment and development
opportunities (as detailed in Section 3 and Appendix
1 of the agenda report presented to the Hub
Committee meeting); and

2. That officers conclude an appropriate procurement
process to commission the work required to
produce individual business cases for the identified
Asset Investment and Development opportunities.

E.11/18: Reports of Other Bodies
(a) Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 22 March 2018

0&S.113/17 Update on the Urban Fringe Delivery
Team and Sherford Strategic Review

Since the Sherford Road closure remained in place, a
Member highlighted the levels of disruption and
questioned what pressure the Council was applying. In
reply, the Head of Paid Service informed that she
continued to press the Developer and confirmed that
she would demand an answer to this issue at the next
Sherford Board meeting on Wednesday, 1 August 2018.

0&S.114/17 Feasibility of Installing Electric Car
Charging Points in the Council’s Public Car Parks

Following a request, the Leader promised to provide
Members with an update on the likelihood of obtaining
EU funding in this respect.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the proposed Strategy for the installation of an
electric vehicle charging network in Council Car
Parks be endorsed, subject to steps being taken to
advance the proposed installation date as outlined
in paragraph 2.6 of the agenda report presented to
the Panel meeting (late 2019) and only on the
understanding that the EU funding is obtained.

(e)  Audit Committee 21 June 2018

(f) Overview and Scrutiny Panel 28 June 2018
Page 23



(9)

0&S.6/18: Civica / IT: Lessons Learnt

In response to some concerns over the mechanism for the
Audit Committee to be able to review its own annual work
programme, it was agreed that, for future meetings, this
would become a standing agenda item. Thereafter, at its
next scheduled meeting on 6 September 2018, it was
agreed that the Committee would consider the merits of the
request to examine whether or not all of the potential
avenues had been explored.

0&S.11/18: Overview and Scrutiny: Draft Annual
Report 2017/18

RESOLVED

That the draft Annual Report for 2017/18 (as outlined at
Appendix A of the agenda report presented to the
Panel) be approved.

0&S.13/18: Actions Arising / Decisions Log

Having sought further assurances, the Leader confirmed to
the Council that consultation would be undertaken on the
Public Conveniences charging proposals with local Ward
Members at the appropriate time.

Executive 19 July 2018
E.17/18: Activities to Support Economic Growth

For clarity, the Leader advised that these recommendations
would be considered at meetings of the Overview and
Scrutiny Panel and Audit Committee before being
ultimately determined by the Council at its meeting on 27
September 2018.

E.21/18: Business Rates — Locally Administered
Business Rate Relief Policy

RESOLVED

That the Year Two Locally Administered Business Rate
Relief Policy (as set out in Appendix 1 of the agenda
report presented to the Executive) be adopted.
E.22/18: Parking Order Operational Amendments
RESOLVED

That the following amendments be made to the South
Hams Off-Street Parking Places Order:

1. Parking at Follaton House, Totnes be permitted from

7.00a]g|ataé.(EHm only;



2. Parking permits be introduced for car parks in
Dittisham;

3. That more robust action be included in respect of the
removal of vehicles from all South Hams District Council
car parks; and

4. That Torcross Layby be included as one of the car
parks where permit parking is permitted.

(Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.20 pm)

Chairman

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Committee: Full Council

Date: 27 September 2018

Title: Commercial Property Strategy

Portfolio Area: Cllr John Tucker, Leader of the Council,
Assets

Wards Affected: All

Releva_nt Scrutiny Overview & Scrutiny Panel

Committee:

Date next steps can Immediately after meeting

be taken:

Authors: Darren Arulvasagam
Business Development Group Manager
Darren.Arulvasagam@swdevon.gov.uk

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Full Council:

1. ADOPT the commercial property strategy as shown in
Appendix A;

2. AGREE a total borrowing limit of £60m for the Commercial
Property Strategy (capped at no more than £30m borrowing
before 30t April 2019);

3. DELEGATE the authority and decision making function relating
to '‘Development on Council Owned Land’ to the Executive
(assuming that the proposed expenditure complies with the
Council approved total borrowing limits). This delegation is
to include the granting of associated leases in excess of 15
years as and when required.

4. DELEGATE the authority and decision making function relating
to 'Commercial Property Acquisitions in the South Hams’ to
the Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer, in
consultation with Members of the Executive as detailed in
Appendix A;

5. REQUEST that when South Hams District Council acquire a
Commercial Property in line with this strategy, a report will be

presented (for noting purposes) to the subsequent meeting of
the Executive, and;

6. DISBAND the Investments Member Working Group with
immediate effect.

Executive Summary

On 19 July 2018, Executive received a report entitled “Activities to
Support Economic Growth”, which proposed a Commercial Property
Strategy. Executive approved the recommendations, subject to
feedback and scrutiny by the Council’s Audit Committee and
Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

==
= O

Page 27


mailto:Darren.Arulvasagam@swdevon.gov.uk

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Both Committees met on 6 September 2018. Based on the
feedback received around governance arrangements (refer to
minute reference: 0&S.34/18: Activities to Support Economic
Growth), an updated strategy is shown in Appendix A and is
recommended for adoption.

The proposed strategy has the following multiple objectives:

1.3.1 Support regeneration and the economic activity of the District
1.3.2 Enhance economic benefit

1.3.3 Grow business rate income

1.3.4 Assist with the financial sustainability of the Council as an
ancillary benefit.

1.3.5 Help the Council continue to deliver and/or improve frontline
services in line with the Council’s adopted strategy &
objectives

The following outcomes are desired by the application of this
strategy. Each acquisition or development opportunity will be
assessed on its fit with meeting the objectives stated above and
should deliver one or more of the following outcomes (benefits):

1.4.1 Job creation or safeguarding
1.4.2 Health & Wellbeing

1.4.3 Town centre regeneration
1.4.4 Tourism / Increased footfall
1.4.5 Business rate growth

1.4.6 Improved asset utilisation

1.4.7 A minimum net yield return of 2% is targeted. However, in
some circumstances, e.g. where community benefit are likely
to be achieved, a lower return may be acceptable.

It is recommended that the borrowing limit for the Strategy is £60m
(capped at no more than £30m before 30t April 2019), based on
independent borrowing advice received. This advice recommended
a total borrowing limit of £75m for the whole of the Council’s
operations, based on the Council’s specific financial status.

How each acquisition or development scheme is funded will be
reviewed on a case by case basis. It is envisaged this will
predominantly be funded through prudential borrowing or any other
unallocated or available Council reserve or capital receipt, as
determined by the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).

Executive Members, along with the Head of Paid Service and S151
officer, will consider each and every proposal on its own merits and
specifically how each proposal meets the Council’s multiple
objectives and desired outcomes.

Projects and their outcomes will be kept under constant review by
officers and reports to Executive and Audit Committee.

Page 28



2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Background

In July 2017, it was resolved that the Council deferred a decision
regarding a commercial property acquisition strategy (26/13). At
that time, the proposal was to acquire commercial property outside
of the District.

On 19th July 2018, Executive received a report entitled “Activities
to Support Economic Growth”, which proposed a revised strategy.

Based on subsequent feedback received from the Council’s
Overview & Scrutiny Panel and Audit Committee, an updated
strategy is shown in Appendix A. It includes both commercial
property acquisition as well as funding of commercial development
on Council land.

This proposal is in line with the “Enterprise” corporate strategic aim
of creating places for enterprise to thrive and business to grow.

In the period between the original July 2017 proposals and now,
there have been changes to the rules and guidance around what
Councils can invest in using prudential borrowing.

MHCLG (Government) guidance on Investments states that Councils
need to disclose several recommended indicators in their treasury
management strategies going forward. The indicators that need to
be disclosed after 1 April 2018 include an indicator on
proportionality. This indicator assesses the amount of debt an
Authority holds in relation to its Net Service Expenditure (NSE). The
purpose of this indicator is to allow the reader to assess how
proportional a Council’s borrowing is in relation to its Net Service
Expenditure.

The Council has obtained independent advice on the amount of
borrowing that would be acceptable for the District Council, based
on the Council’s own financial status. This advice is confidential
was therefore treated as an exempt appendix to the Audit and O&S
report as it is the intellectual property of a third party.

The indicators themselves will be public information when they are
published. The advice has been analysed in order to inform the
recommendations within this report and the Borrowing Strategy
(and appropriate limits) for the Council within the Medium Term
Financial Strategy. As a result of the advice, it is recommended
that the Council does not agree borrowing above £75m - with
£60m for this strategy and a further maximum of £15m for any
other borrowing requirement.

There are no Government guidelines on what is an acceptable level
of proportionality (the proportion of borrowing as a factor of the
Council’s Net Service Expenditure) and it is for each Council to
assess this level themselves. Proportionality was considered in the
external independent advice.

The Council will consider proportionality on a case by case basis for
each borrowing decision as part of the decision making process,
with information provided to the Executive Members, the s151
officer, the Head of Paid Service and the Leader of the Council.

Page 29



2.9

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

Investment in District, for the stated aims of this strategy, funded
through borrowing is entirely consistent with all published guidance
for Councils. Legal counsel has been undertaken as part of this
process. The legal powers by which the Council can implement this
strategy have been confirmed.

Commercial Acquisitions

The recommended strategy shown in Appendix A has been devised
to give the Council, through delegated powers to the Executive and
the Head of Paid Service and the S151 officer, a clear set of criteria
by which to appraise opportunities that arise.

Officers will provide Members of the Executive with a set of data,
such as that which is included in Appendix B (example decision
template) and an indicative cash flow for each project under
investigation. These aid decision making on whether to proceed or
not. In the event of three or more Executive Members expressing
their opposition to the proposal, then the matter will proceed no
further.

In parallel, the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) are required
to approve any bid or development. Any project will be subject to
Due Diligence and Legal Searches and occasionally other data as
need arises.

For acquisitions, assuming the bid remains as per that authorised at
the time of sign off, the final sign off prior to exchange and
payment of deposit (typically 10%) is made by S151 officer and
Head of Paid Service. If anything has changed, the Executive
Members will need to vote again in order to proceed.

This process of delegated authority is required because there is
often very little time (a number of days) to secure a bid on a
property, especially if it is off market. Off market bids avoid price
inflation caused by competing bidders.

The Executive Members have been made aware that they will be
required to process and respond to information similar to that in
Appendix B in a very quick timeframe (minimum two working days)
so as to provide their decision. They may also be asked to attend
meetings on similarly short notice. These meetings may be held
virtually to expedite decision making.

Commercial Development

Commercial development in the context of this report refers to the
development of commercial property on Council owned land, such
as (by way of example only); the construction of a health and
wellbeing clinic in Dartmouth.

There are multiple projects being worked on by officers that meet
the criteria set out in the strategy and it is proposed that decisions
on progressing & committing borrowing or funding to these projects
becomes a delegated function of the Executive (assuming that the
proposed expenditure complies with the Council approved total
borrowing limits). This delegation is to include the granting of

Page 30



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

5.0

5.0.1
5.0.2
5.0.3

5.0.4

5.1

associated leases in excess of 15 years (which ordinarily would
need to be a Full Council decision).

The information provided to the Executive will be similar for
development projects, except that there will be additional risk
analysis presented to include the construction phase of projects.

What might success look like?

The adoption of this strategy will facilitate inward investment in
South Hams, promoting and fostering business development. This
will help achieve the “enterprise” corporate objective.

Whilst acquisition opportunities cannot be forecast, it is anticipated
that one or two commercial acquisitions may meet the Council’s
criteria within a year of approval. Likely spend may therefore be
between £2-6m, generating a net income (after borrowing and
acquisition costs) of £40k-£120k per annum (equivalent of a 2%
yield after borrowing, management, maintenance and capital
repayment costs).

Over a two year horizon, it is anticipated that commercial
development would have started on one or more of the Council’s
sites. As a guide, each development may cost between £5m-£10m.

Over a three - five year horizon, the first developments will have
been concluded and entered the operational / income phase. As a
guide, a target net yield return of 2% (after borrowing,
management, maintenance and capital repayment costs) has been
assumed, but there will be a variation between projects.

It should be reiterated that the income derived from commercial
development and some commercial acquisitions will be secondary to
the economic and social benefit they will bring to South Hams and
the strategy anticipates that outcome.

Executive Members may opt to accept a net yield return of less than
2% if the community benefits of job creation or safeguarding,
tourism, town centre regeneration, business rate growth or
effective asset utilisation are deemed more important.

For illustrative purposes only, an example of how the borrowing
requirements may add up to £75m are shown in Appendix C.

Options available and consideration of risk

The overall objectives of this strategy are set out below:

To support regeneration and the economic activity of the District
To enhance economic benefit & business rates growth

To assist with the financial sustainability of the Council as an
ancillary benefit

To help the Council continue to deliver and/or improve frontline
services in line with the Council’s adopted strategy & objectives

South Hams District Council is a business rates pilot area for
2018/19, which sets out economic objectives of the pilot area. This
strategy would help deliver these objectives. Each acquisition or

Page 31



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

6.2

development will be assessed on its fit with meeting the objectives
stated above, on a case by case basis.

If the Council decides not to adopt the strategy as proposed, it
should still be able to deliver some of its development ambitions,
utilising the existing Council approval routes and committees.

What will be far more challenging will be to deliver on the
commercial acquisition element of the strategy, as that is almost
impossible to do in a timely manner without a scheme of delegation
in place.

Research shows that where Councils undertake this activity, there is
an increasing level of delegation, enabling them to move quickly
when properties come to market. This is implicit within the adopted
and recommended strategy.

Members could opt to follow, amend or reject the
recommendations.

Legal counsel has been undertaken as part of this process. The
legal powers by which the Council can implement this strategy set
out in Section 7.0.

The strategy looks to mitigate risks by setting specific criteria for
purchases and necessary due diligence must be completed before
officers and Executive Members recommend any purchase.

It should be recognised that there is an inherent tension between
some of the objectives of this strategy. For example, a decision to
purchase or develop business units to lease to tenants will help
achieve the first two objectives. However, if the tenant defaults on
its rent payments, the third objective would be at risk.

In contrast, purchasing a commercial building with an existing very
strong tenant, could be seen to meet the first two objectives of the
strategy less well, but would expose the Council to less financial
risk.

Officers, working with their specialist advisors in the market will sift
opportunities and only present to Executive Members, opportunities
that closely meet the Strategy. They will then lead the Executive
Members into debate over the specific benefits and risks of each
opportunity before the Executive Members make a decision. In this
way, risk will be transparent through the process.

Proposed Way Forward

This report was discussed at the Overview & Scrutiny Panel and
Audit Committee on 6t" September. Their recommendations were
discussed by the Executive Members and the resulting
recommendations were discussed at Executive on 13t September.
These have informed this report and the revised strategy in
Appendix A.

Full Council considered and approved the borrowing limit for this
Strategy as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy on
September 27t 2018. It is envisaged in December 2018, Council
will consider a revised Treasury Management Strategy which would

Page 32



increase the borrowing limits of the Council, to facilitate
implementation of this strategy. As part of that report, the Council
will also include the new proportionality indicators to address the
Government guidance issued in February 2018.

7 Implications

Implications Relevant
to
proposals
Y/N

Details and proposed measures to address

Legal/ Y
Governance

Advice on the relevant powers and appropriate vehicles for
delivering these proposals has been sought from external
specialist advisers and legal counsel. Legal counsel opinion has
been obtained which sets out the various powers available to the
Council, which supports the Council’s proposed strategy as
described in this report.

This proposal is consistent with the Council’s powers to borrow
and invest under the Local Government Act 2003 and section 1
Localism Act 2011 (the general power of competence) and / or
section 120 Local Government Act 1972 (power to acquire land).

The Council is empowered to buy pursuant to section 120 of the
Local Government Act 1972. Section 1 of the Local Government
Act 2003 provides a power to the Council to borrow for the
purposes of any enactment.

Disposal of any of the acquired properties will have to be
undertaken in accordance with the provisions of section 123
Local Government Act 1972.

In order to lawfully implement the acquisition strategy, each
proposal (including the funding strategy for purchases) should
be reviewed as part of a decision to purchase or sell, and tested
for value for money, and regulatory compliance.

There is an overriding duty toward prudent management of risk,
and officers, including the Council's section 151 officer owe a
fiduciary duty in relation to given transactions.

There is a duty on the Council to have regard to Statutory
Guidance on Local (the New Guidance) Government
Investments. As such, as part of the due diligence, consideration
of each particular investment will need to include consideration
of all the legal circumstances of the particular case.

Financial Y

The Council will purchase assets, or develop existing assets and
hold these directly on its balance sheet and therefore the direct
costs of purchase and acquisition or development can be
capitalised. This will include costs such as stamp duty, legal
fees, construction, planning, due diligence and agency fees.

When individual purchase decisions or asset developments are
made, a bespoke business case will be produced alongside a
package of due diligence information to support the decision
making process. The delegated authorities approving a
purchase will need to be satisfied that any proposed acquisition
not only delivers best value but also meets the criteria contained
within the Commercial Property Strategy and has proper regard
to how the acquisition or development meets the Council’s

Page 33




multiple objectives of the strategy.

Any PWLB borrowing to fund the acquisition of commercial
property is not secured on the property acquired.

PWLB borrowing rates are fixed for the term of the loan.
Individual borrowing decisions will be taken prudently in line
with the Council’s treasury management strategy and by officers
within that function. The Council will need to approve a revised
Treasury Management Strategy which would increase the
borrowing limits of the Council (depending on the
recommendations from the various bodies), to facilitate
implementation of the strategy.

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code Of Practice for
Treasury Management and produces an Annual Treasury
Management Strategy and Investment Strategy in accordance
with CIPFA guidelines.

Risk

The security risk is that the capital value of an acquired or
developed property falls. Whilst this would have an effect on
the Council’s balance sheet, this loss will be realised if the
Council chooses to sell the property and incurs a capital loss.
The liquidity risk is the risk of failure of a tenant within one of
the acquired or developed properties.

The yield risk is that the ancillary income derived from the
assets will alter during the life of the asset. This will be actively
managed; with specialist agents commissioned to manage the
asset and its tenants. Properties will only be acquired if they
have a minimum of 4 years unexpired lease term and are
located in areas deemed to be attractive for future lettings /
sales, limiting the risk to the Council’s portfolio.

The Council already owns and operates a property estate valued
at circa £75m. It therefore has experience of managing such an
estate and can act as an intelligent client to fulfil the proposed
strategy, with the aid of commissioned property experts. The
cost of these experts has been included in the financial
projections from this strategy.

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications

Equality and
Diversity

N

Not Applicable

Safeguarding

N

Not Applicable

Community
Safety, Crime
and Disorder

N

Not Applicable

Health,
Safety and
Wellbeing

N

Not Applicable

Other
implications

N

Not Applicable

Supporting Information

Appendices:

Appendix A - Recommended Commercial Property Strategy
Appendix B - Example of decision template to be presented to Executive

Members

Appendix C - Illustrative Borrowing Requirements for SHDC

Page 34




Background Papers:

e "“Activities to Support Economic Growth presented to O&S Panel, September
2018

e “Activities to Support Economic Growth presented to Audit Committee,
September 2018

e MTFS presented to Executive, September 2018
e “Activities to Support Economic Growth presented to Executive, July 2018
¢ “Commercial Property Acquisition Strategy”, presented to Council, July 2017

e Statutory Guidance On Local Government Investments (3rd Edition)
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/fil
e/678866/Guidance on local government investments.pdf

e Proposed Changes To The Prudential Framework Of Capital Finance
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-
prudential-framework-of-capital-finance

Page 35


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/678866/Guidance_on_local_government_investments.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/678866/Guidance_on_local_government_investments.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A — SHDC Commercial Property Strategy

Overall Objectives:
The Council’s commercial property strategy has multiple objectives as stated below:

e To support regeneration and the economic activity of the District

e To enhance economic benefit & business rates growth

e To assist with the financial sustainability of the Council as an ancillary benefit

e To help the Council continue to deliver and/or improve frontline services in line with the Council’s
adopted strategy & objectives.

Desired Outcomes:

The following outcomes are desired by the application of this strategy. Each acquisition or
development opportunity will be assessed on its fit with meeting the objectives stated above and
should deliver one or more of the following outcomes (benefits):

Job creation or safeguarding

Health & Wellbeing

Town centre regeneration

Tourism / Increased footfall

Business rate growth

Improved asset utilisation

A minimum net yield return of 2% is targeted. However, in some circumstances, e.g. where
community benefits are likely to be achieved, a lower return may be acceptable.

ASANENENENENEN

This strategy will be achieved by acquisitions and developments within the South Hams District. This
will include the focussed acquisition of existing commercial property assets and the development of
new properties which are to be let to third parties.

Risk

e The risks of acquiring property may be mitigated through the acquisition of assets with secure, long
income streams, although this risk will be weighed up against the social and economic benefits of
acquisitions to support commerce and trade in the District

e Acquisitions are to be made in a careful and controlled manner, with specific analysis of risk criteria
carried out in the ‘due diligence’ stage prior to the completion of each purchase

e The portfolio will be relatively risk-averse, targeting tenants of strong financial standing and
minimum unexpired lease terms of four years at the date of acquisition. However, these criteria
will be considered on a case by case basis and can be outweighed in order to meet the strategy
objectives

Location:

e Wherever opportunities arise within the District, in order to acquire or develop good properties
which achieve some or all of the Council’s multiple objectives and desired outcomes as stated
above and are deemed as an acceptable risk

Tenant mix:
e Where possible, a mix of tenants will be sought to create a balanced portfolio

e The final decision over the appropriateness of any tenant would be reviewed at the time of
acquisition

e SHDC owns a significant number of commercial units already within the District, mainly smaller
units and tenants with relatively low credit ratings. This reflects the historic policy of supporting
small start-ups which has proved successful and continues to be. Newer acquisitions are likely to
be for larger units which may have single tenant occupancy.

Page 37



Lease length:
e A minimum 4 years unexpired (mean unexpired term for multi-let properties) is preferable,
however this is flexible if it helps achieve the strategy objectives

e For multi-let properties, a mix of lease expiry dates are preferred, thereby limiting void risk (unless
the property is purchased with a view to re-development)

e Properties would preferably be let to sound tenants on leases with a preference for ‘Full Repairing
and Insuring’ leases for single occupiers and through internal repair obligations and a service
charge for multi-let properties.

e There may be overriding community benefit and/or economic reasons to move away from these
criterion and these will be considered on a case by case basis.

For all of the above:

The final decision over the definition of “good”, “secure”, “strong”, “long”, “careful”, “controlled”,
“acceptable”, “balanced” and “risk-averse” will be agreed between the property acquisition advisers
(including legal due diligence) and the individuals delegated with the responsibility to conclude the
acquisition of the properties. This discretion will be based on both the risk to the capital value of the
asset and its’ fit with the strategy objectives.

n u
",

Yield:

e The Council will only acquire properties where the running cost does not require Council subsidy.
Per acquisition, a target minimum net yield (an ancillary benefit) of 2.0% is to be sought, after
acquisition, management, maintenance, capital repayment and funding costs

e However, the Council may opt to accept a lower net yield return if the community benefits of job
creation or safeguarding, tourism, town centre regeneration, business rate growth or effective
asset utilisation are deemed more important than a purely financial return

Value & Cost:

e larger lot sizes are favoured - smaller size properties have disproportionately higher management
costs and expose the Council to greater property void risks, but the economic and trade benefits of
buying smaller units may outweigh this

e Acquisition costs are forecast not to exceed 7% (Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) / Legal / Agents / Due
Diligence). These costs are to be contained within the overall strategy budget

Funding:
e Acquisitions and development initiatives will be funded using predominantly borrowing or any
other unallocated or available Council reserve or capital receipt

e This is to be secured on a case by case basis on the most commercially advantageous terms
available predominantly through borrowing or any other unallocated or available Council reserve
or capital receipt

e ltis envisaged in December 2018, Full Council will need to approve a revised Treasury Management
Strategy which would increase the borrowing limits of the Council to £60m (capped at no more
than £30m borrowing before 30t April 2019), to facilitate implementation of this strategy

e The borrowing term will not exceed the expected remaining life of the property, but the Council
wishes to secure borrowing over a maximum 50 year term.

e Capital repayments will seek to repay a minimum of 50% of the capital value of any acquired
property or borrowing for property development

Page 38



Tax Implications:

Due to the Council holding acquired or developed assets, it is not anticipated that there will be any
corporation tax or income tax implications from this strategy

Some properties may be VAT elected, meaning VAT must be charged to tenants. This will be dealt
with on a case by case basis and will be covered by the due diligence connected with that
acquisition. The Council is able to charge and recover VAT

Capital Gains Tax would not apply to assets sold from Council ownership

Exit Strategy:

The Council is not looking to actively trade commercial property within the first 5 years of
ownership of any acquired property, however this is flexible if required to meet this strategy’s
objectives

If it is determined that the most prudent action is to sell an individual asset, this will be considered
on a case by case basis and will be acted upon in consultation with Executive Members, the S151
officer and the Head of Paid Service

It is proposed that all properties will be held as Council Assets. This may change if the Council were
to set-up a trading company and it was found to be commercially advantageous for such a vehicle
to hold the asset

It is important to note that there would be early repayment charges if borrowing used to acquire a
commercial property were to be repaid before the end of the loan term. However, Public Works
Loan Board (PWLB) lending is not secured against property, so would not inhibit the asset being
traded during the loan period. An alternative asset could be purchased (& held) with any sale
receipt.

Governance Arrangements:

Acquisitions and developments must conform to the adopted commercial property strategy. Any
deviation from the agreed strategy will require Council approval.

Before a final decision to proceed with a development or acquisition is made, local ward members
will be briefed and be able to share their views with Executive Members.

Executive Members, along with the Head of Paid Service and S151 officer, will consider each and
every proposal on its own merits and specifically how each proposal meets the Council’s multiple
objectives and desired outcomes.

Executive Members will consider proportionality on a case by case basis for each acquisition as part
of the decision making process, with information provided to them and the s151 officer, the Head
of Paid Service and the Leader of the Council.

Officers, working with their specialist advisors in the market will sift opportunities and only present
to Executive Members, opportunities that closely meet the Strategy. They will then lead the
Executive Members into debate over the specific benefits and risks of each opportunity before the
Executive Members make a decision. In this way, risk will be transparent through the process.

Projects and their outcomes will be kept under constant review by officers and reports to Executive
and Audit Committee.

Development on Council Owned Land

The Council will delegate the authority and decision making function relating to ‘Development on
Council Owned Land’ to the Executive, assuming that the proposed expenditure complies with the
Council approved total borrowing limits.

Page 39



This delegation is to include the granting of associated leases in excess of 15 years as and when
required, as recommended by the Assets CoP Lead, on a project by project basis

In parallel, the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) are required to approve any development.
Any project will be subject to Due Diligence and Legal Searches and occasionally other data as need
arises.

Specialists will be commissioned to act on behalf of the Council to source suitable development
and tenant opportunities and manage the due diligence process.

Officers will provide Members of the Executive with a set of data and an indicative cash flow for
each project under investigation. These will aid decision making on whether to proceed or not.

Commercial Property Acquisitions within the South Hams

The Council will delegate the authority and decision making function relating to ‘Commercial
Property Acquisitions in the South Hams’ to the Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer, in
consultation with Members of the Executive, assuming that the proposed expenditure complies with
the Council approved total borrowing limits.

In the event of three or more Executive Members expressing their opposition to the proposal, then
the matter will proceed no further.

In parallel, the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) are required to approve any acquisition. Any
project will be subject to Due Diligence and Legal Searches and occasionally other data as need
arises.

Assuming the bid remains as per that authorised at the time of sign off, the final sign off prior to
exchange and payment of deposit (typically 10%) is made by the S151 officer and Head of Paid
Service. If anything has changed, the Executive Members will need to vote again in order to
proceed.

This process of delegated authority is required because there is often very little time (a number of
days) to secure a bid on a property, especially if it is off market. Off market bids avoid price
inflation caused by competing bidders.

The Executive Members have been made aware that they will be required to process and respond
to information similar to that in Appendix B in a very quick timeframe (minimum two working days)
so as to provide their decision. They may also be asked to attend meetings on similarly short
notice. These meetings may be held virtually to expedite decision making.

When South Hams District Council acquire a Commercial Property in line with this strategy, a report
will be presented (for noting purposes) to the subsequent meeting of the Executive.

Running / Review

If the management of acquired or developed assets cannot be managed in-house by existing
resources, it will be outsourced to property professionals.

The cost of this management is to be deducted before calculating the net yield.

The Executive will receive regular reporting to confirm portfolio composition and performance.
Regular portfolio performance reporting will be presented to Audit Committee as required.

Disposal

Once acquired, decisions relating to the ownership of any acquired or developed properties will be
dealt with in-line with the Council’s constituted scheme of delegation.

Page 40



e Disposal will be considered if the portfolio breaches the approved strategy. Decisions to be made in
consultation with Executive Members, the S151 officer and the Head of Paid Service.

Resources:

e The work to filter, appraise and recommend investment and development opportunities will be
undertaken within the Assets CoP. This will be supplemented by specific consultant advice as
required and associated costs built into the business case for each project.

e The Assets CoP has strong relationships with a number of local and national consultants who will
be required to support the projects. Examples of this include (but are not limited to): CCD
Properties (development specialists), Arcadis (building technical due diligence), Womble Bond
Dickinson (legal due diligence) and Savills (commercial property investment advice).

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: EXAMPLE DECISION TEMPLATE - TRANSACTION REVIEW

CRITERIA SCORE NOTES
[RAG]
Location?
Well located commercial estate, in XYZ
Town
Property Condition? Subject to Technical Due Diligence (TDD)

— initial appraisal suggests some need
for Capital Expenditure going forward,
say £XXX within 5 years

Credit Rating of Tenant3 Multi- let building with a range of
tenants and corresponding tenant
strength. Better than average for this
location and mix.

(Dun and Bradstreet reports will be
obtained to give a credit rating)

Length of Lease*
Some leases greater than 5 years, a few
as long as 10.

Gross Yield® 5.42% (assuming fully occupied). This
reflects the demand in this sector of the
market
Management & Maintenance Costs® Will be outsourced as currently is the
case.

Conformity to MHCLG Guidelines’
Within District and therefore within the
Council’s strategy

Any Specific Problems Identified® The amount of Capital Expenditure that
is needed on the building needs
understanding in greater detail, after
the bid process.

Key to Specific Factors:

1. Location: Population of Catchment area, economic vibrancy of town, known or anticipated market demand,
proximity to Motorway, or major A road, proximity to other similar properties (town centre/out-of-town).

2. Property Condition: Date of construction & any imminent or significant refurbishment (forecast capital
spend), modernization requirements.

3. Credit Rating of Tenant(s): Dun & Bradstreet Credit Rating, annual accounts.

4. Length of Lease: No. of unexpired years, break points, bank guarantees, rent reviews.

5. Gross Yield: After any head rent (Leasehold only), Net Yield: After maintenance, management, insurance,
interest, capital repayments, acquisition costs

6. Management & Maintenance Costs: No. of tenants, ease of in-house management, probable on-going
property maintenance requirements.

Page 43



7. Conformity to MHCLG Guidelines [04/2018] : Especially with respect to location: i.e. Within District / Devon

/ LEP Area

8. Any Specific Problems Identified, following legal & technical Due Diligence. E.g. Anomalies in Title Deed,
restrictive Use Classes, local competition, construction, or refurbishment incomplete.

Property Details and Address

Owner

Unknown

Tenant Details

XYZ Tenants

Purchase Price

£3,500,000 (bid price to be agreed with agent, but no higher
than this figure)

Probable Exchange Date

Date to be inserted

Probable Completion Date

Date to be inserted

Net Annual
Rental Income

*Based on full occupancy

Rent payable: £203,166
Less

Interest repayments on PWLB borrowing  (99,243)
MRP on Annuity basis (36,786)
(Capital repayment on borrowing)

Repairs and Maintenance allowance (20,317)
(10% of rent)

Net Rental Income per annum: £46,820

(Note this falls to £34,000 if One Unit is vacant)

Amount to be Borrowed:
(Purchase Price plus 7%)

£3,745,000
(£3,500,000 + 7%)

Gross Yield (based on rent of
£203,166)

Gross Yield of 5.42%
Net Yield of 1.25%

Loan Period & Interest Rate:

50 years Interest rate TBC

Confirmation of Useful Life of the
Building (for loan length purposes
and MRP calculations)

TBC

Details of acquisition costs

Stamp Duty Land Tax £164,500
Consultant 1: £17,500
Consultant 2: £10,000 (estimate)
Consultant 3: £13,000 (estimate)
Estimated Costs £205,000

How the property meets the
Council’s multiple objectives
under the Council’s strategy

Economic Regeneration — refurbished building and improved
building stock leading to;
Business Growth

In line with the Member approved strategy of being within
the District.

Debt Proportionality
considerations

Debt of £3.745 million represents a multiplier of XYZ of the
Council’s Net Cost of Services of £XYZ million.

Lease expiry details:

Ranges from 6 months to 10 years.

Tenant Strength details:
(D & B rating)

Ranges: 5A1 - N1

Guarantor’s details:
( D & B rating)

There is no Guarantor.

Page 44




Exit Strategy

Buying to hold in the long term. Demand in the sector for
units of this size is high and it is anticipated that the estate
will be run as is for the foreseeable, with a gradual leaving
and replacement of tenants.

Option to Tax the property for
VAT

No action to date (but will be Opted to Tax)

Insurance - Date added to
Council’s Insurance cover

Separate Insurance cover would be procured for the
building.

Assets CoP Summary &
Recommendation

At this stage there is a question mark over the quantum of
capital expenditure required and over what timescale. This
will be clarified should the Council’s bid be successful (and
the bid will be subject to TDD).

The expectation is that tenants will leave over time, to be
replaced by new ones, so there will be times when the
estate is not full. It would be suggested that over the long
term one unit being empty might be the norm at any one
time.

Management of the estate would need to be outsourced, as
would the service charge element.

The price is reflective of the market, but will make achieving
the Council’s portfolio target a challenge, and there may be
a re-balance of the value of the estate in the short to
medium term. This needn’t be a concern unless the Council
wishes to liquidate the asset at that point.

$151 / Finance CoP Summary &
Recommendation

A bid is supported up to £3.5m (just below 0.94% net yield if
one property is vacant). The Capital Expenditure
requirements need understanding (assumed to be £100K).
Note the Net Rental Income per annum falls to £34,000 if
One Unit is vacant.

Legal Summary &
Recommendation

TBC

Page 45




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C - lllustrative Borrowing Requirements - SHDC

Commercial Property Acquisitions

Acquisition 1 5,000,000 Example Only
Acquisition 2 250,000 Example Only
Acquisition 3 250,000 Example Only
Sub-Total Acquisitions 5,500,000

Commercial Developments

Project 1 5,000,000 Example Only
Project 2 6,700,000 Example Only
Project 3 780,000 Example Only
Project 4 9,310,000 Example Only
Project 5 5,000,000 Example Only
Project 6 24,700,000 Example Only
U Project 6 2,350,000 Example Only
2 Pproject 7 660,000
(D Sub-Total Developments 54,500,000
D
~ —
TOTAL Acquisition & Development 60,000,000

Other Borrowing Requirements

Community Led Housing* 6,500,000 Example - Short term (2 Years) only to cover construction
Community Housing Affordable Rental 1,500,000 Longterm borrowing for affordable rent (1st scheme example)
Leisure Fusion contract 5,500,000 Contractual Commitment
Leisure - Totnes 1,500,000 Based on delegated authority to fund Totnes improvements
Sub Total 'Other 15,000,000
TOTAL 75,000,000

*GROSS REQUIREMENT, before any sales receipts
Borrowing already taken out (shown in Yellow) 5,500,000



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8

Report to: Council

Date: 27 September 2018

Title: Medium Term Financial Strategy for
2019/20 to 2023/24

Portfolio Area: Clir R Tucker - Annual Budget

Wards Affected: All

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: Joint Development Management
Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Urgent Decision: N Approval and Y
clearance obtained:

Author: Lisa Buckle Role: Strategic Finance Lead
(S151 Officer)

Contact: Tel. 01803 861413
Email: lisa.buckle@swdevon.gov.uk

RECOMMENDATION
It is RECOMMENDED that the Council:

i) Notes the forecast budget gap for 2019/20 of £0.638
million and the position for future years;

ii) Notes the current options identified and timescales for
closing the budget gap in 2019/20 and future years,
to achieve long term financial sustainability;

iili) Approves Recommendations 1 to 10 as set out within
the body of this report.

1. Executive summary
1.1 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Position (MTFP) is based on a
financial forecast over a rolling five year timeframe to 2023/24.

1.2 The Council, along with other Ilocal authorities, has faced
unprecedented reductions in Government funding since the
Comprehensive Spending Review 2010. Between 2009/10 and
2019/20, the Council’s Core Government funding has reduced by £4
million.

Page 49


mailto:lisa.buckle@swdevon.gov.uk

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

South Hams has continued to work in partnership with West Devon
Borough Council which has allowed South Hams District Council to
achieve annual savings of £3.9 million and more importantly protect all
statutory front line services.

Between both Councils the annual shared services savings being
achieved are over £6 million. However, the Councils continue to face
considerable financial challenges as a result of uncertainty in the wider
economy and constraints on public sector spending.

South Hams District Council is currently forecasting a £0.638m
budget gap in 2019/20. This is lower than the £0.995m budget gap for
2019/20 predicted in July 2018, due to the Government announcing in
a technical consultation that its preference is to eliminate negative
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) for 2019/20. The MTFS (September
18) assumes that negative RSG will be reduced to zero in 2019/20 -
which improves the Council’s budget position by £0.4m for 2019/20.
This betterment has already been factored into the September
modelling in arriving at the forecast budget gap of £0.638m for
2019/20. It is assumed that negative RSG remains in some form (e.g.
as part of the business rates baseline reset) from 2020/21 onwards.

In 2020/21 the Council is facing a further budget gap of £0.865m (on
top of the £0.638m in 2019/20). Therefore the budget gap over the next
two years is in the region of £1.5 million.

It is important to note that this Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out
the budget strategy for the Council for the next five years, with annual
reviews and updates when items are further known or are announced
by the Government (e.g. the Provisional Finance Settlement will be
announced by the Government in December 2018).

This report is the starting point for developing a meaningful five year
strategy that sets out the strategic intention for all of the different
strands of funding available to the Council. The Council will then be
able to rely on this to inform future decisions.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was considered by the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 6" September 2018. Minute O &
S.33/18 refers. The Panel was of the view that any recommendations it
made on External Borrowing levels would be pre-empting the views of
the Audit Committee. As a result, the Panel did not feel it appropriate to
make a recommendation on this part of the MTFS at this time. The
Overview & Scrutiny Panel agreed with the other nine recommendations
set out in the report.

The Audit Committee considered the Commercial Property Strategy on

6t September 2018. Minute A.17/18 refers. The view of the Audit
Committee was that, subject to suitable governance arrangements

Page 50



1.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.2

3.3

being in place, a total borrowing limit of £60 million (capped at £30
million before 30 April 2019) be agreed for the Commercial Property
Strategy.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was also considered by
the Executive on 13 September. Minute E.30/18 refers. It was
recommended to Council to approve recommendations 1 to 10 as set
out in the presented report.

THE FOUR YEAR SETTLEMENT FUNDING OFFER

During 2016/17 the Government offered Local Authorities the
opportunity to apply for a four year agreed funding settlement, subject
to the production of an efficiency plan. The Council applied and was
accepted for the four year agreement.

From 2018/19 onwards, the Council has received no Government
funding (Revenue Support Grant) and the Council will need to be self-
sufficient. Although the four year settlement offered no Revenue
Support Grant, it did guarantee the Council its allocations of Rural
Services Delivery Grant over the four year period, which equated to
£0.33m in 2019/20.

District Councils such as South Hams have also suffered a large
reduction in their New Homes Bonus funding (£0.5 million in 17/18) due
to the number of years payments are being reduced, from six years to
five years in 17/18 and to four years from 18/19 onwards. The funding
being released is to contribute towards adult social care costs, a
function carried out by Unitary and County Councils.

Between 2009/10 and 2019/20 the Council’'s Core Government funding
will have reduced by £4 million annually.

ASSUMPTIONS FOR FINANCIAL MODELLING PURPOSES

The National Employers made a final pay offer covering 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2020. The majority of employees (those on salaries starting
at £19,430 p.a.) have received an uplift of 2% on 1/4/18 and a further
2% on 1/4/19, with those on lower salaries receiving higher increases.
The cost of this was £255,000 in 2018/19 and a further £280,000 in
2019/20. This has been reflected in Appendix A. The Medium Term
Financial Strategy is not an expression of Council Policy on pay
awards, but a means of ensuring an appropriate provision is made as
part of the overall financial planning of the Council.

The report assumes inflation will run at 2.5% over the five year period.
The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) was 2.5% in July 2018.

The predicted interest rate forecast from our treasury management
advisors, Link Services, is that interest rates will remain at 0.75% up to

Page 51



3.4

3.5

4.1

Rural Services
Delivery Grant [ \
- S €

September 2019. By December 2020 the bank base rate is predicted to
increase to 1.5%.

An increase in council tax of the higher of £5 or 2.99% for the next five
years has been modelled for council tax purposes. This would equate
to a Band D council tax for South Hams of £165.42 in 2019/20 as
shown in Appendix B and equates to a council tax increase of 3.12%.

It has been assumed that the number of properties within the District
will increase by 450 per annum from 2019/20 to 2023/24 — this is an
increase of approximately 1.2%.

THE COMPONENTS MAKING UP A MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL
STRATEGY (MTFS)

The Diagram below in 4.2 sets out all of the component parts which
constitute the make-up of a Medium Term Financial Strategy. Appendix
C goes through each of these components in detail and makes
recommendations where appropriate. The recommendations are
summarised below.

Items in Green denote those elements where the Council has a large
degree of control over the setting of policies and strategies. Items in
Amber denote those components of the MTFS where the Council has a
degree of control. Red items signal components where the Council has
hardly any control over funding allocations which are decided by the
Government and future cost pressures which can largely be outside of
the Council’s control or influence.

Net Budget £8.9 million 2018/2019

Corporate

:::::::

Strategy

Council Tax

W FutureC
Procurement
Pressures

Business Rates Income P’ﬂl’tnemhlp
Generation/ Funding/
Negative R5G — Grants
Fees and Review of
Charges Assets

Treasury
Management

J Borrowing

Page 52



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Council Tax

Recommendation 1: To set the strategic intention to raise council tax
by the maximum allowed in any given year, without triggering a council
tax referendum, to enable continued delivery of services. The actual
council tax for any given year will be decided by Council in the
preceding February.

Business Rates
The income from Business Rates which South Hams District Council
retained in 2017-18 was the funding baseline of £1,800,829. The
Council was not part of the Devon Pool in 2017-18 due to the risk of
business rates appeals, but South Hams is part of the Business Rates
Pilot in 2018-19.

Business Rates Pilot for 2019-20

Modelling which has been carried out on the application for 19/20 Pilot
status shows that South Hams could gain approximately £250,000 of
the £10 million projected 19/20 Devon Pilot gain. This is approximately
half of the 18/19 predicted SHDC gain of £575,000. This additional
funding of £250,000 would be a one-off amount for 2019/20 only.

Recommendation 2: To submit an application for Pilot status for
2019/20 and to agree a 40% District/34% Devon County Council/1%
Fire split for the 75% scheme, with the agreement to remain part of the
Devon Business Rates Pool for 2019/20 if the Pilot bid is not
successful.

Recommendation 3: To actively lobby Central Government and Devon
MPs to support a 2019/20 Devon Pilot bid

Recommendation 4: To actively lobby and engage with the
Government, Devon MPs and other sector bodies such as the District
Councils Network and the Rural Services Network, for a realistic
business rates baseline to be set for the Council for 2020 onwards.

Negative Revenue Support Grant

The negative RSG currently included within the Council’s funding
allocation for 2019/20 amounts to £399,900. If the Government
eliminates this, as an outcome of the consultation process, the
Council’s budget position is bettered by £400K for 2019/20 (this
betterment has already been assumed in the modelling in Appendices
A and B). The Council is hopeful the Government will reverse it, as this
is the Government’s preferred option in the consultation.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy assumes that negative RSG
will be reduced to zero in 2019/20 and this reduced funding pressure
has been built into the latest modelling set out in this report. If the
position changes, the MTFS will be updated to reflect this. It is

Page 53



4.8

4.9

4.10

assumed that negative RSG remains in some form (e.g. as part of the
business rates baseline reset) from 2020/21 onwards.

Recommendation 5: That SHDC responds to the technical consultation
in support of the Government eliminating Negative Revenue Support
Grant and continues to lobby for Rural Services Delivery Grant
allocations which adequately reflect the cost of rural service provision.

New Homes Bonus

The Government released a consultation in July which stated their
intention to increase the 0.4% baseline. They have also stated that
2019-20 represents the final year of NHB funding and from 2020
onwards they will explore how to incentivise housing growth most
effectively and will consult on this issue.

Recommendation 6: To use £500,000 of New Homes Bonus funding
for 2019-20 to fund the revenue base budget and then to reduce to
£400,000 by 2020-21 and £250,000 by 2021-22 for modelling
purposes.

Reserves Policy

Current Levels of Reserves: £1.849 million Unearmarked Reserves and
Earmarked Reserves of £8.321 million (excluding the Business Rates
Volatility Earmarked Reserve). The Council’'s Net Budget is £8.98
million for 2018/19. Therefore Unearmarked Reserves equate to 20%
of the Council’s Net Budget.

Recommendation 7: That the annual level of contributions to
Earmarked Reserves (£722,300 as per Appendix E) and the adequacy
of the existing level of Unearmarked Reserves (£1.8 million) and
Earmarked Reserves (£8.3 million) is reviewed by Members as part of
the budget setting process. This will assess the adequacy of Reserves
levels, in light of future plans and pressures.

Pensions Strategy (Actuarial Valuation)

Recommendation 8 - That the Council takes specialist pension advice
on the options for the Council’'s Pension position (informing the
actuarial valuation), with the aim of reducing the current deficit
contributions, increasing affordability, whilst best managing the pension
deficit. It is also recommended that the Council has early dialogue with
DCC and the actuaries with regards to the Council having an input into
the actuarial assumptions used for the 2019 Actuarial Valuation.
Options will be taken back to the Council’s Audit Committee in January
19 to consider.

Page 54



4.11

412

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

Treasury Management and Borrowing Strategy

The Council has taken external treasury management advice on the
Council’s overall borrowing levels and debt levels and this advice is
attached in Exempt Appendix G. Their recommendation is that the
Council limits its overall borrowing envelope for its whole operations
and services to £75 million. This advice is based on a range of
benchmarking of indices that they have undertaken. Borrowing needs
to be proportionate and affordable and with always having regard to the
risks involved in the repayment of the debt.

Recommendation 9 — That the Council sets an Upper Limit on External
Borrowing (for all Council services) as part of the Medium Term
Financial Strategy of £75 million as per Exempt Appendix G.

Future Cost Pressures

Recommendation 10 - To continue with the Local Government terms
and conditions of employment Green Book for at least 2019/20. To
review all options for reducing staff costs by varying terms from the
Green Book from 2020/21, with an initial report back by the end of
2018/19.

Income Generation/Savings and Fees and Charges

The Council’'s Extended Leadership Team have been directed by the
Executive to present further budget options to Members for income
generation/savings/reduced expenditure, as part of the Budget Setting
Workshop arranged for Thursday 11th October, taking into
consideration the Council’s corporate strategy.

Procurement

The Council is currently procuring its waste collection, recycling and
cleansing services through a competitive dialogue process. The latest
report was to Council on 26" July. Council Minute 25/18 refers. The
procurement process will now continue to the ‘Final Solutions’ stage,
with a further final report being brought to the Council meeting of 6th
December 2018. Members will decide at this stage whether or not to
award a contract. Any financial implications are not included in the
Modelling in Appendices A and B.

Partnership Funding/Grants

The Community Task & Finish Group has proposed funding reductions
of £32,316 to Partnerships (South Devon CVS and the South Devon
AONB). This was considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel on
6t September 2018 and the Executive on 13" September and is
recommended to Council as part of the budget process.

Review of Assets

The Council’s Asset Base is £75 million at 31 March 2018. The Council
will continually review and challenge its asset base in order to deliver
the optimum value for money from the Council’s Assets.

Page 55



4.17 On 14th June 2018, the Executive considered a report on Council

Owned Asset Investment and Development opportunities. The Council
will prepare detailed business cases on the opportunities in the report
and report back to Members. Members will then be asked to attach an
order of prioritisation for delivery to the business cases.

5 BUDGET PRESSURES, SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION

5.1 Financial modelling has been undertaken for the next five years to
predict the Council’s financial situation for the short and medium term.

5.2 Appendix A to the Medium Term Financial Position sets out the
Budget Pressures forecast for the next five years and the additional
savings and income forecast. These figures in Appendix A show the
changes to the existing base budget.

(As set out 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24
in Appendix £ £ £ £ £

A)

Cost 1,042,500 860,000 385,000 | 335,000 | 335,000
Pressures

(Reduction)/ (458,916) 40,000 137,000 | 166,000 | 100,000
Increase in

contribution to

Earmarked

Reserves

Savings and (157,000) | (286,000) | (145,000) | (76,000) -
additional

income

6. OVERALL POSITION — BUDGET GAP

6.1  Appendices A and B illustrates the overall financial forecast for the
forthcoming five years. The Council’s Net Budget is £8.9 million in
2018/19. A Summary forecast is shown below of the potential budget
situation if all of the budget pressures and the savings and income
generation in Appendix A were approved. It also shows the situation if
Council Tax is increased by the higher of 2.99% or £5 (Appendix B).

6.2 The following table illustrates the predicted budget gap from 2019/20
onwards for the Council as shown in Appendices A and B:

Cumulative | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | Total

Budget £ £ £ £ £ Aggregated

Gap Budget Gap
£

Modelling in | 638,348 1,503,674 | 1,654,447 | 1,742,691 | 1,829,803 | 7,368,963

Appendix B

(assumes no

—-ve RSG

in 2019/20

and no

Pilot)

Page 56




6.3

In the modelling in Appendix B, the total budget gap is £638,348 in
2019/20 and this is predicted to rise to £1,503,674 in 2020/21 (the
£1,503,674 assumes the budget gap in 19/20 of £638,348 has not
been closed). The aggregated Budget Gap is £7.4 million over the five

years.

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY AND TIMESCALES

The Council is progressing various options for closing the budget gap

in 2019/20 and future years,

to achieve

long term financial

sustainability. The table below sets out a timescale for those options

and the various strands that the Council is exploring.

Option

Possible
Budget
Impact

Timescale

Pensions Strategy

The Council is obtaining specialist
pensions advice on its Pensions
position and progress on this will be
reported to the Audit

Committee. The Council will look at
options to reduce its revenue
contribution for pensions, to aid
affordability.

Up to
£200,000

Report to the
Audit Committee
in January 2019.

Waste Procurement

The Council is currently in a waste
procurement process through
competitive dialogue. The
procurement process will now
continue to the ‘Final Solutions’ stage,
with a further final report being
brought to the Council meeting of 6%
December 2018. Any financial
implications of this are not included in
the Modelling in Appendices A and B.

To be
quantified

Report to the
Council meeting
6t December
2018

Council Tax Reduction Scheme
The grant to Town and Parish
Councils has been reduced by 9.85%
over the four year period of the
finance settlement. Members have an
option over whether to withdraw
funding in 2020/21.

£74,000
for
2020/21
onwards

Executive/Council
February
2019.

Asset Review
On 14 June 2018, the Executive
considered a report on Council

To be
quantified

As soon as the
work on the

Page 57




Option Possible | Timescale
Budget
Impact
Owned Asset Investment and business cases is
Development opportunities. The complete.
Council will prepare detailed business
cases on the opportunities in the
report and report back to Members.
Commercial Property Strategy To be Council 27t
There is a separate report on the quantified | September
Council agenda with regard to a
Commercial Property Strategy.
Savings identified by the Extended
Leadership Team (ELT) To be Members’ Budget
The ELT held a Budget session on | quantified | Workshop
15t August. ELT were directed by the arranged for 11t
Executive to present further budget October
options to Members for Income
Generation/savings/reduced
expenditure, as part of the Budget
Setting Workshop arranged for
Thursday 11% October, taking into
consideration the Council’s corporate
strategy.
Funding Options
Negative Revenue Support Grant The Anticipated to be
The Council is hopeful the Medium known by
Government will reverse Negative Term December 2018
RSG in 2019/20, as this is the Financial when the Draft
Government’s preferred option in the | Strategy Local
consultation. The Medium Term assumes Government
Financial Strategy assumes that that Finance
Negative RSG will be reduced to zero | negative Settlement is
in 2019/20. It is also assumed that RSG will | published.
negative RSG remains in some form | be
(e.g. as part of the business rates reduced to
baseline reset) from 2020/21 Nil in
onwards. 19/20
Business Rates Pilot status for
2019/20
If the Devon Business Rates Pilot £250,000 December 2018
were to be successful for 2019/20, in 2019/20 | when the Draft
this could give further one-off extra (one-year | Local
business rates income in 19/20. only) Government
Based on a 75% growth retention Finance

Page 58




7.2

Option Possible | Timescale
Budget
Impact
scheme, this could yield up to Settlement is
£250,000. published.
New Homes Bonus allocations for
2019/20 NHB allocations
The NHB allocation for 2019/20 is Upto will be
anticipated to be around £880,000, of | £380,000 announced
which £500,000 is currently projected around
to be used to fund the Revenue Base December 2018.
Budget. The Council could chose to Decisions around
use a higher amount to fund the its use will be
Revenue Base Budget but this would made as part of
leave little funding available for the the Budget
Capital Programme. Process. It is
highly likely the
baseline will be
increased from
0.4%.
Contributions to Earmarked
Reserves
The Council could decide not to To be To be decided as
contribute some of the amounts per assessed | part of the
annum into Earmarked Reserves. Budget Process
This will be considered in more detail
as part of the budget process.
Contributions to Earmarked Reserves
are shown in Appendix E.
Use of Reserves as a temporary | To be To be decided as
measure assessed | part of the

The Council has £1.85 million in
Unearmarked Reserves. The Council
could temporarily utilise Reserves to
balance an element of the 2019/20
budget, whilst longer term solutions
are being implemented. This would
be a very short term solution though.

Budget Process

The diagram below shows the Government timetable of key dates.

The key dates will be in May 2019 when more details will be known
about the Funding Reform and Spending Review 2019. In November
2019, the baseline funding for business rates and the impact of

transitional arrangements will be known.

Page 59




8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

JAN 2019

Settlement
2019/20
and the

road ahead

SEPT 2019 MAY 2019
Budgeting for 2020/21 Funding reform and SR19

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 AND PRUDENTIAL BORROWING
The Capital Programme is set by the Council annually and may be
funded by sale proceeds from the disposal of assets (capital receipts),
external grants and contributions, directly from revenue or from
borrowing. Capital Bids are being requested from Project Managers
and a proposed Capital Programme for 2019/20 onwards will be
presented to Members in a future report.

Commercial Property Acquisition Strategy — A separate report is on
the Council agenda for a Commercial Property acquisition strategy.
Purchases made within the strategy will be capital expenditure and will
be in addition to the projects outlined in the annual Capital Programme.

The Audit Committee considered the Commercial Property Strategy on
6t September 2018. Minute A.17/18 refers. The view of the Audit
Committee was that, subject to suitable governance arrangements
being in place, a total borrowing limit of £60 million (capped at £30
million before 30 April 2019) be agreed for the Commercial Property
Strategy. This is based on the independent borrowing advice shown in
Exempt Appendix G.

Prudential Borrowing - The Council will consider the use of prudential
borrowing to support capital investment to deliver services and will
ensure that the full costs of borrowing are taken into account when
investment decisions are made.

A Recommendation has been made as part of this report on the overall
Borrowing Limit (£75 million) for the Medium Term Financial Strategy,
with £60 million being for the Commercial Property Strategy and £15
million for other borrowing requirements.

Page 60



Sensitivity Analysis and Risk Analysis

9.1  The Council carries out sensitivity analysis and risk analysis of its
Budget Proposals and this is shown in Appendix F.

10 NEXT STEPS

10.1 This Medium Term Financial Strategy is the starting point for
developing a meaningful five year strategy that sets out the strategic
intention for all of the different strands of funding available to the
Council. The Council will then be able to rely on this to inform future
decisions. The different elements that make up a Medium Term
Financial Strategy are shown in the diagram below. This report is
asking Members to set the strategic intention for each of these
components of the MTFS.

10.2 Section 7 sets out the potential timescales against each of the areas

identified.

11. IMPLICATIONS

Implications Relevant | Details and proposed measures to address

to
proposals
Y/N

Legal/Governance | Y The preparation of the Budget annually is evidence
that the Council has considered and taken into
account all relevant information and proper advice
when determining its financial arrangements in
accordance with statutory requirements, and in
particular, that it will set a lawful budget.

Appendix G to this report is considered exempt under
paragraph 3 of schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 in that it concerns the financial
or business affairs of the Council. The public interest
has been assessed and it is considered that, the
public interest is better served by non-disclosure to
the press and public.

Financial Y The financial implications are summarised in
Appendices A and B of the report. Appendix B shows
that in 2019/20, the Council has a predicted £0.638m
budget gap.

Risk Y Each of the budget options taken forward by
Members will consider the risks of the option.

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications

Page 61




Equality and Comprehensive Impact Assessments are completed
Diversity for the budget proposals.

Safeguarding None directly arising from this report.

Community None directly arising from this report.

Safety, Crime and

Disorder

Health, Safety and None directly arising from this report.

Wellbeing

Other implications None directly arising from this report.

Supporting Information

Appendices:

Appendix A — Budget pressures and savings

Appendix B —Modelling of the MTFS Position

Appendix C — Components of a MTFS

Appendix D — Schedule of Reserves (Earmarked and Unearmarked)
Appendix E — Contributions to Reserves

Appendix F — Sensitivity Analysis

EXEMPT Appendix G — Borrowing Advice from Treasury Management
Advisers

Page 62




BUDGET PROPOSALS 2019/20 SEPTEMBER 2018 APPENDIX A
(This shows the changes to the existing Base Budget)

BASE Yr1 Yr2 Yr3 Yr4 Yr5s
201819 2019/20  2020/21 2021/22  2022/23 2023/24
BUDGET PRESSURES £ £ £ £ £ £
Inflation and increases on goods and services 220,000 220,000 220,000 220,000 220,000 220,000
Torr Quarry Transfer Station 137,500 142,500
Triennial Pension revaluation 75,000
Salaries - provision for pay award at 2% 255,000 280,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
National Living Wage and National Insurance 60,000 50,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Devon aligned service for waste 175,000 175,000
Implementation costs for Devon aligned service for waste (one-off) 125,000 (125,000)
Reduction in recycling income 125,000
Blue and Clear recycling bag processing (safe working practice requirement) 75,000
Haulage contract 60,000
Salaries provision for steady state review 30,000
Redqction in Housing Benefit administration subsidy and Council Tax Support 20.000 15,000
Admin Grant
Planning - legal fees 20,000
Cost of lease renewal (car park lease) 23,000
Car parking costs - collection fees 25,000
ICT future service provision 150,000
ICT support contracts - increase the budget to better align to actual expenditure 40,000 50,000
Reduce the income target for income from business rated domestic properties for
; : : : 40,000
trade waste collection - to reflect actual income being achieved
IT - Replace ageing network switches (£15K) and fixed line to Ivybridge Depot
21,000
(£6K)
Waste service - Train staff to be HGV drivers 16,000
Fees and Charges report - review of Taxi Licensing fees - Licensing Committee on 11.200
11 January ’
Increase the contribution to Ivybridge Ring and Ride 2,000
TOTAL BUDGET PRESSURES 895,700 1,042,500 860,000 385,000 335,000 335,000

Changes to contributions to Earmarked Reserves

Reduce the contribution from the New Homes Bonus Reserve (£641,084 in

2018/19 - assumes a contribution of £500,000 in 19/20 with reduced contributions (91,503) 141,084 100,000 150,000 100,000 100,000
thereafter e.g. to £400,000 in 2020/21 and £250,000 21/22)

Vehicle Fleet Replacement Reserve (Table 6 Executive report 20/10/16) (197,000) (13,000) 66,000 0
Contribution to Economic Regeneration Projects Reserve

(Business Rates Pilot gain). This contribution is one-off for 2018/19 only. AEE000  [A700a)

Contribution to Planning Policy and Major Developments Reserve (shows annual 25000 25.000

contribution increasing by £25,000 per annum) : *

Reduce contributicn from the Strategic Issues Reserve as the reserve is Nil 7,000

Transformation Project (T18) - Approved at 11 December 2014 Council

Contribution to Strategic Change Reserve to meet pension strain costs (75,000) (150,000) (60,000)

Total changes in contributions to Earmarked Reserves 143,497 (458,916) 40,000 137,000 166,000 100,000

Page 63



BUDGET PROPOSALS 2019/20 SEPTEMBER 2018 APPENDIX A
(This shows the changes to the existing Base Budget)

SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION IDENTIFIED BASE Yr1 Yr2 Yr3 Yrd Yrs

201819 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£ £ £ £ £ £

Increase Batson Boat Storage Fees (6,100)

Increase Winter Boat Storage Fees (8,200)

Income from fees and charges report (Parks, Open Spaces and £200 for play area

: : 4 \ : 4 (3,000)

inspect and insure service to community groups and Town and Parish Councils

Income from fees and charges report (Environmental Health fees £15,300 plus (30,300)

Planning fees of £15,000) '

Public Conveniences - pay on entry (16,000) (20,000)

Develop Beach Huts (31,000)

Food hygiene rating scheme revisits (1,250)

Increase in car parking charges (2%) (38,000)

Additional car parking income - increase income projection to reflect actual income
: : (70,000)
being achieved

Car Parking - Withdrawal of weekly parking tickets (15,000)
Duty Planning - charged appointment basis - (5,000)
Savings from re-procurement of contracts (e.g. leisure contract) 0 (22,000) (165,000) (105,000} (76,000) 0
Planning fee income (110,000)
Income from commercial developments (30,000)
Licensing income - shellfish expert certificates (30,000)

Housing Benefit recoveries of overpayments - increase income projection to

reflect actual income being achieved (40,000)

Dartmouth Lower Ferry (75,000) (25,000)

Reduce RNL! Contracted Lifeguarding provision (40,000)
T g dosr (82000 o (g0 (a0o0n) (0
Public Conveniences - obtain 75% cost contribution from cafes (10,000)

Other budget savings (e.g. concessions) (4,000)

Reduce partnership grant funding to the CVS and South Devon AONB - report to

the Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 6th September 2018 e B

Cessation of accepting cash and cheques (and other banking changes) (35,000)

Savings from the re-procurement of the Insurance contract (77,000)

Saving on External Audit Fees (10,000)

Cessation of South Devon Green Infrastructure Partnership (£6,500) (6,500)

Council Tax reduction scheme - 9.85% reduction in Town and Parish Grant (9,000) (8,000)

TOTAL SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION (689,350) (157,000) (286,000) (145,000) (76,000) 0

Page 64



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY APPENDIX B
Line Appendix B - Council Tax is increased by the higher of £5 or 2.99% each year BASE Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5
No. Modelling for the financial years 2019/20 onwards 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£ £ £ £ £ £
1 Base budget brought forward 8,346,074| 8,983,194| 8,771,429| 8,520,104| 8,746,331| 9,083,086
2 Budget pressures (as per Appendix A) 895,700 1,042,500 860,000 385,000 335,000 335,000
3 Savings already identified (as per Appendix A) (689,350) (157,000) (286,000) (145,000) (76,000) 0
4 Changes in contributions to Earmarked Reserves (App A) 143,497 (458,916) 40,000 137,000 166,000 100,000
Reverse Use of Reserves to close 2017/18 Budget gap
5 Transfer from Budget Surplus Contingency Earmarked Reserve 287,273
6 Projected Net Expenditure: 8,983,194 9,409,778 9,385,429| 8,897,104 9,171,331 9,518,086
Funded By:-
(See Note 1 below regarding New Homes Bonus funding)
7 Council Tax income - Modelling a £5 increase in 2019/20 6,072,207| 6,335,905 6,604,104| 6,880,331| 7,167,086 7,464,974
8 Collection Fund Surplus 73,000 112,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000
9 Revenue Support Grant (RSG - Nil from 2018/19 onwards) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Localised Business Rates (baseline funding level - includes Rural
10 Services Delivery Grant of £408,055 in 2018/19 due to Pilot status) 2,262,987 1,896,073 1,946,000 1,996,000] 2,046,000 2,096,000
11 Tariff/Top Up Adjustment amount (negative RSG) (400,000) (500,000) (500,000)|  (500,000)
12 Business Rates Pilot Gain plus estimated growth for 2018/19 575,000
13 Business Rates - estimated growth 100,000
14 Rural Services Delivery Grant 0 327,451 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
15 Total Projected Funding Sources 8,983,194 8,771,429 8,520,104 8,746,331| 9,083,086 9,430,974
Budget Gap per year
16 (Projected Expenditure line 6 - Projected Funding line 15) 0 638,348 865,325 150,773 88,244 87,112
Actual Predicted Cumulative Budget Gap 0 638,348| 1,503,674| 1,654,447| 1,742,691| 1,829,803
Aggregated Budget Gap (if no action is taken in each individual
ear to close the budget gap annuall
4 et gap V) 0 638348 2,142,022 3,796,469 5,539,160 7,368,963
An assumption of an additional 450 Band D equivalent properties per year has been
Modelling Assumptions: included in the Tax Base and modelling above for 2019/20 onwards
Council Tax (Band D) (Modelling the higher of £5 or a 2.99% increase) 160.42 165.42 170.42 175.51 180.75 186.15
Council Tax Base 37,851.93| 38,301.93] 38,751.93] 39,201.93| 39,651.93| 40,101.93

Note 2 - New Homes Bonus Funding

The modelling for 2019/20 includes a contribution of £500,000 from New Homes
Bonus funding to fund the Base Budget. This is shown in Appendix C and

Appendix A shows the movement between years of the funding from

New Homes Bonus. Funding from NHB has decreased from £641,084 in 18/19 to

£500,000 in 19/20 - a decrease of £141,084.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

* Average Band D total bill was £1,822 for 2018-19 (SHDC Band D of £160.42
equates to a 9% share of the council tax bill)

9% South Hams District Council
10% Police and Crime Commissioner for: refuse collection and kerbside recycling,

for Devon and Comnwall housing, planning, street cleaning, leisure
for: law and order and crime reduction

5% Devon and Somerset
Fire and Rescue Authority

for: fire prevention, fire and rescue

3% Town and Parish Councils
for: local amenities

5% Devon County Council - additional precept to fund adult social care

e 2018/19 increase of £5 to £160.42 (3.2%) — a 1% increase raises £61,000

* Government Council Tax referendum threshold higher of £5 or 2.99% for 2018-19
(2.99% was set to track CPI inflation) — The Government are currently consulting on
applying the same thresholds for 2019-20. Latest CIP July 18 — CPI12.5%, RPI 3.2%

* The Government has not announced any plans to change the council tax system or to
carry out a council tax revaluation within the near future. In 2017/18 the Council had
43,644 properties on the Valuation List, the make of up of which was 4,966 (Band A),
8,575 (Band B), 8,533 (Band C), 7,919 (Band D), 6,643 (Band E), 3,677 (Band F),
2,995 (Band G) and 336 properties in Band H. There are more Band B properties in the
District than any other Band (representing 20%). Council Tax Reduction Scheme for
claimants will be a separate report on the September Executive agenda.

Council Tax Strategy Options: Members have options to either freeze council tax or to
raise council tax anywhere between zero and £5 (or 2.99%). Anything above £5 (or 2.99%)
currently requires a council tax referendum, which is a costly exercise. Recent funding
settlements from the Government are based on the assumption that Councils increase
council tax by the maximum allowed.

Recommendation 1: To set the strategic intention to raise council tax by the maximum
allowed in any given year, without triggering a council tax referendum, to enable the
continued delivery of services.

If this recommendation were to be agreed, it would have the following impact on council tax:

Council Tax 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
CURRENT | Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
YEAR

Band D £160.42 £165.42 £170.42 £175.51 £180.75 £186.15

£ Increase £5.00 £5.00 £5.00 £5.09 £5.24 £5.40

% Increase 3.22% 3.12% 3.02% 2.99% 2.99% 2.99%

Page 67



APPENDIX C

Creating places for @
enterprise to thrive

and business to grow

Self-sufficient local government: Business Rates Retention (BRR) of growth above
the business rates baseline. The Government introduced the BRR system in April
2013 with the aim of providing a direct link between business rates growth (economic
growth) and the money councils have to spend on local services.

The title of the scheme (Business Rates Retention) has caused public confusion — as it
implies that Councils are able to keep 40% of all of the business rates that they collect.
This is not the case. Councils are only able to keep a share of any business rates growth
above a baseline set by the Government.

The baseline is the amount of money that the Government has assessed that the Council
needs to keep to fund its services, based on a needs formula. The Baseline is around
£1.9 million for South Hams for 2019/20. Out of the total business rates of £31 million,
the Council currently keeps approximately 6 pence in every £1 (£1.8m for 17/18) to run
its services. The rest is paid back to the Government and a proportion goes to Upper
Tier Councils e.g. the County Council, to pay for their services.

There is a risk of volatility in the system because Councils are exposed to any loss of
income if businesses go into decline. The Council retains a Business Rates Volatility
Earmarked Reserve to cope with any fluctuations in business rates.

In 2013/14, Business Rates Retention of growth was introduced with a 50% scheme.
The Council has been part of a Devonwide Business Rates Pool which has included all
of the Devon District Councils (except South Hams for some of the latter years - being
15/16 onwards - due to the risk of business rates appeals), Plymouth City Council (Lead
Authority), Devon County Council and Torbay Unitary Council. The Pool has made
Pooling gains every year. The table below shows the business rates position from the
2017/18 Accounts.

Business Rates Income receivable 2017/18 (collected) £26,677,003
Add on Section 31 Grants and Small Business Rates Relief £4.,652,200
TOTAL £31,329,203
SHDC share (40% - see next page) £12,531,681
Less Tariff (amount deducted and paid to Government) £(10,705,584)
Total Business rates remaining after the Tariff (A) £1,826,097
Funding Baseline 17/18 (money retained by SHDC) (B) £1,800,829
Growth (Business Rates achieved over the Baseline) (A-B) £25,268

Levy paid of (50%) £(12,634)

Therefore the income from Business Rates which South Hams District Council
retained in 2017-18 was the funding baseline of £1,800,829. The Council was not
part of the Devon Pool in 2017-18 due to the risk of business rates appeals, but
South Hams is part of the Business Rates Pilot in 2018-19.

Page 68



APPENDIX C

Creating places for @
enterprise to thrive
and business to grow

In 2018/19 the Devon Authorities applied to the Government to be a business rates Pilot
area and Devon was chosen by the Government to be one of ten Pilot areas nationally.

Financial modelling showed that the Devon business rates area could benefit by
somewhere in the region of up to £19 million by becoming a pilot in 2018/19. This is
Councils’ share of the level of growth above the business rates baseline which is
estimated for Devon. The modelling showed that South Hams could benefit by
approximately £575,000. This is one-off additional revenue money for the year of the
pilot only (2018-19). Of this amount, £100,000 is being used to fund the revenue base
budget in 2018/19, with the remainder (£475,000) being transferred into an Economic
Regeneration Projects Earmarked Reserve, to meet the primary aims of the Pilot bid
which are to achieve higher levels of investment in economic regeneration in Devon
and encourage further business rates growth.

South Hams is a low growth area as shown overleaf (growth above baseline in 2017/18
was £25,000). South Hams is a beneficiary of the pooling and pilot arrangements as the
growth across the whole of Devon is divided up amongst all Devon Councils. In order
to share financial rewards more evenly across the Pilot area, the 2018/19 Devon Pilot
includes minimum funding levels for Districts (£0.5m) and the Unitaries/DCC (£1.5m).
SHDC benefits from the minimum funding levels.

As Council funding is more reliant on business rates income, it puts South Hams in a
more precarious position than most Councils due to its low growth and it is extremely
important that the Council remains within the Devon pooling and pilot arrangements.

The bid set out how pilot status for Devon would meet the principles of assisting
financial sustainability for the District Councils, higher levels of investment in
economic regeneration in Devon and support for Upper Tier Councils with the growing
financial cost pressures of areas such as adult social care and children’s services.

The diagram below compares the split of business rates income under the 50% scheme
(from 2013/14 to 2017/18) to the 100% scheme (Pilot status in 2018/19) to the 75%
scheme (recommendation to apply for Pilot status for 2019/20). The 75% scheme will
be rolled out nationally from 2020/21 onwards.

Split of business 50% scheme 100% scheme 75% scheme
rates income (Devon Pool) (Devon Pilot (Application for
status) Pilot status)
From 2013/14 2018/19 only For 2019/20
SHDC (see note) 40% 40% 40%
Central Government 50% Nil 25%
DCC 9% 59% 34%
Fire 1% 1% 1%
Total 100% 100% 100%
NOTE: Even though South Hams starts off with a 40% share, a tariff is then
deducted and paid over to Central Government, and therefore the amount of money
South Hams ends up keeping is its business rates baseline funding amount plus any
Pooling or Pilot Gain each year.

Page 69



APPENDIX C

Creating places for @
enterprise to thrive
and business to grow

The Government has invited applications for Business Rates Pilots for 2019/20 for
Councils to pilot 75% Business Rates Retention. The deadline is 25" September 2018.
There will be less Pilots allowed for 2019/20 than 2018/19 and less funding available.
There will be lots of competition from other areas around the country.

As shown overleaf, this does not mean that South Hams would be able to retain 75% of
its business rates income. South Hams District Council would retain its business rates
baseline income (of £1.9 million for 19/20) plus the Pilot gain.

Modelling which has been carried out on the application for 19/20 Pilot status shows
that South Hams could gain approximately £250,000 of the projected £10 million
19/20 Devon Pilot gain. This is approximately half of the 18/19 predicted SHDC gain
of £575,000. This additional funding of £250,000 would be a one-off amount for
2019/20 only.

The 2019/20 Pilots will not have a ‘no detriment’ clause applied. However the safety
net has also been increased to 95% (it is 92.5% currently), to reflect the additional risk
locally that the 75% retention introduces and this will apply pilot wide and not to
individual authorities. The modelling undertaken on the 19/20 Pilot position shows that
the Devon Councils would receive a higher level of minimum resources under a Pilot
(£224m) than under Pooling arrangements (£220m). Therefore the risks of the no
detriment clause have been considered and are assessed as low risk.

The Government will make available safety net payments if a Council’s business rates
income falls by a certain amount. This will provide support if, for example a major local
employer closes. The safety net payments will be funded by a levy paid by those
Councils whose business rates revenue increases by a disproportionate amount
compared to their needs.

Business Rates reliefs will be kept under review and the Council will actively pursue a
strategy to ensure that all businesses that should be paying are paying.

Recommendation 2: To submit an application for Pilot status for 2019/20 and to
agree a 40% District/34% Devon County Council/1% Fire split for the 75%
scheme, with the agreement to remain part of the Devon Business Rates Pool for
2019/20 if the Pilot bid is not successful.

Recommendation 3: To actively lobby Central Government and Devon MPs to
support a 2019/20 Devon Pilot bid

Page 70



APPENDIX C

Creating places for @
enterprise to thrive

and business to grow

The future for Business Rates in 2020 onwards

One of the largest financial risks that the Council is facing is around how the
Government will re-set the Business Rates Baseline for the Council in 2020 onwards
when the 75% scheme is rolled out nationally. Many factors will influence this,
including the Government’s Fairer Funding Review.

Recommendation 4: To actively lobby and engage with the Government, Devon
MPs and other sector bodies such as the District Councils Network and the Rural
Services Network, for a realistic business rates baseline to be set for the Council
for 2020 onwards.

Rural Services Delivery Grant

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

Rural Services Delivery Grant — The 2018/19 funding was increased from £65m to
£81m. This has meant the Council’s allocation increased to £408,055. The £408,055
has been built into the Council’s business rates baseline due to the Council’s Pilot
status. The amount of RSDG for 2019/20 is anticipated to be £327,451 as per Appendix
B. The Government has not indicated what RSDG allocations will be post 2019/20
(£300K assumed post 2020).

The Strategy for Rural Services Delivery Grant (RSDG) is that the Council will
continue to provide local evidence of the cost of delivering services in rural areas, in
order to lobby for higher allocations of RSDG as has happened in previous years.

Page 71



APPENDIX C

Negative Revenue Support Grant

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

Business Rates Tariff Adjustment in 2019/20 (Negative Revenue Support Grant)

* The Business Rates Tariff Adjustment is an amount in 2019/20 which increases an
authority’s tariff. It is applied where cuts to a Council’s Settlement Funding Assessment
(SFA) cannot be achieved through further cuts to the Revenue Support Grant (RSG),
as the RSG is already zero. In effect the Tariff Adjustment is negative Revenue Support
Grant which the Government chose to reflect through a change to the tariff, although
this change has nothing to do with the business rates system and has caused confusion.

* In a technical consultation issued on 24 July 2018, the Government has set out its
preferred option to eliminate Negative Revenue Support Grant in 2019/20. This would
cost the Government £153m as negative RSG affects 168 Councils (with both South
Hams and West Devon being affected).

* The negative RSG currently included within the Council’s funding allocation for
2019/20 amounts to £399,900. If the Government eliminates this, as an outcome of
the consultation process, the Council’s budget position is bettered by £400K for
2019/20. The Council is hopeful the Government will reverse it, as this is the
Government’s preferred option in the consultation.

* The Medium Term Financial Strategy assumes that negative RSG will be reduced
to zero in 2019/20 and this reduced funding pressure has been built into the latest
modelling set out in this report. If the position changes, the MTFS will be updated to
reflect this.

* Itis assumed that negative RSG remains in some form (e.g. as part of the business rates
baseline reset) from 2020/21 onwards.

Recommendation 5: That SHDC responds to the technical consultation in support of
the Government eliminating Negative Revenue Support Grant and continues to lobby
for Rural Services Delivery Grant allocations which adequately reflect the cost of
rural service provision.

Page 72



APPENDIX C

Council and residents
working together to
create strong and
empowered communities

The New Homes Bonus was introduced in 2011 to provide a clear incentive for local
authorities to encourage housing growth in their areas. It rewards local Councils for
additional homes added to the council tax base, as well as long term empty properties
brought back into use. The Council receives £1,272 per property over the baseline plus
£280 per affordable home. The Council has modelled an extra 450 properties per annum
in its Taxbase (estimate of housing growth).

New Homes Bonus

Following consultation, the Government has implemented reforms to the scheme to
sharpen the incentive for housing growth. The length of New Homes Bonus payments
was reduced in length from 6 years to 5 years in 2017-18 and 4 years from 2018-19.

From 2017-18 the Government has introduced a national baseline for housing growth
of 0.4% below which New Homes Bonus will not be paid, which the Government has
said reflects a percentage of housing that would have been built anyway. The baseline
equated to 177 Band D Equivalent properties for South Hams. So for the first 177
extra properties per annum the Council receives no NHB.

The Government released a consultation in July which stated their intention to
increase the 0.4 % baseline. They have also stated that 2019-20 represents the final
year of NHB funding and from 2020 onwards they will explore how to incentivise
housing growth most effectively, for example by using the Housing Delivery Test
results to reward delivery or incentivising plans that meet or exceed local housing need.
The Government will consult widely on any changes prior to implementation.

The table below shows possible levels of NHB (or an alternative introduced post 2020)
and how this could be used.

Amount of NHB 1,109,065 880,858 494,483 299,749
To fund Capital (e.qg. 417,700 350,000 TBA TBA
affordable housing)

To fund the Revenue 627,904 500,000 400,000 250,000
Base Budget

Other 59,000 27,000 TBA TBA
Funding 4,461 3,858 TBA TBA

remaining/shortfall

Recommendation 6: To use £500,000 of New Homes Bonus funding for 2019-20 to
fund the revenue base budget and then reduce to £400,000 by 2020-21 and
£250,000 by 2021-22 for modelling purposes.

Page 73



APPENDIX C

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

Reserves Policy

Current Levels of Reserves: £1.849 million Unearmarked Reserves and Earmarked
Reserves of £8.321 million (excluding the Business Rates Volatility Earmarked
Reserve).

The Council’s Net Budget is £8.98 million for 2018/19. Therefore Unearmarked
Reserves equate to 20% of the Council’s Net Budget.

The Council currently makes annual contributions to Earmarked Reserves of £722,300
and these are shown in Appendix E.

It is recommended that the annual level of contributions to Earmarked Reserves
(£722,300 as per Appendix E) and the adequacy of the existing level of Earmarked
Reserves (£8.3 million) is reviewed by Members as part of the budget setting process.
This will assess their adequacy in light of future plans and pressures.

Minimum level of Reserves to be held

As part of the Medium Term Financial Plan report to Members in July 2018, it was
approved to retain the same policy of maintaining a minimum level of Unearmarked
Reserves of £1.5 million. The Unearmarked Reserves (General Fund) balance of
£1.849 million stands above the minimum balance of £1.5 million and acts as a
safeguard against unforeseen financial pressures. Given the increase in financial risks
which the Council faces, the Council should consider increasing this level through a
stepped increase over the next five years, to reflect the new level of risks.

Further detail on the Council’s Unearmarked and Earmarked Reserves is set out in
Appendix D of the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Recommendation 7: That the annual level of contributions to Earmarked Reserves
(£722,300 as per Appendix E) and the adequacy of the existing level of
Unearmarked Reserves (£1.8 million) and Earmarked Reserves (£8.3 million) is
reviewed by Members as part of the budget setting process. This will assess the
adequacy of Reserves levels, in light of future plans and pressures.

Page 74



APPENDIX C

Pension Strategy (Actuarial Valuation)

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

SHDC currently pays a 14.6% employer pension contribution for staff in the Local
Government Pension Scheme. This is called the future service contribution rate. This
is the anticipated cost to the Council of the pension rights that staff will accrue in the
future and is expressed as a percentage (%) of pensionable payroll. Employees pay a
separate amount out of their salary into the Pension Fund (the employee contribution).

In addition to the 14.6%, the Council pays an annual sum of £210,000 into the Pension
Fund as a past service deficit annual contribution. This cost arises where the cost of
pension rights that have already been accrued turn out to be higher than expected. This
happens where the Fund experience differs from previous assumptions.

The Pension Fund has an Actuarial Valuation every 3 years which re-calculates the
employer contributions that need to be paid for the next three years and the deficit
contributions. Below are the results of the 2016 Actuarial Valuation. The Council is
currently paying the Deficit off over a 24 years recovery period. One option the Council
could consider is paying off some of the Deficit in a lump sum.

The Council has currently included a £75,000 cost pressure for 2020/21 for the
Triennial Pension Valuation and the Council will take specialist advice on this.

Assets £78.4 million
Liabilities £(82.3) million
Deficit £(3.9) million
Funding Level 95%
Deficit Recovery Period 24 years

Recommendation 8 - That the Council takes specialist pension advice on the
options for the Council’s Pension position (informing the actuarial valuation),
with the aim of reducing the current deficit contributions, increasing affordability,
whilst best managing the pension deficit. It is also recommended that the Council
has early dialogue with DCC and the actuaries with regards to the Council having
an input into the actuarial assumptions used for the 2019 Actuarial Valuation.
Options will be taken back to the Council’s Audit Committee in January 19 to
consider.

Page 75



APPENDIX C

Treasury Management /Borrowing Strategy

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy details its borrowing limits and
specifies approved institutes for investment, (with maximum limits), based on credit
ratings and other pertinent factors. It also publishes Prudential Indicators which set
investment and borrowing performance indicators to ensure that the Council stays
within these guidelines.

*  Borrowing Limits
The Commercial Property Strategy was considered at the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 6 September 2018 and the Audit Committee on 6™ September 2018.
Their recommendations will be considered by the Council on 27" September. It is
recommended that the borrowing limit for the Strategy is £60 million, based on the
independent borrowing advice shown in Exempt Appendix G.

A total borrowing limit of £75 million is being recommended (for all of the
Council’s operations and services), with £60 million being for the Commercial
Property Strategy and £15 million for other borrowing requirements. The Council
has already borrowed £5.5 million for Leisure Investment, which is being
reimbursed by the contractor over the life of the contract.

The Council will need to approve a revised Treasury Management Strategy which
would increase the borrowing limits of the Council (depending on the
recommendations from the various bodies), to facilitate implementation of the
commercial property strategy. Note the Council may also wish to undertake
borrowing for community housing schemes.

* The Council has taken external treasury management advice on the Council’s
overall borrowing levels and debt levels and this advice is attached in Exempt
Appendix G. Their recommendation is that the Council limits its overall borrowing
envelope for its whole operations and services to £75 million. This advice is based
on a range of benchmarking of indices that they have undertaken. Borrowing needs
to be proportionate and affordable and with always having regard to the risks
involved in the repayment of the debt. The next Treasury Management Strategy for
2019/20 (presented in December 2018) would look to increase the Operational
Boundary Limit to £75 million if Recommendation 9 below is approved. Members
are able to set a higher borrowing limit if they wish to do so. The S151 Officer’s
advice is to keep borrowing levels within the £75 million limit advised.

* The Council will have to publish new indicators for Investments in 2018-19 and
these include indicators such as the following:
Level of debt compared to Net Service Expenditure (proportionality)
(This indicator would be £75 million/ £9.2 million = a factor of 8.2)
Gross and Net income from investment portfolios
Vacancy levels and tenant exposures

Page 76



APPENDIX C

Net income from property investments, compared to interest costs on debt

Recommendation 9 — That the Council sets an Upper Limit on External
Borrowing (for all Council services) as part of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy of £75 million as per Exempt Appendix G.

The Council maintains regular engagement with our Treasury Management
advisors and constantly seeks their advice on our strategic direction and key
operational decisions. The Council’s Borrowing Strategy will be to borrow
appropriately to meet the Council’s objectives as a form of financing. The key is
affordability criteria and the Council being able to service that borrowing.

The Council will set a framework around the borrowing through its annual Treasury
Management Strategy. There will be regular (at least annual) reviews of the
Council’s borrowing levels and the Council will weigh up opportunities against that
borrowing limit. The key borrowing mechanism is through the PWLB. However
the Council will continue to explore other sources e.g. Municipal Bonds Agency

Minimum Revenue Provision (repaying the Principal element of debt
repayments)

The Council considered a Commercial Property Strategy at the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 6 September 2018 and the Audit Committee on 6
September 2018. Their recommendations will be considered by the Council on 27"
September. It is recommended that the borrowing limit for the Strategy is £60
million, based on the independent borrowing advice shown in Exempt Appendix G.
A total borrowing limit of £75 million is being recommended (for all of the
Council’s operations and services), with £60 million being for the Commercial
Property Strategy and £15 million for other borrowing requirements.

The Council has currently approved the following Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy through its Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19. The MRP Policy
for the commercial property strategy is that capital repayments will seek to repay a
minimum of 50% of the capital value of any acquired property.

Borrowing MRP Methodology
Asset Life Method
Leisure Investment MRP is charged using the Asset Life method —

based on the estimated life of the asset. (For the
Leisure investment, MRP will be charged over the
25 years — therefore 4% per annum). This option
provides for a reduction in the borrowing need
over approximately the asset’s life.

Investments

The Council has widened its use of approved counterparties from countries with a
minimum sovereign credit rating of AA-. The criteria, time limits and monetary
limits applying to institutions are set out within the Council’s treasury management
strategy approved at Council on 29" March 2018.

Page 77



APPENDIX C

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

Future Cost Pressures

The Council’s Strategy is to identify cost pressures as early as possible. Cost pressures
can be annual or one-off and can arise for a variety of reasons e.g. legislative changes,
increase in demand, factors beyond the Council’s control e.g. market conditions such
as recycling rates, economic conditions or natural events.

Appendix A of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFES) sets out the cost pressures
which have been identified for the next five years and these total £1,042,500 for
2019/20.

The Medium Term Financial Position has included a cost pressure of £220,000 for
Inflation and increases on Goods and Services. The main items are £80,000 for staff
salary increments, £40,000 for Business Rates increases, £30,000 for Utilities inflation,
£20,000 for fuel inflation and an amount of £50,000 is to fund a 2.5% uplift on other
expenditure budgets (£2 million).

The strategy takes account of a 1% rise in pay, however, the Council needs to respond
to national pay bargaining. The Council has built the 2% pay award for 2019/20 which
has already been agreed into the MTFS and this equates to £280,000. Thereafter 1% has
been profiled each year for years 2 to 5 of the MTFS.

Consideration should be given during any review of the MTFES as to whether to continue
with the Local Government terms and conditions of employment Green Book. It is
recommended to continue with the Local Government terms and conditions of
employment Green Book for at least 2019/20. It is further recommended to review all
options for reducing staff costs by varying terms from the Green Book from 2020/21,
with an initial report back by the end of 2018/19.

Devon Aligned service for Waste — Members have previously agreed the principles of
the Waste and Resource Strategy for Devon (aligned service) but with the exception of
charging for garden waste. In order for the Council to move to the Devon aligned service,
a cost pressure of £175,000 in 2020/21 and £175,000 in 2021/22 (totalling £350,000 p.a.
from 2021/22 onwards) is estimated. The implementation date would be September
2020.

If the Council reneges on its commitment to move to the Devon aligned service, Devon
County Council would likely consider other ways of recouping the additional
expenditure that has been generated through higher disposal costs caused by the current
South Hams service design (for example the mixed collection of food and garden waste
means that this material has to be hauled to Oxfordshire for composting, as opposed to
the local composting facilities enjoyed by all other Devon Districts). Income from
recycling credits may be compromised. In addition, South Hams is losing potential
income from recyclate sales because of the current sack collection method. This is now
unsustainable due to demand from global recycling markets for ‘clean’ materials.

Page 78



APPENDIX C

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

Future Cost Pressures

Devon Aligned Service for Waste (continued) - There would also be £125,000 of one-
off implementation costs. These are indicative prices worked up by officers and are
separate to the current procurement process. These prices are based on other Councils’
experiences of moving to the Devon Aligned Service. It should be recognised that each
Council starts from a different base which will affect the final figures.

This additional expenditure can be mitigated if, for example, the Council were to charge
for garden waste collection and/or reduce residual household waste collection
frequencies.

Reduction in recycling income — There is a recyclate income pressure of £125,000 due
to a fall in market prices.

Blue and Clear recycling bag processing (safe working practice requirement at
Torr Quarry) — There is a cost pressure of £75,000 identified for this.

Waste and Recycling Haulage contract — A report was presented to the Executive on
14" June 2018 regarding the new contract. A cost pressure of £60,000 has been built
into the financial modelling.

ICT - A cost pressure of £50,000 has been included in 19/20 for ICT Support contracts,
to better align the budget to actual expenditure. The ICT budget was set assuming that
the Civica solutions introduced by the T18 Transformation Programme would perform
as required. In practice, additional solutions were procured in order to maintain services
where using the Civica solution was not practical. This was explained in detail in the
Medium Term Financial Position report to the Executive on 19" July 2018.

A further cost pressure for £150,000 has been shown in 2020/21 for ICT future service
provision. A separate report for IT procurement was also on the agenda for the
September Executive for consideration.

The strategy will be to state cost pressures as they come onto the horizon and to put
mitigation in place through the budget setting process on an annual basis.

Recommendation 10: To continue with the Local Government terms and conditions
of employment Green Book for at least 2019/20. To review all options for reducing
staff costs by varying terms from the Green Book from 2020/21, with an initial
report back by the end of 2018/19.

Page 79



APPENDIX C

Delivering
efficient and
effective services

The Council’s Extended Leadership Team have been directed by the Executive to
present further budget options to Members for income generation/savings/reduced
expenditure, as part of the Budget Setting Workshop scheduled for Thursday 11%
October, taking into consideration the Council’s corporate strategy.

The Extended Leadership Team will bring forward business cases to Members to
invest in technology to make savings or reduce costs in the base budget. This could
also be through working with Partners e.g. Town and Parish Councils.

During 2019/20, there will be a report to Members on options on the restructure of
the Senior Leadership Team which will be reviewed. This will be for a decision
within the first six months of the new Council.

Income from Fees and Charges will be annually reviewed and set. Some fees and
charges are set by statute (e.g. planning fees) and others are set on a cost recovery
basis e.g. licensing.

The Council’s strategy is that COP Leads will work with Executive Lead Members
to review fees and charges on a regular (at least annual) basis and these will be
presented to the relevant Committee or Council for approval as part of the budget
setting process.

For those not prescribed, fees will be set at a realistic rate following appropriate
consultation e.g. car parking tariffs or charging for public conveniences (20p).

Some income will be incidental e.g. recycling and will be market led in terms of
income received.

The Council will continue to carry out paid consultancy work for other Local
Authorities for example business transformation (T18), Human Resources (carrying
out assessments using the behavioural framework) — to generate income for SHDC.

Assets and Estate Management — the strategy is that rental income will be at market
rates and rents are reviewed in a timely manner with active debt recovery. The
Council has target occupancy levels, though rent free periods can also be allowed
in limited circumstances where there is a business need.

Page 80



APPENDIX C

environment

m Protecting, conserving
- and enhancing our
v built and natural

The Council’s strategy is to market test its services through a pragmatic and rational
approach and to look at the whole value for money case in terms of whether or not to
procure. This would include soft market testing and taking procurement advice around
the legislative framework.

Where the Council does go out to procurement, there will be a balance between cost
and quality. The Council’s strategy is to build flexibility and risk sharing into the
Council’s contracts, whilst retaining value for money and having the ability to make
potential changes on the contract.

The Council will procure some services externally, where appropriate, keeping risk in
mind. Where the Council doesn’t have the necessary in-house expertise, the cost of
using external advisers will be included within the cost of the project.

The Council will also future proof its services. For example ICT contracts are much
more dynamic and ever-changing and more suited to shorter contracts. Other services
such as waste are more suited to longer term contracts.

The Council is currently procuring its waste collection, recycling and cleansing services
through a competitive dialogue process. The latest report was to Council on 26 July.
Council Minute 25/18 refers. The procurement process will now continue to the ‘Final
Solutions’ stage, with a further final report being brought to the Council meeting of 6™
December 2018. Members will decide at this stage whether or not to award a contract.

Council and residents
working together to
create strong and
empowered communities

lifestyles and helping
those most in need

v B Phcandnealthy

~
The Community Task & Finish Group has proposed funding reductions of £32,316 to
the South Devon CVS and the South Devon AONB. This was considered by the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 6" September 2018 and recommended.

The  Council’s  SeaMoor Lotto  (Community  Lottery)  will  help
certain projects / groups. Partners will be able to join the Lottery facilitated by the
Council in order to raise funding.

Page 81



APPENDIX C

Council and residents
working together to
create strong and
empowered communities

Creating places for @
enterprise to thrive

and business to grow

The Council’s Asset Base is £75 million at 31 March 2018. The Council will
continually review and challenge its asset base in order to deliver the optimum value
for money from the Council’s Assets.

On 14th June 2018, the Executive considered a report on Council Owned Asset
Investment and Development opportunities. The Council will prepare detailed business
cases on the opportunities in the report and report back to Members. Members will then
be asked to attach an order of prioritisation for delivery to the business cases.

Commercial Property Strategy

The Council considered a Commercial Property Strategy at the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 6™ September 2018 and the Audit Committee on 6 September 2018.
Their recommendations will be considered by Council on 27" September. It is
recommended that the borrowing limit for the Strategy is £60 million, based on the
independent borrowing advice shown in Exempt Appendix G.

A total borrowing limit of £75 million is being recommended (for all of the Council’s
operations and services), with £60 million being for the Commercial Property Strategy
and £15 million for other borrowing requirements. The overall objectives of the
commercial property strategy are as shown below:

Overall Objectives:

The Council’'s commercial property strategy has multiple objectives as stated below:
To support regeneration and the economic activity of the District

To enhance economic benefit & business rates growth

To assist with the financial sustainability of the Council as an ancillary benefit

To help the Council continue to deliver and/or improve frontline services in line with
the Council’'s adopted strategy & objectives.

Page 82



A N N N N N

APPENDIX C

Desired Outcomes:

The following outcomes are desired by the application of the commercial property
strategy. Each acquisition or development opportunity will be assessed on its fit with
meeting the objectives stated above and should deliver one or more of the following
outcomes (benefits):

Job creation or safeguarding
Health & Wellbeing

Town centre regeneration
Tourism / Increased footfall
Business rate growth
Improved asset utilisation

A minimum Net yield of 1%

This strategy will be achieved by acquisitions and developments within the South
Hams District. This will include the focussed acquisition of existing commercial
property assets and the development of new properties which are to be let to third
parties.

South Hams District Council is a business rates pilot area for 2018/19, which sets out
the economic objectives of the pilot area.

New property acquisitions will be assessed against the Council’s multiple objectives
and the criteria which are set out in the Strategy.

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D
EARMARKED AND UNEARMARKED RESERVES

1.1 The Council’s Net Budget is £8.98 million in 2018/19. It is still recommended to retain the same
policy of maintaining a minimum level of Unearmarked Reserves of £1.5 million.

1.2 Our financial strategy recognises the need to maintain un-earmarked revenue reserves to
provide stability for both medium and longer term planning and to provide a contingency against
unforeseen events. In setting the minimum level at £1.5 million, the following have been taken into
account:

e The size of the authority

e The volatility of some income and expenditure budgets due to a dependency on the
weather, tourism and state of the economy

e The risks faced by the Council with regard to funding unforeseen events
e Uncertainty over future Government funding and Business Rates
e Uncertainty over future New Homes Bonus allocations

1.3 The Unearmarked Reserves (General Fund) balance of £1.8 million stands above the
minimum balance of £1.5 million and acts as a safeguard against unforeseen financial pressures.

14 Specific Earmarked Reserves - The level and commitments for each reserve are kept under
review each year to make sure the committed balance is adequate for its purpose (in accordance with
LLAP Bulletin 99, a guide on ‘Reserves’ from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance).

1.5 The purpose of some of the more significant earmarked reserves are shown below:

Community Housing Fund — This reserve was set up to hold the Community Housing Fund Grant.
We are working on developing a community housing initiative, which is designed to help local
residents to determine and deliver appropriate and affordable housing for their communities.

Business Rates Retention Scheme - The business rates reserve covers any possible funding issues
from the new accounting arrangements and smoothes volatility of business rates income due to
appeals. At Council on 22" February 2018, Members agreed to ring-fence £3.5 million from the
Business Rates Retention Earmarked Reserve for employment for the creation of local jobs and to
better support the local economy.

New Homes Bonus — This reserve was established to show how New Homes Bonus funding has
been used on an annual basis.

Affordable Housing — This reserve helps to support the funding of affordable housing.

Vehicles and Plant Renewals - This reserve is used to purchase vehicles and heavy plant to
maintain a modern and efficient Council fleet, and to ensure Contract conditions are met.

Planning, Policy and Major Developments - This was set up to help smooth out annual expenditure
on review and preparation of the local plan. It has developed to help deal with costs associated with
the Sherford development, planning policies and planning related activities.

Capital Programme — This reserve helps to support the funding of the Capital Programme.

Page 85



1.6 A schedule of Earmarked Reserves for 17/18 is shown below.

Balance at Transfers Transfers Balance at
2017/18 31 March Out In 31 March
EARMARKED RESERVES 2017 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund
Affordable Housing 770 (2) 230 998
Community Parks and Open Spaces 97 (3) 17 111
Pension Fund Strain - (99) 99 -
Repairs and Maintenance 403 (309) 155 249
Members Sustainable Community 41 - 12 53
Marine Infrastructure Reserve 94 - 58 152
Land and Development 205 (255) 117 67
Ferry Repairs and Renewals 400 (28) 87 459
Economic Initiatives 77 (28) - 49
Vehicles and Plant Renewals 489 (153) 687 1,023
Pay and Display Equipment 81 - 21 102
On-Street Parking 44 - - 44
ICT Development 122 (32) 50 140
Sustainable Waste Management 3 (24) 25 4
District Elections 58 - 10 68
Beach Safety 14 - - 14
Planning Policy & Major Developments 147 (44) 125 228
Building Control 436 (436) - -
Section106 Agreements (no conditions) 38 - - 38
Revenue Grants 316 (125) 181 372
Capital Programme 1,116 (507) 182 791
New Homes Bonus 474 (1,053) 1,448 869
Renovation Grant Reserve 7 - - 7
Business Rates Retention 4,527 (13,168) - (8,641)
Homelessness Prevention Reserve 25 - 57 82
Strategic Change - (285) 285 -
16/17 Budget Surplus Contingency 559 (534) - 25
Innovation Fund (Invest to Earn) 279 (254) - 25
Community Housing Fund 1,881 (210) - 1,671
Leisure Services Reserve - - 87 87
Support Services Trading Reserve - - 20 20
Environmental Health Initiatives Reserve - - 20 20
S106 Monitoring Reserve - - 137 137
Sub Total 12,703 (17,549) 4,110 (736)
Specific Reserves — Salcombe Harbour
Pontoons 130 (30) 62 162
Harbour Renewals 85 (8) 34 111
General Reserve 156 (47) 34 143
Sub Total 371 (85) 130 416
TOTAL EARMARKED 13,074  (17,634) 4,240 (320)

REVENUE RESERVES

Page 86




1.7 The Earmarked Reserves position as at 31 March 2018 needs to be looked at in conjunction
with the Council’s share of the Business Rates Collection Fund surplus as shown in the table below:

Balance at Balance at

The Impact of the Business Rates position on the 31 March 31 March

Earmarked Revenue Reserves 2017 2018
£000 £000

;otal Earmarked Revenue 13,074 (320)

eserves

The Council’s share of the Business Rates Collection Fund 232 13.477

surplus ,

Aggregated Earmarked Revenue Reserves incorporating

the Council’s share of the Business Rates Collection Fund 13,306 13,157

surplus

In 2015/16 there was a £26.7 million increase in the provision for business rates appeals within the
Collection Fund for some significant business rates appeals. In 2016/17 a large part of these
outstanding appeals were settled and the significant appeals risk did not materialise.

The Local Government Accounting Regulations for Business Rates and the operation of the Collection
Fund are set by the Government. These national regulations mean there is a two year timing delay
between a business rates appeals provision being released back into the Collection Fund and in turn
into the General Fund.

The Business Rates Retention Earmarked Reserve in 2017/18 shows a deficit position of £8.641
million at 31 March 2018. However, in order to assess the overall financial position of the Council at
31 March 2018, the funds held in the Business Rates Collection Fund of £13.477 million also need to
be taken into account (as shown in the table above). The aggregated Earmarked Revenue Reserves
position, incorporating the Council’s share of the Business Rates Collection Fund surplus is £13.157
million at 31 March 2018.

The £13 million of funds held in the Business Rates Collection Fund are being released back into the
General Fund of the Council during 2018/19. Therefore this is a short term timing issue which has
occurred due to the way that the Local Government Accounting Regulations for Business Rates
operate. In 2018/19, the Business Rates Retention Earmarked Reserve will be back to a positive
balance in excess of £4 million. This reserve, alongside the appeals provisions created in 2017/18,
are in place to protect the Council’s financial position against business rates volatility and has placed
the Council in a better position in future years.

South Hams District Council’s share of the Business Rates Collection Fund has increased from a
surplus of £232,000 in 2016/17, to a surplus of £13.477 million in 2017/18. This reflects the additional
business rate income that is held in the Collection Fund in 2017/18 due to the unwinding of the
business rates appeals provision made in previous years. This income will be released to the
Council’'s General Fund in 2018/19.

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX E

ANALYSIS OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO/(FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES

Estimate Estimate
2018/19 2019/20
To (From) To (From)
£ £ £ £
475,000 Economic Regeneration Projects (pilot gain)
181,600 Capital Programme 181,600
16,900 Community Parks & Open Spaces 16,900
10,000 District Elections 10,000
87,000 Ferry major repairs & renewals 87,000
(641,084) New Homes Bonus (500,000)
20,800 Pay & Display Equipment 20,800
99,000 Pension Fund Strain Payments 99,000
55,000 Repairs and maintenance 55,000
210,000 Strategic Change Reserve 60,000
0 Strategic Issues 0
490,000 Vehicles & Plant Renewals 490,000
50,000 Land and Development Reserve 50,000
50,000 IT Development Reserve 50,000
25,000 Sustainable Waste Management 25,000
50,000 Planning Policy and Major Developments 75,000
2,000 Interest credited to reserves 2,000
1,822,300 (641,084) TOTALS 1,222,300 (500,000)
1,181,216 GRAND TOTAL 722,300

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX F

Sensitivity analysis and risk analysis of the Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS)

1.

The budget assumes approximately £7.5 million of income from fees and
charges, recycling and investments. Whilst this assumption is realistic,
given the position of the economy there is a risk that income could fall or
be less than anticipated. A 5% reduction in income would result in a loss
of £375,000.

The MTFS relies on proposed savings over the next 5 years of £664,000. A
5% reduction in the savings would equate to £33,200.

The MTFS assumes budget pressures over the next 5 years of
£2.96 million. A 5% increase in the budget pressures would equate to
£148,000.

Council Tax Income and New Homes Bonus have been modelled based on
an extra 450 Band D Equivalent properties per annum increase. Each extra
property attracts £1,272 in NHB. If this figure were to actually be say 400
properties (i.e. 50 properties less), this would mean that Council Tax
Income would be £8,300 less and New Homes Bonus income would be
£64,000 less.

Council Tax has been assumed in the MTFS to increase by the higher of £5
or 2.99% over each of the five years. For example, for 2019-20 this would
equate to a Band D of £165.42 (an increase of £5). The additional council
tax income this would generate is £192,000. If council tax for 2019/20
were to remain at £160.42, the income from council tax would be
overstated by this amount in the MTFS.

If Council Tax income collection fell by 1% (collection in 17/18 was
98.15%), this would mean a reduction of council tax income of around
£60,000. Similarly if Business Rates income collection fell by 1% (collection
in 17/18 was 97.68%), this would mean a reduction in business rates
income of £19,000.

Income from investments has been assumed to increase in line with the
expected interest rate forecasts in Section 3.3. A 0.25% variation in
interest rates on investment income equates to £60,000.

Page 91



10.

Borrowing Levels

Exempt Appendix G gives advice on the borrowing level for the Council
and the Interest payments on the borrowing as a percentage of available
Reserves. The tables below show the impact that a change of Interest
payable at 2.5% on borrowing to 3% on borrowing has on this Indicator.

Total Interest Level of | Interest payments (at 2.5%)
Borrowing | repayments | Reserves as % of available Reserves
at 2.5%
(£1.85m
Unearmarked
and £8.32m
Earmarked)
£50m £1,250,000 |£10,170,000 12.3%
£75m £1,875,000 |£10,170,000 18.4%
Total Interest Level of | Interest payments (at 3%)
Borrowing | repayments | Reserves £m | as % of available Reserves
at 3%
(£1.85m
Unearmarked
and £8.32m
Earmarked)
£50m £1,500,000 |£10,170,000 14.75%
£75m £2,250,000 | £10,170,000 22.1%

An allowance of 2.5% for inflation is included in the budget. Inflation costs
are being managed through cost effective procurement.

The capital programme is funded by receipts, grants, and contributions.
Realistic assumptions about these have been made for the future.

Known liabilities have been provided for and there are no significant
outstanding claims.

Page 92




Summary & conclusion

Sensitivity analysis and risks are identified above with a potential total adverse
revenue effect for 2019/20 of £959,500. However, revenue reserves are
recommended to be maintained at a minimum of £1.5 million. | therefore
confirm the robustness of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the
adequacy of the reserves.

Mrs Lisa Buckle, Strategic Finance Lead (S151 Officer)

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

Not for Publication
The appendix to this report contains exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
(information relating to the financial and business affairs of the Council).

Report to: Council

Date: 27 September 2018

Title: Public Toilet Pay on Entry Contract Award
Portfolio Area: Environment Services

Wards Affected: All

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Urgent Decision: N Approval and Y
clearance obtained:

Date next steps can be taken: Immediately
following this meeting
Author: Cathy Aubertin Role: COP Lead - Environment

Services

Contact:  Cathy.Aubertin@swdevon.gov.uk

Recommendations:

1. That the Council approves the recommendation to award the
contract for the provision and installation of Public Toilet Pay
on Entry equipment to the highest scoring bidder (Bidder B);
and

2. That any changes considered necessary to the terms, or type of
equipment used at each facility, are delegated to the
Environment Services COP Lead, in consultation with the Lead
Executive Member for Commercial Services.

1. Executive summary

1.1  Following the resolution to undertake a procurement exercise in
respect of the supply and installation of Pay on Entry equipment at
various public toilets in the South Hams, Bidder B has been
evaluated to have provided the most economically advantageous
tender for this service.

Page 109



1.2

This report recommends that the Council approve the decision to
award the contract for Pay on Entry equipment to Bidder B. The
Part IT Contract Award Report provides detail regarding the process
used and how submissions were evaluated and scored.

2. Background

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

South Hams District Council resolved to make at £226,000 saving
from its public toilet budget, with £36,000 of this coming from Pay
on Entry schemes at its higher footfall facilities, with effect from 1st
April 2019.

Officers have opened discussions with Town and Parish Councils so
that all are aware of the proposal to install Pay on Entry equipment
well in advance of the roll out.

The tender was explicit in informing bidders that no decisions had
yet been made in respect of where Pay on Entry may be required,
and requested a price per facility in order to allow a flexible
approach once consultation with towns, parishes and Ward
Members had been completed.

If the recommendation is approved by Council, the CoP Lead for
Environment Services will be in a position to make further
recommendations to the Executive in respect of which facilities
should be fitted with Pay on Entry equipment, having also
considered the views of Town and Parish Councils, and consulted
with the Lead Hub Member for Environment Services.

3. Outcomes/outputs

3.1

3.2

3.3

Two submissions were received and both were evaluated in
accordance with the criteria set out in the tender documentation.

Bidder B was evaluated to have provided the most economically
advantageous tender.

Should the recommendation be approved, officers will meet with
Bidder B to ensure that all aspects of the contract are covered as
expected and, at the appropriate time, agree the roll out
programme, and ensure that ICT security is as required by the
Council’s Senior Specialist (ICT information security).

4. Options available and consideration of risk

4.5

In order to generate income from public toilets, to contribute
towards the cost of running the service, it is imperative that Pay on
Entry equipment is installed, particularly at facilities which have
higher footfall.

Page 110



5. Proposed Way Forward

5.1

It is proposed that the Council approves the recommendation to

award the contract for the supply and installation of Pay on Entry
equipment to Bidder B.

5.2

The procurement ties in with the ‘Council’ corporate priority as it

will allow the continued delivery of efficient and effective services.

6. Implications

Implications Relevant | Details and proposed measures to address
to
proposals
Y/N
Legal/Governance | Y As the contract to be awarded falls within scope of
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015), it
must be awarded in full compliance with the same.
Financial Y Costs of the contract, and how this was evaluated,
are outlined in Part II Contract Award Report.
A capital sum has been allocated for this project of
£130,000.
Risk Y The main risk will be in connection with adverse

reaction from members of the public to this
proposal. However, press releases and
communication with Town and Parish Councils
have, and will continue to, highlight the fact that
this step will help to ensure that the Borough
Council is financially able to continue to provide
this non-statutory service.

Comprehensive Im

pact Assess

ment Implications

Equality and Y A Comprehensive Impact Assessment has been

Diversity carried out, which demonstrates that no group is
disaffected by this proposal.
Disabled customers will have the option of using
disabled facilities, which are accessed with RADAR
keys in most locations.

Safeguarding N

Community Y It is anticipated that Pay on Entry schemes will

Safety, Crime contribute to the Council’s desire to design out

and Disorder crime in public toilets.

Health, Safety Y As above.

Page 111




and Wellbeing

Other N
implications

Supporting Information

Appendices:
Appendix A - Contract Award report (Exempt)

Page 112




Document is Restricted

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 10

Report to: Council

Date: 27 September 2018

Title: South Devon AONB Management Plan
Review 2019-24 Consultation Draft

Portfolio Area: Customer First

Wards Affected: Wembury and Brixton, Newton and

Noss, Yealmpton, Erme Valley,
Charterlands, Thurlestone, Salcombe
and Malborough, Westville and
Alvington, Alvington and Loddiswell,
Avon and Harbourne, Saltstone,
Stokenham, Skerries, Dart and
Kingswear, West Dart, East Dart,
Dartmouth Townstal, Dartmouth and
Kingswear

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Urgent Decision: N Approval and Y
clearance obtained:

Author: Tom Jones Role: COP Lead Place Making

Contact: Tel. 01803 861404
Email: thomas.jones@swdevon.gov.uk

Recommendations:
That the Council

1. Notes the content of the Consultation Draft of the
Management Plan and Members send any comments to the
author of the report for incorporation into a formal Council
consultation response before the end of October 2018;

2. Delegates to the CoP Lead for Place Making the final
content of the formal Council consultation response; and

3. Notes that the final Management Plan for 2019-2024 will
be brought to Council for adoption in early 2019.

Page 121


mailto:thomas.jones@swdevon.gov.uk

1. Executive summary

1.1  This report outlines the process of the review of the Management Plan for
the South Devon AONB, the issues identified for consideration within the
Plan review. It details the method by which Members can contribute to
the formal consultation response by the Council, with a view to bringing
the final Plan to Executive Committee for adoption in early 2019.

2. Background

2.1Under the Countryside and Rights of Way Act (2000), it is a statutory
requirement for Local Authorities to produce Management Plans for AONBs in
their area, and to review adopted plans at periods of not more than five
years.

2.2The South Devon AONB falls within the South Hams (Wembury and Brixton,
Newton and Noss, Yealmpton, Erme Valley, Charterlands, Thurlestone,
Salcombe and Malborough, Westville and Alvington, Alvington and Loddiswell,
Avon and Harbourne, Saltstone, Stokenham, Skerries, Dart and Kingswear,
West Dart, East Dart, Dartmouth Townstal, Dartmouth and Kingswear
Wards). The previous plan for the South Devon AONB was adopted in 2014
for the period until 2019 and is now due its statutory five year review.

2.3The District Council as well as the other three relevant Local Authorities has
delegated the authority to review the South Devon AONB Management Plan
for the next five years to the South Devon AONB team.

2.4The reviewed Management Plan must be sent to the Secretary of State by
March 2019. Defra considers that previous Guidance documents on AONB
Management Plans are still fit for purpose but, together with Natural England
and the National Association for AONBs, had produced a paper outlining the
collective steer to AONB Partnerships in taking forward the next round of
Management Plans.

2.5A light touch approach has been promoted building on the common format,
structure and timetable agreed between the AONBs, with a view to reflecting
changes in the statutory and legislative background, changing circumstances
and resources, new knowledge and agendas, and lessons learned from
implementation of previous Plans.

2.6The consultation draft of the Management Plan is out for formal consultation
for a 6 week period between 17/09/18 and 05/11/18 with a view to seeking
adoption by the relevant Local Authorities in early 2019.

2.7Member comments are requested before the 5% November 2018 to be

incorporated into a formal District Council response to the consultation draft
to be submitted to the AONB team by the end of November.

Page 122



3 Updates and changes in the Management Plan review

3.1

3.2

The Consultation Draft of the Management Plan adopts the common
format and structure agreed for all the reviewed AONB Management
Plans with strategic themes for ‘Place, People and Prosperity, and
Communication and Management.’ From these themes flow a range of
considerations (e.g. Landscape character, Historic environment,
Communities and culture) each with their own objectives, policies and
priorities for action.

Some of the issues identified for consideration within the Plan review
are:

e The changes to the planning landscape with the recently revised
National Planning Policy Framework (2018);

e changes to the status of relevant Local Plans since 2014 (namely
the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan); and

e the implications for existing and new planning policies for the
AONB.

4 Proposed Way Forward

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Comments from Members and relevant officers (namely from the Place
Making and Development Management CoPs) are being sought before
the end of October. It is noted that the content of the Management
Plan is wide ranging, and touches upon all of the Council’'s Themes and
Priorities to varying degrees.

It is proposed that the CoP Lead for Place Making will have delegated
authority to agree the final content of the formal Council response to
the Consultation Draft of the Management Plan.

Officers will assist the SDAONB team with review of consultation
responses as appropriate during December 2018. The final
Management Plan will be presented to the SDAONB Executive and
Partnership Committees for agreement in late 2018/beginning of 2019.

The final Management Plan will be presented to the District Council
Executive Committee in Jan/Feb 2019 for adoption, and will follow due
procedure at the other relevant Local Authorities, with a view to
sending the new Management Plan to the Secretary of State in March
20109.

Page 123



5 Implications

Implications

Relevant
to
proposals
Y/N

Details and proposed measures to address

Legal/Governance

Section 89 of the Countryside and Rights of Way
Act (CRoW Act, 2000) sets out the statutory
requirement for Local Authorities to produce
Management Plans for AONBs in their area, and to
review adopted plans at periods of not more than
five years. The Council (as well as other
constituent Local Authorities - these Devon County
Council Plymouth CC and Torbay. SHDC has
delegated the authority of reviewing the
Management Plan to the SD AONB team.

Financial

The Council makes an annual contribution to the
SD AONB, which along with constituent Local
Authority contributions amounts to 25% of the
budget, a further 75% being provided by Defra.

This contribution meets the cost of the core AONB
team and their production and delivery of the
AONB Management Plan. The Council currently
also provides project funding.

Risk

Failure to publish a plan and submit to the
Secretary of State by end of March 2019 would
result in the Council failing to meet the statutory
duty set out in Section 89 of the CRoW Act.

Comprehensive Im

pact Assess

ment Implications

Equality and
Diversity

No direct implications.

Safeguarding

No direct implications.

Community
Safety, Crime
and Disorder

No direct implications.

Health, Safety
and Wellbeing

No direct implications.

Other
implications

No direct implications.

Appendix A: South Devon Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Consultation Draft
Management Plan 2019-24

Page 124




‘saljijenb |eloads s)i Jo Auew saieys ‘)nsal e se ‘pue gNOV 9y} UIYlIM paseiquid
Aling st yoiym ‘)seo) abejisH uoaeq yinog sy Joy uejd e jo ssodind sy} seales os|e )| ‘suofesauab aininy pue Jussaid
Jysusq pue poddns o} pedueyue pue pebeuew ‘paaIasuU0D S| eale BY} Jey} 2INSue O} SY)eaS ue|d Juswebeue)y SIy|

‘uoneunssp JolisiA Jeindod e pue aji| AUNWIWOD SANBSID PUE SAIIOE J0j B1USD B ‘9oe|d HJOM SIWEBUAP pue BuIALU)
B S| gNOV 8yL "adedspue| ayj ojul paydje AjAoe uewny Jo suopjesauab pue eas oy} 0] syul Buoss Yjim apisAunod
Jusidue ue sl }| 'selen)ss sAllaIdas pue ‘syueq abpay |nUNo|joo ‘sijiy Buljjol ‘sabe|ia anbsainjoid ‘episAnunos njeoead
‘'san0d Apues ‘spijo pebbni sy uoj pano| - sadeospue| psajosjoid 1ssul SUlelg JO BUO S gNOV uoas@ ynog ayj

"19jorieyd aAnoulsip pue Ayneaq jeanjeu juepodwi Ajjeuoneu
S} 10} 18AB10) painseal} pue pasiubooal ‘panjea si jey) adeospue| [euoijedidsul Ue JO SI UOISIA INQ

$#7202-6102 ue|d Juswabeuel) }yeiq uoljejnsuon
Ajneag |einjeN BuipuelsinQ jo ealy UoAa(g Yinog

ﬁ\ x,azmt.q

Page 125



‘Buipas sy pue eale gNOY UOAS(Q YINOS 3joym 3y} 0} JUBAS|S] SBNSSI 8] JOADD SSWSLY) ]
juswabeuew pue uoEIIUNWLWOD o
Auadsoud pue ajdoad
aoe|d e

'suonoss ¢ ojul padnolb s ueld ay |

‘0002 1V ABAA JO Siybry pue apisAiuno) sy} Jo 68 UoROeS ‘Al Hed

Japun paiinbai se gNQY uoAaQg yinog ayj jo Juswabeuew auyy 0} uonelas ul uopoe pue Aoijod Ajuoyine |eoo| sejeinw.oy ueld siy| ‘sieuped
pue suonesiuebio Auew jo Juswaajoaul pue poddns panuiuod ay) aunbai jiim pue Aouabe ajbuis Aue Jo Jiwel J0 s80Inosal ay) puokaq

si ueld ay} Bugusws|dw) "suoneisusb ainjny 10} PaOUBYUS PUE PAAISSUOD S| UOAS(] YINOS Jo Ajneaq |esnjeu Buipuejsino ay) jey) ainsus

0} si1apjoysyels Jo abuel spim e yum xiom [im pue ueld o16ajess siy) Jo AJaAlap 8y} 0} PeRILIWOD SI 8apiwwo) diysisuned gNOV Y.L

"ANQV uoAaq yinog ayj jo [Aneeq |einjeu ayj Buioueyus pue Buiniasuoo jo asodind ay) o} psebas aaey o) AINp, Gg uonoasg

Jiayy Buljyny s1e Asyy aunsue ueo ao1o o11gnd Buipjoy uosiad 1o Apoq oljgnd Aue pue siexeuspun AIOJNJels JUSWILLIBA0S) UOIUM AQ suesw
Jusiedsuel} B SIBJO0 UB|d 8Y} JO 89S "BalR BY) ‘Ul }S8IBJUI UE Y)m 1o ‘ulyim Buryiom sdnoib pue suonesiueblo ‘sioue) pue sieumopue|
‘S9sSaUISN( ‘SaliUNWIWOD [BD0] ‘SaLOYINE |B20| O} 90UBA3|a JO SI }| "uoljeubisap pue adesspue| gNOY @Yi 0} sajejas Ajjenuasss ueld ay |

"eaJe 8y} Bunosye suoisiDap 9y J0 S2USNjUI OYM SISY)0 JO SUONOE By} pue saiijenb [epads ‘Aojjod ‘ABajesis uo jiejep apiroad
Aoy ‘Bumss sy pue gNOY UoAS(Q Yinos ay} ul saunpoddo pue seinssald juauno o) puodsas ueld AISAIlOp pue Sexauue ‘JUaWnoop Sy |

ue|d Juswabeuep gNOY UoAaq Yinos syl
o4l susjuo)

9902500010 “feang aoueup.iQ 810z WBU aseqejep pue JybuAdoo umoln @ elep Asaing aouBUPIO SUIRIUOD

Spuawie Joulw Jayjo pue Alepunogq jseo) ebejuusH uoasq yinog ey Buipnjoul pue aiey papesul aq ol dejy uoljeusLIQ

818y papnjou; aq o} obo| eljeq pue ainjeubis ‘ojoyd
pPIOM3I04 [elIS)SIUI

Page 126



[paebai jo Anp, pue Juswaiinbai uejq

" ANOYV ue jo juswsbeuew

8y} 0} yoeoudde pajesbajul ue uj wie Arewnd siy) Buayny Ul JUNODOE OJul USXE} 8( 0} BJ8 UOIEI08] PUEB SPSU 9ILLOUOIS-0100S

‘uoie|os! ul pejuswa|dwi 8q jou pjnoys AINp siy}, swuiuod Juswalels Aoljod L6 L Si pue uopeubisep gNOV uo Buisiape 1o} sjqisuodsal

S| pue|bug JesnjeN ‘suofjessusb aininy pue ‘Jualind Jo Jyauaq ay} Jo Lneaq |einjeu Buidueyus pue BuiAIasuOD, Jo asodind |eba| ay) anaiyoe
0} J8pJo ul sadedspuel Juepodw Ajjeuoleu 8sey} Ul UOHOE pue Jususaaul ‘Adljod 8)euIplo0d 0} psje|nuLIo) aJe sue|d Juswabeuel gNOY

asodind ue|d Juswabeue

"abueyo Bupeiqus pue papuiw uado Buiag Js|iym saluNWWOD pue sisuned ‘saousnjul Aoijod Asy 0} aAIsUOdsa.
pue Jusiedsuel) aq 0} SWIe }| "8OIAISS SAIOBYS PUE JUBIDIYS Ue BuliaAljep ui Aouow 1oy anjea Buipincid o) papIwWwod siiun gNOY @Y1

"aAjejussaldal auew pue Aienjss ue pue sdnolb Ajuswe ‘10)08s WSLNO} 8y} ‘SOON [EIUSWIUOIIAUS [euoissajoud ‘suonesiueBlo
Asejun|oa Jo Ajunwiwos ‘sjounod ysied ‘Ajunwiwod ssauisng sy} ‘Ajunwiwos Buiwiey 1o Bulumopue| :saanejuasaidal Alunwwon e

AyisisAlun YinowA|d ‘1ounog saipmg pial4 ‘isnd| [euonep sy :suonesiuebio e
pue|buz ouoisiH ‘Aousby Juswuosaug ‘puejbug jelnjep :saouaby e
ouno) AjQ yinowA|d ‘rouno) Aeqio] ‘ounog 1ou1siqg sWweH Yinog ‘lounod AJunod uoAaq :SellioyINe [E90T] e

‘SaAljejuasaldal g| JO SISISU0D
pPue gNOY uoAs( yinog ay) Jo Juswadueyua pue uoieAlasuod ‘uonosjold ay) ul pes| oibajedis e sapiroid eapiwwon diysiauped ay|

29piwwo) diysiauyied gNOV @yl

‘ue|d AsaAl9p |BNUUE BY) Ul PajIEISP SI SIU) BABIYDE ||IM 3M MOH ‘safjijenb |enads pue Ajnesq jeinjeu

Bunosjoud pue Buinissuoo isjiym Juswdojansp sjqeurelsns spiemo) siapjoyayess pue sseuped Buipinb ‘saousnpur Aoijod Aoy pue abueyo
10} 9040} 0} puodsail saljod ay] "suonoe pue sjoafoid apinb o} siomawely e Buipinosd ‘sanssi o} yoeoidde pue uopisod S,99)IWwIo0D)
diysiauped gNOV ay) ale seioljod ueld ay| "SaUNWIWOD S} pue gNOY Y} 101 SASIYOE O] JUBM OM JBUM Bl sannoalqo ueld ay |

Page 127



",S9N|eA |BIn}N2 pue Sa2IAISS

Wo)sAs009 pa)eloosSe Y)im SInjeu JO UOREBAISSUOD ULS}-BUo| 8y} aAsIyOE 0} ‘SuBBW 8AROSYS Jay)o Jo |eba| ybnoly) ‘pabeuew pue pajeoipap
‘pasiubooal ‘aoeds |eoiydeiboab psuysp Auesio v, se NON| Y Aq pauysp si eale pajsjoid v "sadesspuer pajosjoid A Alobajen

se (NDNI) @injeN Jo UoneAIasSUOD U} 10} UOIU [BUOHEUIBIU| BY} AQ palISSe}D SI uoibal auy) 10 9%,8¢ A|ejewixosddy JuswAojdws jeinynoube
ul pabebua ajdoad jo siequinu abelsae uey) Joybiy pue asn [einynoube ul pue| 8y} JO %08 SWOS YIm uoibal [BinJ B S }| “SUOM pue ||

0} yjoq 20e|d e se anpoedje }I Bupjew ‘suoibal ysibug Jayjo Wwoly )i SSjenUISYIP JUBLIUOIAUS JSOAA YINOS U} JO ANSIOAIP PUE SSBUYDL 8y |
|euoibay

‘6161 J0 oY apisAuno sy

0} SS800Y/ pue S)yied |euoeN a8y} — siied |euoeN se uofejsibs| swes ay) Aq Buleq ojul )ybnoiq assm sgNOY "Aineag jesneN BuipuesinQ
JO sealy pue syied |euoljeN se uojeubisap Ybnoly) paaiasuod usaq aAey sadeoaspue| }saul Jno ‘pue|al] UIBYLION pue sajep) ‘puelbug uj
|euoneN

}X81u09 jeuoibal pue jeuoneN

‘(Aineaq

[eanjeu Buipueisino jo 1o) Aneaq [einjeu Jo ease ue Bulaq se ‘(passed Jansuaym) Juswioeus Aue Jo sesodind au} Joj ‘pajeal; Buiaq wouy )i Juasaud Jou seop ‘edeospue) 8y} Ul UOKUBAIBIUI
uewny jojonpoud sy) Ajued aie saunjesy [eolydesBoisAyd Jo euney ‘elo) asoym eale Joylo Aue(o) Jo ‘yied e se pesn puey(q) ‘spue|poom Jo aunynoube 1oy pasn pue|(e) —sepnjoul J0

4O SI18I8U0D sBjeAN JO pue|Bug ul eale ue Jey) JoB) 8] 1SMOJ||0} SB SpISANUNDD 8y} Ul Anesaq [einjeN PaLLE]D 900Z 10V SBIIUNWIWOD [Ny PUB JUSWUDIHAUT [BINJEN BU} JO 66 Uolj08Sg ‘os|y
. sainjesy leajydesBoisAyd 4o [eoiBojosb pue eune} ‘elo) s JO UOREAISUOD 8Y) ‘g KBl 958D ay) Se 10 uoleAlesald ay) 0] S80USIaa) BuIpn|oul Se Pengsuco

8q |leys eaue ue Jo Aineaq [einjeu Y} JO UOHBAIBSUOD JO ‘UoheAIsaId ay) 0) 10V SIY) Ul S8oUBIBeY, ‘PJels 1Oy SpISAIUNOD 8y} 0} SS90y pUE SYIEd [EUCIEN BYE6L 28Ul 4O ¥ | uonoss g
(0002) OSIH L

‘aoueldwoo piebal

jo Anp, sjensuowsp pue sasodind gNOY Hoddns 0} seipoq 21jgnd 1oy wsiueyosaw e S| ue|d Juswabeuepy gNOV 2yl ".sesodind Jisy)

0} piebai aney |leys, sanlIoYINe JUBAS|SI ‘SBalE 958U} Ul pue| ‘}o9ye 0} SE 0S JO ‘0} uoneas ui suonouny Aue Buiwiopad 1o Buisiosexe ul, ‘1eyl
ojels Aayy “Ajjeoyinads 000 10V Aepn Jo siybry pue episAunog sy} Jo Gg UONDAS Ul o) papircid B1e SGNOY O} UoRe[el Ul salnp Alojnjels

"S|eAlajul Jeah-aAl) UBY) SSB| JOU Ul )i MBIAB PUE Ue|d Juswabeuel gNOV
ue ysiiqnd pue aiedaid senuoyYINe [BOO] JUBASJRI JBY) JusWaJinbal AloJnjels By} S|y ueld SIYL ZGNOY 941 1o Aineaq [esnjeu ayy BuiduByUS
pue Buiniasuoo jo ssodind ay) 0} piebal aney, o) (938 salpoq olqnd) senuoyINe Jueaajal, aiinbal jey) suoisiroid Juepodwi swos sppe os|e

1l 'SgNQY Jo sasodind pue uoneubisap ay) Buipsebas uone|siba) Jallea sajeplosuod 1000z 10V ABM JO SIYBIY pue apisAunos) ay) JO Al Hed

Page 128



(€102 ‘vd43Q) wewsjels Aoljod Aijsaio Juswiuianos

(000z ‘@doun3 Jo 1oUNo0D) uonuaauoy adesspue ueadoing

(0002 ‘N3) @AR08uIQ Somawel Jajepn

(8102 "DTOHWN) sHomawel Aaljod Buiuueld [euonen ay |

(1102 "'vd43Q) 020z Ansisnipolg

6002 10V SS820Y |ejseo)) pue auLlep

0002 1oV Aepp jo siybry pue apisAnunod

(£102) uawnoo( yomawel puejbug |eimeN

(810Z 'vy43Q) Juswuosiaug ay) anoidw| 0} ue|d Jes A GZ INQ :2InN4 Usalg) v

-9pn[oul asay} Jo Jueoyiubis Jsow sy} Jo swog "selfsjesis ajeiodiod Ajuoyine (00| pue sueld Juswdojeaap [BI0] O} UMOP B|eds |euoneu
pue ueadoin3 wouy buibues seibsiesis pue Aoijod JuaLind Jo Junoooe axe) 0} pajepdn pue PamaIAsl usaq sey ue|d juswabeue gNOY 24l

yiomaweuy Ao1jod

"'SANQY G Buissedwoosus ‘Ajjenb jeyuswuosinus
S} 40} pajeubisap si Ajunod sy} Jo %05 JoAQ “Alenb ybiy s Jo} ajqejou Apejnoiyed si JUBLWIUOIIAUS D1I0)SIY PUE |EINjeU S ,UOAR(]

y}iedoag) [eqo|o) e pue aAlasal assydsolg | e
s)selo4 Ajunwwon z
So)S abejuaH PUOM
lled] |euoneN yjed jseo) Issp yinos ay |
SHiied |euoneN ¢
aulyseod padojanspun s,puejbug Jo %09
1seo) abejusH paulep Jo u geg e
uolbiai 8y} JO %€ PUNOJE JBA0D SIBYJO Z JO Sped pue SgNOY 2L e
‘@pnjoul 1SepA yinos ay) ut sadeoaspue| pajoajold ay |

Page 129



EES

9q ueo Aineaq [esnjeu pue sonsusjoeIBYD SAIOUISIP ‘saljijenb [eloads sy} aiaym 10 moy ajensnjjl djay pue uoasq yinog o0} asueoyubis
Je|nofped jo aie jey) "0)8 SJUBAS ‘S80UB.LIND00 ‘SHewpuel ‘seoeld ‘SUOIEDO| Pajielep apn|oul pue oyoads ale sainjea AsY| "ajoym

B Se gNOV @y} uey) Jajjews seale 0} A|dde Ajjesauab pue aoe|d jo asuss s} uoaaq Yinos saib Jey st} Jeym auiep jey) sjusuodwod asoy)
9le soysusloeIeyD aAloUlSIg "gNQY Ue se uoleubisap jo Ayuom pue [e10ads eale ay) ayew Jey} saynqguiie Aoy ay) [isip sanijenp) |eioads

"@AIOUNSIP Bale ue ayew o} Jayjebo) awoo jey) ‘abejiay (eI} N pue salnjeay
abejuay |einjeu ‘Ayjinbues) pue ssaupjim aaiejal ‘Ajjenb ojuaos pue adeosspue| sepnjoul Ajneag |eanjeN wua) Buiyole-1aao ‘|aaa) ybiy ay|

|e1oads uoaaq yinog sayew Jeypi

(¢ xauuy) Juswnoop soueping Buluueld 8y} 995 "gNOY UoASJ UInog ay) 0} ooads saioijod Buiuueld jo poddns ui iejep
Jayuny sspinoid os|e }| "sasse00id juswabeuew juswdojaaap pue Bunjew-ued Ul UOHLISPISUOD |BLISJBW B S| UB|d Jusawabeuepy GNOY UL

‘uonesiuebiQ juswabeuel
SULB 8U) pUE [1Puno) AJunod uoasq ‘|louno) Al YInowA|d ‘ounod Aeqlo] ‘iouno) 1ou)sida SweH yinos - sanuoyine Bujuue|d
[e00] 8y} Aq ussepapun aie gNOY UoAe(d Yinog ay) Bunoaye Jo ulyum suonesldde juswdojaasp uo Buiyew-uoisioep pue Bujuue|d o169)e1S

juswabeuely Juswdojaaaq pue Buluueld d169)e1)g
"2oueAs|al Jejnoiped Jo si (£10g) Hodas uoissiwwo) AjANONPOId [BIny I1SOAA UINOS 8y "sqol 8)eato pue yimoib oiwouodss aroidwl

0} aAnoalqo Arewud sy} yim souel|je o1wouoda nuamod e si Aeqio] pue J1asiawos ‘YinowA|d ‘uoas( 10} diysiauped esudisjug [eoo] ay |
diysisupied asudiajug [eo0"] 3SapA YINos ayj Jo JesH

"saljiunwiwod Ayjjesy pue Awouoda usaib Buolis e Yyym ‘uorsq
$S0JoE 8J)| Jo Ayenb ybiy e suidispun juswuosAug [einjeu Ayjeay e Jey) ainsus o) Buppom useq sey uoaaq [ednieN ‘ZL0Z Ul pays!|qels

sdiysiauped ainjep jeso7

:Buipnjour ainyny sy o} [eonuo aJe sdiysiauped |eoo) Jueoyiubis Jayjo may e ‘espiwwo)) diysiauped
GNOV 8yj 0} uonippe u| ‘sdiysiauped pue suoljesiuebio Jayjo Auew Jo JUSWSA[OAUI pue Joddns panuiuod sy alinbas im gNOV a4 L

sdiysiaulied

Page 130



"puejul woog 1snl si Alepunog ayj seale Jayjo Ul IS|Iym ‘puB|UL WG JOAO SBYOea.l AIBpUNOq S} SBLIBN)Se ST pue

WIESA 9L} punoly "ess 0} IN0 WZ spuaixa Alepunoq jseo) abejlueH ay| ‘Jses ayj Ul Julod WELMUBYS PUB Bale 8y} JO 1S9M aU} Ul yoeaq
Ainquispn usamjaq sUIPSEOD JO (SB)IW G1) SRIIPWO|Y G/ BU} SISA0O } 1H86 | Ul UOISSILWOD) SpIsAnunon) auy Aq pauyep sem uoneubisap
Aloynjejs-uou siy| “auijjseod s, gNOY 84} Jo %,/ Buiuioy yseo) sbejusH uorsq Yinos ay) sajelodiooul gNOY UoASQ yinog ay |

‘(puelBuz ur wj2Z0'L Uim ‘|B10} Ul WHGZS'L) SBJeAN PUB puB|BuT JO SUISEOD B} JO PIIYI-8UO UBY)
alow Buuanod ‘paulyep usag aAey SaYolallS Gy ‘€261 90Ul "Juswabeuew aAlIsuas pue uonoajod Yjog Jo) wie [epads e way) aAlb olgnd
8y} Aq JuswAolus JiBYy) pue Ainesq |einjeu Jisy | "S9|eA\ pue pue|bug ul sulseod padojaAapun JO SaUDJaI}S ISaul By} ale s}seon) abejusy

Iseo) abejliay uoAaQ Ynog ayj 1oy uejd Juswalbeuey e se saAIas ue|d Juswabeuep gNOV SIUL

}seo) abejliay uoaaq yjnosg

"JooWwME(] WIBYINos pue

SWEH Yinog [eJnJ 'sumoy |ejSeod pue jaxlew ‘A0 yinowA|d ‘Juswuolinus auuew ayy Aq pawios gNOY 8y} 0} Bumes au) ul AjaleA v
‘JuswisAoW BjqisiA pue sadedspunos |enjeu sAljounsip ‘sadeosiybiu jesnjeu ‘Ayjinbuely ybiy jo sealy
"s8)nol jeuonealdal pue syjed ‘ssue| Buipuim Jo 31oMjau a)edLjul pUE JUSIDUE Uy

'SJuaAe |einjeu pajeloosse pue sarads ‘siejiqey jueoyiubis jo yydep pue ypesiq vy

‘Suolielo0sSE |eJn}Nd pue saunjes) oUojsIy JO Yjjeam e pue yydap awi you e yum adesspue|

"'SmalA olweloued sAlsuedxa pue jjlodsun ‘spim 21U

'sdo} nesje|d sy} wouy Aeme sAneI0as pue uspply ‘sjewnul s jeyy adeosspue| pasioul Aldasg
"odeospue| |eanynoube yiomyojed Buijjos [eans Aldesg

'S3SIN0JIS}EM PBJBIOOSSE JO YIOMIaU B pue saquiod des)s ‘(sAsjjen Joal paumolp) saLen)se ery
"auljise0d pabbni pue pim ‘padojaaspun ‘aul4 e

@ © e o ©o o o o

‘adeospue|
psjosjold Juepodwi Ajjeuoneu e se psjeubisap st gNOY UOASQ YINOS Sy} YoIym 10} Aineaq jeinjeu, anbiun ay} suyep sanijenb |enads ua |

‘0002 Y MOHD 8y} jo G8 uonoag
Yum aoueljdwiod 1oy passasse eq ued suonoe pue Aojjod yoiym jsurebe eusyo Jas sanenb eroads pue saiiod sy ‘ueld 9y ‘suoisioap
Buluuerd ur jybrem jeau, papioye aq pinoys pue adesspue| ay} INoge |eoads si Jeym sayiuapl Aineaq [eJnjeu 10 Jusuodwos yoes

Page 131



'saloljod pue seAnoalqo pajepdn Buisn gNOY
uoAs( yinog ay} Jo Aneaq [esnjeu sy} seoueyUS pue SaAIaSUOD Jey) Aem e ul sabueyo ssay) apinb djay o} swie ue|d juswabeuepy ay |

‘J1 8jeoaidde

0} ajdoad jo Ayjiqe sy} pue sjelqey pue adeospue| ay) soueyus o} saniunpoddo Bueslo osje Inq ssonoeid [einynoube [euonipes) pue

swuey Ajwey (eya Buiusyeauyy Alenusiod ‘gNOY aup ul pabeuew si pue| Aem ayy 0} sabueyo Jofew ui Jnsal pjnoa siy] °,spoob aignd, BEVIEETo)
0} staumopue| buiked o} ey o) siewuey Buiked woly Bunyys siseydwa ay) YIm ‘papuny ae SI0}08S PaSE|-pue| JNo Moy Jo) suonedljduwl
Jueoylubis sey uolun ueedoin3 sy} aaes| 0} wopbury pajuN 8y} Jo UoIsiosp ay| “wus) Buo| pue Loys ay yioq ul Jjo) Buleq aie jey) sebueyd
uspply pue a|qibue} Buijesid ale swi INO puads pue JIOM ‘BAl| am Aem By} pUNoLINS Jey) S82.0} Jo3JewW sy} pue JuswdojsAsp oIWou09]

‘uonjejuswbely jejigey pue seloads sAISeAUl ‘saseasip jued aiow wolj Buleyns si pUoM [einjeu ay IS|Iym
suieped wsuno) pue uoessoal Ul sebueyd Buionou pue sjuans Jayjeam awalixs alow Bupusuadxs Apealje aie ap) om pue oAl sjdoad
Aem ayy pue adeospue| 0} sbueyo Buiyoeal Jej e Bunealo si sainjesadws) |eqolb pue suisped Jayieam ul YiIys wis) buoj ‘ajeos abie] ayl

"SANQY Jo uopeubisap jo ssodind pue ‘sanienb |eads ‘Jejoeieyd ay} apoIs 0} suajealy) yoiym ‘Juswidojaaap woly ainssaid sjgeulgjsnsun
pue pajuspadaidun Buioe; sie SGNQY ‘JOASMOH ‘paduBlUS pUB PaAISSUOD 8 0} SNURUOD A8Uj) Jey} 8INS e [|IM JUSWUISAOL)

Jey} pue ‘sjasse |elnjeu s|gen|eA pue paysuayd ‘anbiun jsow Jno Jo swos asudwos SgNOY Jeyl S8iels ‘gLoz yoJe ul paysiignd

‘Ue|d JUSWIUOIIAUT JBDA GZ SJUSWIUISAO0S) By "MaiAal sIy) Jo Led se palapisuod A|peolq Ajuo ale pue diysseunied gNOVY @Y1 JO [01U0D

3y} Jo Jno aue abueyd 10} S82104 SO “s10joe) pue sjoedw Buibueyo Apueisuod 0} 108lgns pue dlWeUAp 8. SBRIUNWWIOD JIdY) Pue SGNOY

saouanjjui Aoijod Aay pue abueyd 10} s89.104

/Paulep lo pajeubisap usaq sey eale ayj yoiym 1oy sesodind ay) uo 1oedwi asteApe Jueoyiubls e aAeY PINod I Jayleym pue ‘Bumes pue
9|eds ‘ainjeu sjl Junosoe ojul Buye} ‘1eyew uoisidep sy} Joj Jajew e s juswdojanap Jofew, si jesodoid e Jayaym ‘g/ | pue z; | sydesBesed
jo sesodind ay} 104, GG 910Uj00) pajejas Aj9solo ay) pue ,Jajoeleyd |epads sy yum sjqiedwos st} ssajun ‘s)eldosdde aq o) Ajpyun
sliseo) abejueH e uiypm Juswdolaaep Jolepy "uoneAlasuod s) Jo souepodw Sy} pue Eale sy} JO Jsjoeleyd [e1oads ay) Ypm JUS)SISUOD aq
PInoys suolsioap pue saioljod Buuueld (z2| ydesBeled ul psuonusw sesse pajeubisap ay} JO SUO UIYNM ||e} Apeal|e 10U Op ey} pue) }seon
abejus se pauyap seale ulynpp, Hlomawel Aaljod Buluueld jeuonen ay) jo ¢/ | ydeibeled ui uojuaw yondxa uaalb aie sjseo”n) abejliaH

"adeospue| pajosjoid juepodu Ajjeuolieu e se pajeubisap s gNOY UOAS( YINOS 8y} yolym 1oy Ajneaq [einjeu,
anbjun sy} suyap jey; senienb |ewads ay) Jo suUo SE pasepISuU0D si uoreubisap ay) J0 JUBUOALIOD BULIBL JOPIM PUB SISJEM BI0YSUl By |

Page 132



"NQVY uoAs(g yjnog
34} Jo sanijenb [erads ay) eoueyus o|qIssod sieym pue ulejulew ‘oadsal suoisioap jJuswabeuew pue Buuueld suuew pue asn pue| jey)

0S PaJEd0APE 89 [|ImM uoesusoeley) adedseag pue adeaspue OLOJSIH pue Sjuswssassy Jojoeley) adeoseag pue adeospuen jo asn ay |
SJUDLISSBSSE [B2IUYDD | Zd/ue]

"pPaouUB|US puB PaAIaSU0D
9 [Im jse0) abeyieH uoreq yinog pue adeospue] GNOY UOAS(Q YINOS 8y} JO saunjesy Aoy pue JsjorIeyo aAlounsIp ‘sanijenb [eoads ay |

iajoeiey) Ld/ue]
‘pajetoasdde pue poojsiapun ‘pasueyus
‘Paurejulew ate Aay) aunsue o} sainjes) adeospue) jo Juswabeuew ay) ul 9dUBNUI pue uoneulpiood parosdw| :aA1303[qo Aoljod Asy

"adeospue| 8y} Jo JsjorIeYD BY) UI Sebueyd 0] asl 9AI6 Aew ueld sy} Jo pouad By} JOAO [IM Sjewi|d
Buibueyo uno jo joedwi ay; pue sabueyd aininy o} 8sil SAIB |jM SBIEN)SS INO Ul S|SUUEBYD Bunjiys ay) se yons sessaooid [e01940 |einjeN

"‘abesn

1ed ul ymolb pue juswdojaasp Jo sainssald ay) 0} anp paonpal Buieq a1e gNOV @y} Jo sabuuy ueqn ayy punoie Apenonsed ‘Ajjiinbued)
JO sjena) 1eyy Ajay| sty “sjoedw aaieinwno Buibewep Jayuny pioAe o} papaau AjBuiseasoul sle Jsjoeieyd |eoso) aAljounsIp J0adsal jey)
abueyo 0} seyoroiddy ‘gNOVY UOABQ YINOS 8y SsoIoe ojeas adesspue| e je )84 Buieq s sabueyo ajeos |jews jo Joedwi sARe|INWND ay |

"adedspue| 8y} J0 UOKIPUOD puE JSJOBIEYD BY) UO S0UN|UI Ue 8ARY ||e ‘ejewijo Buibueyo
@y} pue Buluued ‘asn pue| se Yyons seRIAROY "Sainssald [EJUSWIUOIIAUS PUE JJLIOUODS ‘[BID0S JO 1SOY € Japun Buibueyo si adeospue) ay |

"SSBUBANOUISIP |BD0| pue abejusy ‘lejorleyo
S} sutejulew pue saxew jeym Aoljod pue seopoeld Juswabeuew adeospue| yym syuj Ajjejuswepuny J9joreieyn adeosspue] ;| saway

"ANOV 243 jo Ajneaq |einjeu ay) aoueyua pue aAIasSuod 0] :39e|d

"S}asse |eun)no pue [einjeu SgNOY

3y} abewep Jo soueyus Aew jey) suonoe Buikpuapl 1oy pomawely e sepinoid ueld ay) ‘wiey [enuajod SSesse 1o ‘uleb |ejuswiuolIAUB JBU
SASIYOE 0} S| uoiquie 3y} aJ8YpA "gNOY By} uo sabueyo Jayo 1o Juswdojeaap jo Joedwl 8y} ssasse pue juswebeuew pue| [EJUSWUOIAUD
apinb 0} pasn aq ued saijod 8y -Bulagjem pue Ayuadsoid ino suidispun plIom [einjeu 8y} jey) Buisiubooal jsjiym Aneaq jeinjeu soueyus
PUE 8AIBSU0D 0}, uoneubisap gNOV 8y} j0 esodind Aiojnjels ay) 0} ajejal yey) sseioljod Buluiejuoo Absjens Bunno ssolo e s| ueid sy

saloljod pue saAnodalgo ‘swiy

Page 133



01

JOAI MO “SSO] [I0S ‘SHIOM Jusujeal) Jajem disem Jo sassedAq ‘esll [9A8] aes ‘UOoIS0.a |EISEO0D ‘BUIpoOl) Pasi|ED0| ‘SJUBAS JoylBam SWBNXS
pssesuou| "sjeliqey [episjul pue auljaioys Ajjeloadse ‘sainjesy Aey pue sanijenb |eoads sgNOY @y} uo joedwi ue Buiaey si sbueyo ayewi|D

'SpJezely wody uoljosjold pue uonesdal ‘poom ‘Abisus ‘alpim Usjem pue He ueajo ‘Pooy Ylim
sn buipinoud Aq Ajjeiyo inq sAem Auew uj siyy op Aeyy "abiel je Aunoo ayj pue sydoad 0} enjea Bulq Apoaupul o Aoap Jayjia ey} ainjeu
40 sjusws|e |[e aje 8saly| 'Seas INo pue Jie INo ‘s|ejaulll ‘sjIos ‘pue| Usjemysa.l) ‘se1oads ‘SwojsAsoos no Jo wns ay) si jeydes jeinjeN

"abueyo ajew o pue Ajjjenb Jie Jo anss| 8y} SI9A00 0S|e INq Jajem pue pue| Jo Juswabeuew
ayy ui sjou Aoy e sey diysiaupied 8y "gNOY U} 40 [enden [einjeu ay} o} sejejal ajeW|O B S82IN0SaI [RANBN :Z dway ]

"Jajoeieyo pue Ajijenb sy uiejuiew o)
uaxe} aq ||IM a1ed pue gNQY 8y Joj Bunjes |enuesse ue swuoy Alepunoq gNOY 3y Bululofpe puej ayy Jo yonuw jo Jsjorteyo [eunt Aideap ay |
aNQV ay} 0) bumes Ld/uen

‘paulesns pue pajoajosd aq ||IM SUOZUOY |elnjeu pue JajoBIeyd plim
‘smalA pajdnuisiuiun Buoj sy} :gNQV uoAa(d Yinos ay) Joy Bumes Bujuysp e suwiioy Jseod ay) woly usss adeoseas padojeaspun uado ay |
adeoseag gd/uen

‘19joeseyo adeospue] yym jusisisuooul ale jey) sbuipjing Buneuiwop Ajjensia pue ‘uoisnijul o1usos awi Jybiu sayesso 1ey) Bunybi

[euIs)Xd @1njonJjskelyul SUOHEDIUNWILIOD pue uoissiwsue.) ‘uonelouab ABiaus aaisnijul Jsuiebe uonosjosd apnoul senuolLd Juswdojaasp
ised Apybisun jo 1oedwi [ensia ay) eonpau 0} sjuswanoidwl YIm J18yyabo) pajowold aq ||Im UOISNIUI [ENSIA 10} 3|qisuodsal aJnjonJgselul
0} s@Aljeuss)je a|gelns ‘pajoajold aq |IM gNOY UOAS( YINOS Y} JO JNO pue Ulyim ‘ojul SMaIA uado pue saulfys Jo Jajoeleys ay |
uoisnujul [ensiA B saullfyg gd/ue

‘penjeasp Jayuny jou s Ajijenb
|e1oads sy} 8insus 0} Japio ul ‘pasueyus ajqeonoeld aiaym ‘pue paulejuiew aq [IIM GNOY UoASQ YInos ay) Jnoybnoiyy Ayjjinbue. Jo sjaas
Ayjinbuel) pdjuen

"pajuawbely 1o Buissiw se payiuapl sainjes} adeospue| Bunesuiss pue
uonipuod Jood ul sainjes) adeospue| Buisixe Jo uonipuod ayy Buinosdwi Aq Jejoeseyo adeospue| usyibuais o) Jybnos aq m sepunpoddo
uonipuod adeaspue gd/ue

Page 134



11

‘pauoddns pue pajesonpe aq [|Im Alsiaalpolq aaosdwl

pue JuswuoliAUS |elNjEU 8Y) BAIBSUOD 'S8SS8004d [BINjBU YIM YIOM UDIYM |0JJU0D UoISola pue Juawabeuew ysu pooj 0} sayoeosddy
uoisoa B Buipool4 Zd/soyIeN

'$801N0sal Jo diyspiema)s |ejuswuoiiaug poob jo jediound

9y} sjowold pue gNQOV UOAS(Q UYINOS 8y} Jo sapnienb [eioads sy} 9ouBYUS pue SAISSUOD SBAEIIUI 8S8Y) 81aym ‘suteyd Ajddns janjpoom
|eoo| wouy Apenopued seainos Jamod pue Jesy s|gemaual Jo asn ay) pue Aousioiye ABlsus asealoul Jey) papoddns aq [jim SaAERIU|

ABiaug gd/soyieN

"19)joeiEYD adeospue| 8ouUByUS puUB $82IN0Sal |einjeu

anasu09 Aeyy aseym ‘pajowold pue pauoddns aq [im saaneniul BuljoAosl pue Juswabeuew ‘UOlONPaI S)SEM |BIDJSWILLOD pUe d1}SaWo(
SISEM Gd/SdIEN

‘8|qeonoeld ateym sessasoud [eaisAyd yym Bupom pasueyue pue paAIasuod ale gNOY UoAa(

Yinog auy Jo saiijenb |eads ayj yeyy Buunsua jspym abueyd sjewno o) Bundepe ul aouaijisas dojeasp 0} Pa)SISSE 84 ||IM SSRIUNWILIOD
abueyo sjewD pd/sayIeN

e pue eas ‘pue| bunosye sjuaploul uofn|jod 0) sesuodsas AousBiawa apinb o} paurejuiew aq |m Buiuued Aouabunuos aanosyg
uonnjod €d/sayieN

"18)em Jo asn pue Ajddns ‘uonoessge ay) pue ‘uonnjod asnyip pue

90.nos julod ‘uswsbeuew jJusLINU pue 9)Sem ‘|l0s S|qeUIRISNS SSBIPPE 0} ‘9e0S JUSLWIYDIED JoAl & Je 1ybnos aq [im Juswabeuew Alenjsa
pue Jejemysalj ‘pue| Jo uonelbajul 8AlOBYS Y1 "gNOY UoAsg YInos syl Inoybnoiy) painoas aq (m Ajjenb Jejem jo spiepuels jsaybiy ay |
Ajjenb ssyepn zd/seyieN

"dNOYV @y} ul seounosas Atewnd ebeuew pue ssn Ajqeureisns o} ajqeonoeld asoym uaye) aq |im yoeoidde jeydes [einjeu a|eos adeospue|
‘lejides [einjeN Ld/sayIeN

"dNOY U} Jo [eyded [einjeu sy} jo Juswabeuew sjqeuleisns ay] :aAR2alqo Aoijod Aoy

"SalaysLj|ays [e1olawwod Jo Ajljigela sy} usjealy) pue sisjem Jno Buosye ||e ale sanianoe Buneoq
wouy uonnjjod |e0o| pue sjnpold-Ag Budipaw ‘sonoiqiue ‘sio}dnisip suLoopUs ‘swoolq [ebje Juswyouus Jusunu pue uonnjjod jeinynoube
esnyiq "sjuspioul uonnjjod pue uone)|is ‘sajel Joun Jsjem wiols ‘sbuipeo| Jusuinu Buisealoul S| SjUBWIYOIED Jajem ul Juawdojena(

‘Ajunwwoo Buiwuey [eoo] syy bunosye
sI sdouo |ealad 0) abewep Jayjeam pue suonipuod Bunsaniey Jnoyq "sesessip pue sjsad wouy sa1vads pue sjejiqey o} sbewep pue SMoj

Page 135



cl

aJilp|m pue ajdoad Bunoauuodsy Gd/oanolg

's9ss@00.4d |einjeu Buluielsns jo unoaey Ul uondwnsaid e Aq pauuidispun
Jybnos aq |jm ealte ay) Jnoybnouy) sainjesy [esibojoydiowosb pue |eoibojosb yueosyiubis Jo JusWSsUBYUD pue uoleAIasuod ay |

AjisiaAIpoe9 pdjoenolg

'8|eos adeospue| e Je Bale sy} 90UBYUS Pue SAISSUOD 0} Pasn aq |m yoeoidde eydes jeimeu v
s)ylomjau [eo1bojoo] g¢d4/o9501g

‘'sainsesw paseq-jejiqey Japim Yybnoiy) paiaaijap JoU SI UONBAISSU0D
asoym saloads Ajuond jo Aienooal ay) poddns o) uaye) aq ||Im uoloe pejabie | ‘paaIasuo pue pejoajo.d aq ||m seloads Ajuolud
saloads Ajuoud zd/oanoig

I0MjBU Jejiqey Japim U} 0} paxyul| Jajiaq aq pue ‘saAlloalqo uoeAIasuod JIay) aAaIyoe
0} AjsAnoaye pebeuew aq ‘pajosiold aq |Im AjIsiaAlpoab pue AyissaAipoiq Joj @ouepodwi [BOO] pue [euoijeu ‘jeuoijeussiul Jo says pareubisaq
says pajeubisa( Ld/oenolg

‘adeospue| pajoauuoo alow
pue Joylaq ‘4abbiq e jo ued se psoueyus pue paAIasUOD ale GNQOV @Y} JO sjesse [eoiBojoab pue AjisiaAipoiq ay | :aAnoalqo Aoljod Aoy

"ANOV au Ul Sjejqey ay Jo ||e JnoyBnoay) AJISIaAIpoIq [einjeu Jo souEleq 8y Jaye

pue puedxa 0} anuRuUOD sB108dS BAJBU-UOU SAISBAU| “pajoaye Ajueoyiubis aq [Im saloads pue sjejiqey ‘Spiemylou sanow aoeds ajewi|o,
JusLINd UNo Sy "sannoyyIp Juasald |le poddns oibelel)s pajiw pue AsAINS-a1 JO S}SOO PBJBIDOSSE ‘S8YIS JO Jaquunu abie| ay| "UISoU0D JO

94 0} 8NUUOD UOHUB)JE PuE $8DIN0SSI ‘UONI8}0.d JO S|aAS| JaMO| SAI8Dal Ajlesauab Jey) Sa)is e00), JO HJomiau auyy Jo Ajubajul pue uolpuod
Jusixe 8y ‘sso| pue uone|os! 0} Buipes| ‘A|Injsseoons anow 0} saoads ajiqow ss9| Jo AJjIge BY) psonpal sey siejqey Jo uonejuawbel) ay |

‘sjeligey |ejseod pue gnuos ‘puejsselb awos Jo aulpap

|enpeJb sy Buisnes a.e siaquinu 320]S8Al| ||EJOAO Uj UOONPaAI B PUE SBale PaULIB-UoU Jo Juswabeuew-1apun ‘Ajl@s1anuo) "sainssaid
Bunadwoo Japun pue aaonpoid Alybly si puel [eanynoube ay) Jo yonw xnesje|d puejul pue [B}SE0D 3y} UQ "UIEHSoUN S| sasldiajua asay)
10} @1mny 8y} Inq ‘sji|p|im astaAlp Buiioddns 0} payins ||om a1e uoAsQ YINOS Ul [BUOHIPE} SWLIB) PaXxiW pazisS Wnipaw sy "sjeNqey Jiay)
pue sa10ads ajijp|im uowwod Aoy Auew Jo sulpap [enpelb Buinupuoo e o} Bulnquiuoo aq o) Jybnoy) ase seonoeid [einynoube awosg

"BNOV 3y} Jo sjasse [ed160j0ab pue jejiqey ‘ajiipiim ay) 0} sajejel AJsiaAlpoab @ AjisiaAlpolg ¢ away |

Page 136



el

‘pauoddns pue psjowoid a4 [|IM JUSWUOIIAUS D1I0}SIY PUE [BIN}ND S, gNOY @Y} JO UOIJBAISSUOD SAI9E pue uondsioid ‘uonesnuapl ay |
JUSWUOJIAUS DLOISIY pUB [eIN) N LdASIH

‘2Jed pue juswabeuew wus}-6uo| panunuoo Jidy} ainsus 0} 8oe|d U] SwisiueyoaW aJe 818y} Yolym Joy adeospue| Buryiom pue Buial e jo ped

SE padueyUS pue PaAIasU0D aie SBUIP|iNg JeNOBUISA SAIROUNSIP PUE SaJnjes) ouosly s}l ‘edeospuel gNOY auL :aAl3oalqo Aoijod Aoy

"way) o0} Bunejas uonewlojul pue

uoniubooal yuswebeuew Jo soe| e y6noiy) SSO| JO UOIIBIOLBISP JO YSU JE 8Q PIN0D Yoiym pue ‘pajeubissp Ajjuaind jou ale yoiym (sainjesy
pue saunjonuis pajeloosse se ||am se) sadeospue| paubisap ouojsiy Auew osje ale alay] adesspue] gNOV 24} UIyim yidap-awi) |eaAs.
yolym sjuswise ouosiy yuepodwi ale pue Ajanoe uewny jsed o} yoeq Uil s|jom pue spuod se yons sainjes) psjnpayos-uou Jo Jaquinu

"abe||IA paulnJ spues|ieH pue ajiseD aquioo|es
SE yons ‘uoisola pue wuojs wodj sbewep pue sso| Buusyns ale awos pue (||e je ji) payuawnoop APood pue ajibely ale seys Buiuiews.
3y "asu [oA8| eas Aq pajepunul usaq Apealje sey yonuw aseym ‘ABojoseyole sauLien)sa pue [ejSeod Joaje 0} senunuod abueyo ajewnD

‘abueyo sjew[o pue sjewiue Bumoling JUsLIYOLOIOUS qnIoS ‘UOIIBANIND
Buipnjour siojoey jo sequinu e Aq pausjealy) st gNOY UoASQ YINOS 8y} UIY)IMm SjuswnuUow pajnpayos juenodul Ajjeuceu Jo uoijipuod ay |
"8SN JUaLIND OU UY)IM sainjes) |ejseod pue Aienjse pue suleq p|al) Se Yyons sainjesa) oLois|y jo sadA) ulenso Buibewep si 109|6au Buinunuo)

‘pajeipaidde pue poojsiapun ‘pasueyus ‘paulejuiel ate Aay} ainsus o} ‘gNOY @Yl JO Sainjes)
JUSWUCIIAUS DLIO)SIY BY} JO Juswabeuew ay ul 8dUBN|jUl PUEB UOHEUIPIO0D paAcidwi 0) Sajejal JUSWIUOIIAUS 2110)SIH :f sway |

‘yoeoudde siy) 0} |esjuad aq |m saroads aaljeu-uou aAlseaul Buibewep

}sow 8y} yum sisumopue| 0} adlApe pue asuepinb jo uoisinold ay] ‘ajgeonoeld S| uonoe alaym pue ‘sainads pue sjeliqey |eoo| abewep
0} uajealy) Asy) assym usye) aq ||m sa10ads aAljeU-UOU BAISBAUI JO ‘9|]ISEa} 8J8UM UONEDIpEIS 10 ‘|043u0d ay) 0} yoeosdde oibajess v
sa10ads aAljBU-UOU BAISBAU| gd/09501g

‘aslie 0} Aj9yl| I sa10ads
pue sjejiqey a|qessu|nA 0} aoueqinisip Jo abewep a|qejdacoeun alaym suoneoo) Je pabeuew aq |im ainssald [euonesioal pasea.toy|
soueqinisip pue abeweq Ld/oe901g

"Jajem pue pue| Jo sadAj |je Jo Juswabeuew sy} WO SHIP|IM 10§ SHJoUaq @y} asiwixew o} Jybnos aq [m saniunuoddo
sjoeduw| aAlEINWND BAISO4 9d/09901g

‘uopoe aAlsod auidsul 0} pue sn 0} sapirosd ainjeu
slyauaq ay} Jo uoneroaidde ajowoid 0} ‘@injeu YIM S210140M PUB SIOYSIA ‘Sjuspisal S, gNOV 2] 199uuodal 0} Jybnos aq |im saunpoddo

Page 137



4!

"SJEJIQEY SJ|P|IM JO UONESID BY) PUB UONEIAS|e POO|} ‘SUOCIOBINE ISUNO) ‘Siied uBABIED 10} puE| [esn}noube
JO 8sn 8y} se Uons ‘S8sn pue| dAljeuIs)|e 399s 0} SI9UMO pue| Buipes| ae sainssald [elouBULY PaseaIoul pue sawooul Buiwey ul sulpap ay |

'spoob 2ljgnd jo uoisiroid sy} uo paseq Bulaq sjuswAed ypm spyousq Jopeoiq oy} anjeA pue asiubooal [jIm WolsAS

MaU e pue Ino paseyd aq ||im siawiiey 0} sjuawAed 10a11p Juswuianob Bunsixg "pejieme aie sawayos Juswabeuew pue| [BJUSLIUOIAUS
Ixaug 1sod 1o} sjuswabuesre ajiym Ayurepsoun Buipuny sy Ajjeroadse abueyo Jofew jo pousd e Bulislua SI J0}08S ainynoube ay |

"dNOY 2U} JO Jajorieyd 8y} 9o0UByUS puUB SAI9SUO0D O}
sdjay 1ey) Jojoss Juswabeuew pue| pue Asjsalo) ‘Bulluie) s|qeulesns sy} Yim paulaouod si Juawabeuew pue| ' Bujwie4 :g away |

"GNOY 8y} ul saAneniul Juswabeuew pue| Jayjo ojul psjelbsiul 8 ||eys S}OSSE JUSLLLOIAUS DOJSIY JO JUBWaoURYUS pue uonoajoid ay |
Juswabeuew pue gdfASIH

"Jajoeleyo adeodspue| |BjSEOO 0} uonngUIUoD Jisy) Buisiubooas pue

Buipuejsiepun ‘Bunowoud ‘Buipiooas ybnoayy seinsesw yuswubies. pue suejd uoneldepe oy pajesodiodul aq [|m sayis abejusy |eiseon)
abejuay [ejseo) LdASIH

"saiAloe pue se1oljod ‘sjosfoid wiojul o) Japio Ul pajowold aq [|IM SB2IN0Sa) UOHBLLIoUI

pue $|00} Jayj0 pue sdejy aujl| ‘pJodaY JUSWIUOIAUT OUOISIH By} ‘uonesuajoeley) adeoseas pue adedspue] OLO)SIH JO ash ay |

$92IN0Sal [e21UYD3 | 9d/ISIH

‘Salnjesy ouojsiy pue abejusy
[e4N}nd JO uoieAIasSUOD pue aled ‘uojowold ‘uoneigajed ‘Buipiogal ‘Yyoseasal ay) ul pabeinoous aq |Im uoneddiped Ajunwiwos |eoo1
uonedioiped AJunwwo) GdfsiH

'sbuipjing pue sjuswnuow ouosly Juepodwi Jsow ay) Joj Jybnos aq |m Juswabeuew sjeudoidde yum Jayyebo) uonosjoid Aloiniels
uonosjouid Aioinels ydisiH

"sainjesy |eoisAyd pue s)salajul UoBAISSUO0D alnjeu

134} 0} Wwiey 8npun oM ainssald JOYSIA PUEISYIM O} B|qe Jey) SaYIs JLOosIY pue [esibojoaeydle 0} pabeinoous aq M SSa9. dljgnd
$S820€ dliqnd €d/ASIH

"eouepodwl [euoneu Jo jesse abejusy payiun s|buls e se papiebal aq |im adeospue] gNOY UOASQ YINOS ay |

Josse abejuay v ZdASH

Page 138



Sl

Juawabeuew pug| |ejUSWUOIAUT pd/uepue]

"Jojoeseyo adeospue| |eo0] uayibualls pue 109|jal 0} se0ads pue Sa)Is JO UOI0S|as

Iny2JeD 8y} pue sisalsjul Aysiaaipoiq Bunsixa o] Joalgns ‘pabeinoous aq ||IM SPOOM MBU SWOS pue saaJ) uawioads ‘spieyolo jo bunueld
3yl "gNOV 8y} ul @ouepodwi Jenofed Jo aie YoIym S84} JUSIOUB pUE UBISISA ‘SPIBUDIO ‘SPOOM [[BLUS ‘SPUB|POOM Judloue ‘seal) puepiied
ouOo}sIY ‘s@au) molabpay ‘syueq abpay ay) A|jeloadss ‘pajowold aq ||Im SpUB|POOM puE S881) JO JusWwabeuBW SAIISUSS puB UOKUS)aI By |
SPJeYDJO pue spue|poom ‘saal) ‘syueqebpaH gd/uepue]

"swiv)sAs Buiwuey asay) Bunelado ul paunoul s}s00 [euolippe 8y} Jo uoniubooa.
Ul }s@18)ul UoljeAISSUOD ainjeu pue adeospue| |euonidaoxa Jo pue| ulejsns oym siabeuew pue| pue siswle} 10} 3ybnos aq |m poddng
ainjeu ypm Buiwieq zd4juepuen

"ANOV 3U}
jo adeospue| aApounsip pue sapenb |eioads ayy Buiuiejuiew jo sueaw jediourid auy) J0 BUO SE PaIsISO} aq ||IM a|p|Im pue ajdoad o) sjauaq

pue Jaqui ‘jany ‘pooy Ajifenb ybiy Buipiroid Jojoss juswabeuew pue| pue Buiwie) |eioyauaq Aj|EJUSWLUOIIAUS pue 8|qeulelsns ‘s|qeyold v
ainn} s, gNQY ayj 0} [ediju] Ld/uepue]

"dNOV 8y} jJo
Jsjoe.leyd ay) soueyuS pue aA1esU0D 0} sdjsy ey} Jojoss Juswsbeuew pue| pue Anseuoy ‘Buluue) s|qeurelsns v :aAl}oalqo Aoijod Aoy

‘Buizesb yo0)seAl| 4o} pasn Aawio) sem yoiym pue| Buioaye si (seousy aam pue ade} ouyos|e ‘sdwnl ‘sia)jays ‘sa|qejs ‘6:9) ainjonisesul
pue ‘spjal JO UOISIAID paleloosse YiIm ‘syoopped asioy JO uoneasd ay| "spoyjsw |euonipel) aiow o} pasoddo se Buljieyy Aq pebeuew
Buleq A|Buiseaioul ase sabpay ‘spjay jo uoneweblewe pue [eaowal ‘Juswabeuew Jo yor| ybnoly) Buusyns sie ssuepunoq p|al) [EUCHIPE. |

"slebeuew pue| swos wouy Apunpioddo ssauisng e apiaoid pinod [any poom aonpold 0} Bauixel) eiejeyn MoeqaiQq
ysy jo juswabeuew ayj ybnoyye sjqepyoidun Ajjessusb ase Aay) :uaquiy Ajijenb mo| pue sadojs deaj)s ‘ssaooe peod Jood yjim sHun |jews ul
aie gNOV @y} ul puejpoom 1soly “Ajganonpold spue|poom abeuew 0} SISUMO 10} SAJUBDUI B @piaoid pue Jood ale Jaquul Y|ng 40} S8olld

"Jueosiiubis aie Bupjoolsas pue saunseaw Aleuonnesald Jo 1s00 ay) pue Ajljigela ssauisng

0} Jeauy} pasealoul ue Jussaidal sesessip |ewiue pue jue|d jo peaids Jusdal sy uonesisiujwpe pue uonenbai jo usping Buisessoul ue
pue ‘Ansnpul ayj 0} sjuesjus mau jo abepnoys e ‘uonejndod Bujwiey Buiebe ue Aq paluedwoooe s swaey paxiw AjiLue) Ul auljpap ay | ‘syueq
abpay jo 1098|6au ay) pue uopnjjod asnylp ‘uoisola pue uoioedwod jlos ‘Jajew oluebio |10S Jo uons|dep oy} JSAO passaldxd ale suIeouoD)

‘adeospue| jednynolbe jeuonipe
8y} sbewep o} |enuajod ay) sey ssonoesd |eunynoube uispow o) Bundepy "aulpap 0} SENUIUOD SULIE) PaXIW |[ews [euoniped) Jo Ajjigenyoad
pue Jaquinu ay) aiym ‘pasijeuisnpul pue pasijeldads alow ‘Jabie| Buiwoosaq aie swue) Jey) pual) a8y} apnjoul J0}0as ay) Ul Sanssi JopIAL

Page 139



91
"$)00]S YSI} pUE 8JI|p|IM SULIEL 0} 8SNED 3SaY) WIBY 8y} JNOge S8SEaIoUl 80USPIAS SB ‘Uiaouod Buimoib
e ale sofise|d suuel 1)l suLew ypim anss! Japim e Bunosyal ‘sapi ayy Aq ui Jybnouq si Jay| yoeaeq Jo sjeAa| ybiH “aulseoo jiodsun
pue pjim e jo uondaalad s,g|doad uo Joays paylew e Buiney Junowe |jews e UsAd YIm ‘gNOY @y} ul wajqold e se paaiaasad Ajopim si 1o

"90eds Jajem pue youne| ajes 10} 9)odwoD siasn sayoea( JO Jaquinu jjews e je pue
Jeio pasuojow Aq pesned sawijawos ale seale [Inbuel) Jo 9oueqINISIP PUE SJOIJUOD [BUOHESIDY UOISOIS PUE 9SN |BUONES.IDDI SAISUSIUI
‘SaljIAlOe [elolaWwwWwo9 1o} ainssald Buimolb Aq pspunodwoo ‘yuswdojaaap Ayjenb-1ood jsed Aq pejiods aie says [e}SE09 Jusulwold SWoS

"dNOY 8y} Ul SuUoiedo| [e1seod awos 10) sabuajjeyo Juesyubis Bupesio s S)UBAS ULIOIS BWaXa YIm pajdnod asu [aa9] eag “liedal
Aemybiy pue sepsadoud jenpiaipul punose aouajep }seod Buipnjoul ‘sjuswdojeAasp Jayjo pue ainjonAseul Jo) ainssaid panunuod si a1ay |

Jse0Q abejusH uoaeQ Yinos ay) Buipnjoul ‘gNOY 8y}
Jo aulpseoo yueoyiubis Ajleuonewsiul pue Ayjenb ybiy auyj Jo JusweoueyUS PUB UONBAISSUOD 3U) 0) Salejal dULIB @ }SBOY) 9 away |

"sawayos juswAed Juswuoliaua-iIBe Wol) SSWOJINO0 [BJUSLUOIIAUS PaSSNO0) A||ED0| J9AIIRP 0} SISUMO pue| pue siawJe) poddng
poddns juswabeuew pue gd/uepue]

"S9WAY} [BUOI}EU UO JAIISP Jey}
salloud [eoo| Bupeslo ‘uole}Nsuod pue uoleloge||od ybnoiyy padojaasp SSWODIN0 [BJUSWUOIIAUS JOAIISP O} aouejsisse pue poddns Jayo
poddns juswabeuew pue gd/uepue]

"‘adeospue| a|jqeuie)sns Ajjejuswuoliaua pue aAlonpold
e Buluteyuiew u) siebeuew pue| bunsixe pue msu poddns 0} psjowoud aq [im saoiAIes Bunoeuod pue Buluiel ‘AIosInpe paleuIpIo-00-|la\
Hoddns juswabeuew pueT Zd/uepue]

‘papoddns aq |im sanijenb jeioads s, gNQOY uoAs(q Yinos
3y} @dueyua puke aAIBSU0D Jey) suonelado anjea pappe pue sesudiajus UoNEIISIDAIP ‘SaNjIAIIOE UolESIUIBpOW ‘SadA} WLie) JO UOIIN|OAS 3y |
swe) Buinjoa] gd/uepyue]

‘uo Ajai e

SM SB82IAIS JUusWUOIIAUS [elnjeu pue sonpoid ‘pooy ay) Buipinoid pue ‘sanjenb jepads s, gNOY 8y} Buluiejuiew ui siabeuew pue| Aq paheld
joJ Juepodwi ayj jo buipuejsispun Jadosp e 8|jqeus ||Im J0j0as Juswabeuew pue| pue Bujwie) sy} Ypm Juswsbebus Ajlunwiuod JapIpp
JUSLWUOJIAUB JNO pue Bujuwe) ‘segiunwiwion) gd4/uepue]

"ANOY 2y} jo adeospue) jeanjnoube
aAljounsip pue saijenb |eoads ay) soueyus pue anlasuod djay o} pajowoid aq [m Juswabeuew pue| |ejuswuoaaue Ayjenb ybiH

Page 140



A

Jseo) abejusH uoaa Yinos ay) Buipnjoul ‘gNOY @Y} Jo sauen)sa pue
SJaAl Jueoyiubis Ajjeuoneussiul pue Ayenb ybiy sy} Jo JuswisoueyUS pUE UONEBAISSUOD 3y} 0} Sa)e|al sallen}sg pue SIaAly 1/ away]

"dNQV uoA2( yinog
89U} Jo saimes) Aa) pue sapijenb [eoads ‘Aineaq |einjeu ay) Bupueyus pue Buissuoo Jo asodind auy) UM SPIOSOE sIy) alaym papoddns

8q ||m sayis pasinboe Aimau jo juswebeuew ay) ‘papoddns aq |m diysieumo o1gnd aAnoa}0id Jo) sUIpSEoD padojaaapun jo uonisinboe sy |
diysiaumo o1jgnd aAosjoid 9d/4eiN

‘uonen)is ay) ssalppe 0} Joplo

Ul uae} aq o) sdajs sjeudoidde Jsow sy Japisuoo Ajinyesed (M suolesiueBio Jueasfel ‘ulewal sanssi Ajajes pue swajqo.d ajqensuowsp
SIBYAN I1SEBOD B Je S)0I)JU00 pue sainssaud euolesloal Buibeuew ul pasn aq jim subledwes ssousieme pue UONEONPS ‘UOHEULIO)U|
ainssaud |euonesiosy Gd/Ien

'}l 8]EPOWIWODOE 0} 80kedS S| 8I9Y) 8J9YM SUOIIEDO| 9|(E}INS SJOW 0} 8INJONJISEIUI [B)SE0D JO Juswubijeas ay} yum Jayjeboyl pauiaeid aq

llm sassao0.d |eoisAyd [eanjeu yum yiom Jey) suoinjos Bulesuibus 140s ‘sjqeonoeld Jarsisym pue uonuanisiul Buuinbal seale Aojjod Jayjo
104 "JoB 0} pamoj|e aq ||Im sessao0id |ejseod [ednjeu jey) uondwnsaid e aq [Im a1ay) ‘uonuaIsiul dAlOE ou Buuinbai se paynuap! seale
104 'sieak QQ| IXau 8y} S18A00 pue eale ay) 4o} yiomawely Aoljod e sapiroid ueld Juswabeuepy aul[aJ0ys 19s10(] pue uoAa(q Yyinosg ay |
uonosjoud 1seon) yd/Iei

"sawwelboid uonesiuNWwod pue ssaualeme ‘subledwed
‘ainjess)l| gNOY Inoybnouy) pajowo.d pue pajosyjel aq |Im }Se0)) abEJISH By} pue sesle 8say) UM pajeloosse saljenb |eads ay |
juswuosiAue aulew Apjenb ybiH ed/1ei

"ANOV @y3 jo sainjea) Aay pue sanijenb einads ‘Aneaq [eunjeu ay) Bupueyus pue Buiniesuoo Jo esodind ayj 1oy piebai aAeY ‘600z 1oV
SS90V [B}SBO) pPUB UL SY) Jopun Uiblew |e}Seod ay) 0} SS809B puk ‘seale JSaMUIN0S pue YINos 8y} 1o} sue|d aulepy jo Juaswdojansp
3y} jey} aunsue o} Jybnos aq |Im Juswuosaue sudew Buiuiolpe ay Jo Juswabeuew ay) Ypm juswabeuew gNOY JO uonelBajul 8Aoays ay |
Juswabeuew aupew pue 1se0D) Zd/1eIN

"'sa)is papelbap
JO uoKIpUOd By Ul sjuswaroldwl 1oy JYBnos aq (M ssiiunuoddQ “palosjold aq |m ISEO0D BU) JO Jsjorieyo padojaaspun pue Inbues ayL
Ja)oeIEyD |BISEOD) Ld/HBIN

‘selen)s3 wiea A pue abpugsbury
- 8quWodjeg ‘swl3 ‘Weq ‘UOAY By} |Iejap Ul SI8A0D (Lxauuy) ueld Juswabeueyy sauenjsg uoAa( Yinos ay | :aAnoa[qo Aoijod Aoy

Page 141



81

Juswabeuew |ejuswuoliaug 94/1s3

"yoeouddy peseg juswyoljes) ay} pue ‘swnioj AJunwiwoo
‘diysssuped sauenisg gNOV @y ybnoayy padojansp aq ||Im SBLENISS PUE SIBAL BY) JO JUBWSBBUBW PUB LONEUIPIO0D SAIOSYS BY |
Juawabeuew pue uoeUIPIO0)) Gd/IST

"Buipooylj wouj sjuswapes Bunosjoud sjiym ‘sjqeonoeld Jaralsaym
sassao0ud |esnjeu Buiuieysns ybnoayy pajowold aq |im asli [9A9] eas pue abueyd sjewno o} sainads pue sjejqey jo uoneydepe ay |
abueyo srewn|D ydfnis3

‘Aijenb ss1em o} sjuswanoidwi Jayuny 10} JBALP, B SE pue Aouods
gNOV 8y} jo ainjes) [euoniped) e se yjoq ‘suoneoo) sjeudoidde ul pabeinooua pue paulejal aq |im saslidiajue ain)nNoLew 9|qeuleISNS

ainmnoue €dfis3

"wa)sAs Buiuueld ayy ybnoyy pajsisal aq ||IM S8SN JBYJ0 O} UOISISAUOD
Aq simonuiselyul 8pis-810yS JUBAS|SI JO SSO| 8y} pUE SEaJe INOgJeY UlyIMm pabeinoous aq |m sanijioe) abelols pue Jiedal ‘soueuSjUIEW JBOY
S90IAISS awUe Zd/As3

‘JuswdojeAsp pue peaids sbunioow woly papienbajes

pue Jejoeseyo pajlodsun pue |Inbues aivy) 104 pabeuew aq [Im salENISa 8y} Jo sped S)oWwal S10W SY| "8JN}ONASEIUI PUB SaNI|Io.)

Buneoq Ayjenb ybiy Aq pejuswiidwon ‘pajowold aq jjm seale Jnogiey padojanap Bunsixa ay) UIIM PaUIBIUOD ALOUODD awnuew Buiauy) v
Jajoereyo Auenisg Ldis3a

‘slisgem gNOY 8U} eiA ajgejieae s| Aieniss yoes Joy ueld Ajunoasolg sauenisg uy ‘selenjsg Wies A pue
abpugsbury - aquooles ‘swlg ‘Ueq ‘UOAY BY} SIBA0D (| XBUUY) Ue|d Juswsbeueyy ssueniSg UOAS(] YINos ay | :aAnoalqo Aoljod Aay

"SYIIPIM BARISUSS JO SdUBqIN}SIP Bsealoul 0} [eualod sy} sey siy) ybnoyyje sseooe apisAiunod 4oy jejusjod jealb Jayo sjen Alensg yeo
|BUORESIO3 ||BLWS JO) SaN|ID.) YounE| JaPaq pue J0joss aJnynoliew pue Bulysy sy 1o} ainjonijselyul apis-aioys paroidul Joj sjuswaiinbal
aJe a1ay| sjulod ssaooe Ao U0 ainssaud pue selEN]SS By} UIY)IM saoeds eulew pue sBuLloow 1oy puewap [euoneasal Buols st alay |

‘'sasn

Buneoq sjepowwosoe o} suoleoo| spis-Aienisa padojaaspun Jayjo uo ainssaid Buisesioul pue saoinies oddns apis-210ys [enuassa o
Aliqein syy Buluiwiepun ‘sesiwaid jeuonipe) Jisy) wouj paoe|dsip Ajlenpelb usaq aAey sassaUISNq SwWiLEW paysijqelsg Aljenb Jajem pue
sel0ads ‘sjejiqey ‘edeospue uo sjoedwi sAleINWND YIMm ‘sauljaioys Atenjss Buoje juswdojaaap 3ing Jayuny Joj ainssa.d eoubis si alay |
‘Sjuswe|ies awos pue ainjonlisesul Arenise pue JaAl uo Buoedwi S| asL [9AS] BBS PUB SJUBAS WLIOS SWBAXS JO Joquinu pasealoul ay |

Page 142



61

"S}OSSE |B21I0)SIY PUE [eINjeU S eale 8y JO J9jorleyd ay) Joayue
0} |epuajod ay) sey os|e ainssald Joysia Buiseaioul ‘JuawdojsAap [einl 9|geuIRISNS pue AWouoo8 [BD0] 8y} 0} SUOIINGLIU0D 3|gen|eA ayeuw
ueo WSLNO) JO SWIO} 8|qeuleisns jey) pasiuboosal si I ISIIYAA ‘way) Jiedas pue urejuiew 0} Buipuny Bupjuuys sI 818y} usym awi} e Je ‘sa)is
3|qeJaulnNA pue Sall|io.) [euoiealoal uo ainssald asealoul 0} anuluod gNOY @yl Ul siaquinu Joyisia pue uoiendod ‘Buisnoy jo ymolb ay |

"UI92U09 JO SNO0} B 8q 0} anunRuo? sbop jo Juswabeuew Jood ay) pue UoONJISGO JBD ‘SjIp|IM JO 8dueqIn)sip ‘asiou ‘ssedsal |

"s19}0 jo Juswholua ay) jlods pue gNOV @4} 10 Alljinbuel) 8y} qunisip SeNIAlIO. [BUOIEaI08] SAISNIIUI puE AS|OU SWOS "92UapIuU0d

pue Ajunpuoddo Jo yoe| pue ‘Wodsuel) pue uoneLWIOUI 0] SS9 JO Yoe] ‘Aljigesip Jo Yieay Jood Aq pabejueapesip ajdoad apnjoul asay |
"Jjou op uonejndod ay} jo sjuswa|s Juedubis Ing ‘uonealoal pue sS900k apISAUNOD JO Sjiyauaq yieay ay) Aofua Ajaanoe ajdoad Auep

‘abesn s|qeulelsns pue ajes Buibeuew 10) pue
‘uonjewIojul pue ainjonsisequl Bujurejurew 1oy pasu Jajealb e Buisodwi Ajaoe |euonealdal Jo sadA) ulepao Joy puewsp Buisealour si a1sy|

'S1asn uaamiaq Jo1)juod pue ‘ABojoaeyo.le pue siejqey o) abewep ‘uonepelsbap
adeospue| ‘uoisols Buisned ‘spolad yead Bulinp sayis Jejndod awos je Ajlloeded Bulluied ay) Buipasoxa si aunssaud |euoiealdal asusiu|

'$9sN JaYylo pue Ansalo} ‘ainynoube Jo spaau
ay} pue adeospue| pajoajold ayy yum ajquedwod si jey) AJialjoe sjgqeulejsns 0} ssjejal WISLINO | R UOoIjealddy ‘SSad2y g away |

‘gNOV 243 Jo Aineaq |einjeu ay} adueyud pue aAIasuod jey} AJiAl)oe [euoljealoal
pue juawabebus |e1oos ‘JuswdojaAap 21WoU0dd ajqeuielsns Joddns pue abeinooug :Ajuadsoid pue ajdoad

"uonoe siy) Buiasiyoe 0} |esjuad si SanLoyINe Jueasjal pue siadojaaap yum Buppiom pue Buisiapy Jeligey Jajem uado pue
pageas ‘aJ0ysalo} Jo Y)jeay jua)xa ul uieb jau e yum apnjouoo o} pabuajieyo aq |m sjuswdojaAsp Sio)em |epl} pue pagess ‘a10ysalo) ||y
Juswabeuew a10ysaio gd/is3

‘JuswWa2J0jus pue Buodal ‘uonewlojul ‘smejahq aaoays aiow ybnoay) uonejoldxa
-1an0 pue Buiyoeod wouy uoioslold aanoaye UaAIBb aq ||IM SIBAL pue salenIsa gNOY @Y Ul ysiy AlojesBiw pue Juapisal jo suonejndod ay |
Jjuswabeuew sauaysi4 /d/3s3

‘saljiienb
[e1oads s,gNOV uonaq yinos ayj JO Juswadueyua pue uoijeAlasuod sy} ainsus yoiym sadioeld |ejuawuoliaua poob yym pauuidispun
‘@)sem pue Buibpaup ‘uonebineu ‘sbuioow Buibeuew 1o} sjuswabuele aAnoays Buluiejuiew ul papoddns aq ||IM SaijUOYINY JNogJeH

Page 143



0¢

WISUNO| 6d/29V

"uoneJsajijoid ebeubis asiwiuiw 0} 8|qIssod JaAalaym SUOIED0| Se pasn aq |m shkemdijs se yons sjuiod sseooe |ediound

pue syied Jey “Inoiaeyaq sjeIapISUCD pue suolejoadxa ajeudoidde ‘Buipuelsiapun saeslb isisoy djpy o} ‘elpaw Jo sbuel e ybnouyy
pajowoud aq ||im SS200E pUB UOHESIOSI BULENISS PUE SULEW ‘[EJSE0D ‘BpISAIUN0D Jnoge uonejaidisiul pue uolewJojul pajeulplo-0)
UOIBWIOJU| 8dfooY

"eale Buipunolns ay) ul sanjioe) pue Ayoedes Buikieo Buinoidwi o) BunguIuod se ||am Se a)IS-uo Saljl|Ioe) |euoljealal 8|ge)ns apiaoid 0}
pajoadxa aq ||Iim siadojsaep ‘sauen]sa Jo JSeod ‘apisAnunco ay) uo sainssald [euonesioal asealoul o) AjayI| aJe sjuswdojanap mau alsypn
suonnquuod 1adosas( Ld/2oV

'8Jnssaid |euonealoa.l SAISUSJUI UIBJUCD PUE S}EPOLULLIOIDE. O} 9]k }S8(

81e yolym salis padojensp pue Jejndod aiow sy} uo pajesjusduod aq ||Im Buaxsew pue uojowold ‘seainosal Juswabeueyy ‘suoneunsap
pasn Ajineay jsow ay) 1e pajowoid aq [|Im UOREULIOJUI PUB SINJONJISEIIUI [BUOHEaIO8) ‘SBIIIDe) JOHSIA a|qeulejsns Jo uoisinoid ay |

selis Jejndod 9d/29V

'600C 1V SS200Y [e}se0) pue sule|y ay} jo ped se sjoasfoid uibiew jejseod Buipoddng "sajis ajpjim sAlisuss spienbajes pue soueqimsip
SPIOAE Jey)) sioumopue| Yim uolije)insuod ul Jybnos aq |jm JopLIod [ejseod padojaaapun sy} pue sayoeaq 0} sseo9e Jo Jybu olignd v
JOpLIIOD [B]SBOD By} pUE S8Yoea( 0} SS900Y Gd/29V

"uoliealdal pue ssadoe Jo uojjowoud sy ui Ajuoud usaIb aq |IIm ajipjim 8|qelsunNA Jo uooejold auy) pue Alneaq |einjeu Jo
juswsdueyuS pue UOKBAISSUOD SY] "PabeINodsIp aq ||IM SSIAROER [BUONEIDS) SAISNIIUI JO ASIOU ‘seale apISAIuNoo |INbuels) pue sjowal u|
Sal}IAIJO. |BUOIESIDBI BAISNIUI JO ASION $d/99V

‘sanjilenb |eloads s eaie ay} soueyua 0} sauNoddo yum sapioulod siyy aseym Apejnoiued ‘psjowold pue JuBnos aq [|Im SIONSIA

pue sjuspisal Jo Buiag-jlom pue yjeay sy} Jduaq 0} GNOY UOASQ YINOS SY) JO 90IN0SaJ JUSIUOIAUS [eJnjeu oy} asn o} saiunpoddo
Auyesy AjjeineN ¢d/oov

‘Aineaq |einjeu Buoueyus pue Buinlasuood ypm ajgrnedwod si siy) asaym sebeyul; sroidwi pue wayj pusixa 0} Jybnos

9q || seunuioddQ "pajowo.d pue paulejulew A|SAIISUSS 8q ||IM S)N0J [euolEaI0a) dIBajel}s pue syjed JO YIOMIaU PajosULIod-||am
Aepn Jo siybry zd/ooy

"Juswabeuew pue| pue salijenb jepads ‘Ajneaq [einjeu s eale ay) pue s19sn IaY)o

Joadsal jey) spods pue saiiAoe ains|9| ‘uoleasdal ybnoiyy pajowoid aq m ognd syy AqQ GNOY UoASQ yinog ay} Jo yuswdiolus yainb ay |
Spods pue ainsig| ‘uonealdsy Ld/o9y

"asldisus |eoos pajeal
adeospue| sjendoldde pue Ayunwiwos u uoedionied sAljoe 8U) pUe SaI|IOB) PUE SIDIAISS O} SS9008 parocidw :aAnoalqo Aoljod Aoy

Page 144



I

|jooojoud Buluueld g¢d/ueld

‘Ayoselsaly uonebiniw ay) Buimojjoy

Ag gNOV uoaaQ yinog sy 0} Juaoelpe Jo uyim Bumss sy 0} sjeuoiodosd pue sjeudoidde si jey) Juswdojaaap poddns pue ‘gNOY UoASQ
yinog ayj jo Aineaq |einjeu ay) Bupueyus pue Buirissuod jo asodind ay) o} Jybiam jealb aaib |im suoisioep juswabeuew juswdopas(
Bupyel-uoisioaq zd/ueld

"SaIUNWWOD |BO0| JO SPBaU |BIDOS PUE JILIOU0DD
3y} sj@aw pue ‘Jsjoeseyo sy yum buidasy ui si ‘Bupes sy 0} sjeudoidde s| jey) Juswdojanap ajeos jjews Buloddns ajiym ‘gNOY uoraqg
yinos ay} jo saijienb |epads pue Ajneaq |einjeu ay) Buoueyus pue Buiaiasuod jo asodind ay) o} Jyblam jealb aalb m saioljod Buiuue|d

Bunjew-ueld Ld/ueld

‘JuswdojsAsp a|geulelsns a|qedwos
loj sapijenb |e1oads gNOY @oueyus pue A1esuoo 0} Aoljod Buiuueid Buisn pue Ayoselsiy uonebniw ayy buik|ddy :aA3oalqo Aoljod Aoy

"8JI|p|IMm 0} @ouBqUNISIP puke sainssald [euonealoal ‘1ajem aysem ‘uonnjiod b
‘oiyjey) |leuonippe Buipnioul ease Buipunouns sy 0} sjoeduw Joauipul jo abuel e Buibuuq si uoiBal-gns ay) ul JuswdojeAsp Mau JO 8|eos ay |

‘Juawdojansp Buisnoy 4o} aunssaud Buisealoul Japun awoo UIyim

pue Auepunogq gNOY 8y} 0} Jusoelpe Ajejelpawiwl Yjoq seale Jely} ueal pue| ajgejleA. Uo SJUIBJSUOD 8y 'sasn Jayjo o) pue| Juswhojdws
pue WsKNOo} ‘ssaulsng JO UOISIaAU0D ay) pue sa)is plaly usalb uo Buisnoy mau :apnjoul 10edwi 3sow Buiaey Apusiing sadA) yJuswdojarsp
8y ‘Bumaes |eins pue uequn Buiuiolpe sy} ul pue Asepunoq ay} apisul Yjog Juawdojaaap 10} ainssald asusjul Japun sulewal gNOY oYL

"dNOY 8u} Jo Jsjoeleyo
2deospue| ayj pue sjuswayes [ENPIAIPUI JO JsjoeIeyd By} uodn sjoedwi [ejuawiLlep sesiwiuiw jey) Aem e uj aoeld ey o} Juswdojersp

Aue Joy juepoduu Alan si )| Juswdol@aap Jo swioy Jayjo pue Buisnoy jaxiew 10j ainssald os|e s a1ay] “pasinbai aq |m Juswdojprap
pue BuISNOY Mau JO Junowe Ulepad B ‘pasau Siy) }J8all 0} pue gNOY Ul uiyum Buisnoy s|qeploye Joj pasu pasiubodal e si a1ay |

‘S8NIUNWIWOD pUE BH|p|IM
SH “gNOV 34} JO JusWaduBYUS pue UoleAISSUOD By} Ul 8jos A8y s)i 0} Buijejes Juawdojaaa( a|geuie}sng pue Buluueld :6 away |

‘papoddns aq ||Im SIONSIA SBBSISA0 0} BaJe ay} Bunowo.d ul }SISSE 0) puB UOSESS WSLINO)
ulew ayj} puajxa 0} SSAIeRIUI pue SBllIAOY "PalsISal 8 ||IM SI9SN [BUOIIEaI0d) PUB SIOYSIA 1O} SB1}I|I0B) PUE UOIEPOWIOIOE JO SSO| 8y |
"pauoddns aq |jm eale ay) Jo Ajjenb [ejuswiuoAUS BY} 0} SBINQUIUOD PUE WOJY SHIBUSq Yolym AsSnpul WSLING} punos-leak ‘e|qeulelsns vy

Page 145



(44

"‘papoddns aq [jim sanijenb |eoads sy yum ajqnedwos pue
gNOY 3y} 4o I8joeieyo einl sy 0} sjeldoidde pue aARISUSS SI YOIYM JOUUBW € Ul US3EUSPUN B4 [|IM PUB SOUBUSUIBL YJOoM)aU AemybBiH
Juswabeuew AemybiH Ld/suedj

"S90IAI3S pue SHIoMJau Jodsued) Jo uoisiaoid
pue Buluue|d sy ul paiepisud I GNOY 2y} Jo JuswAolua pue juswuoiiaua ‘adedspue| sy} uo joedwi ay | :9Ano9lqo Aoijod Aay

"SISIjoAD pue s18pl 8s1oy ‘Sied|em AqQ SN J0) B|qelNSUN SPEOI [BINJ AUBLW pasapual Sey JIel] PasLojow Ul
9SEaloul 8y "Jomiau peol [eind 8y} uo Joedwi Buisiueqin e aAey ues Bujwies oyjel) pue Buiul ‘ebeubis ‘Buiglay o) suonesynads wapow
allym ‘syuawubie peou onayjedwAsun pue syueq abpay Buissiw ‘Buiousy sum pue jsod sjeiouod ‘Bunybi aAIsnu}qo Jo Aoeba) e sI aiay

'sel0ads aAIseAul Jo peauds ay} pue ‘sBuioey suojs pue |1os jo sso| ay ‘Buljiey ‘Buidwinis ‘seoe|d Buissed jo Buueam
ay) ‘sbewep sjoiyaA Joa.1p ybnoiy ‘senunuod sabian pue syueq abpay apispeod jo uonepelbap ay| “Ayjinbues sy pue apisAnunoo ayj jo
Ajjenb syy ojur uoisnijul ue sejeaI0 PUB SUONEO| UIEHSD Je uolSaBuoD SasNEeD ‘SYIUOW JBWLWNS U} Ul Auenomued ‘ainssaud ouyes) asusju|

"Aj|inbuel) pue Jajoeleyo BulnIBsU0D SPIEMO) SBINGLIIUOD
ey} ubisep Aemybiy pue sseooe paroiduwi 1oy saniunpoddo ‘podsues; ajqeulesns o) ajejal sAemyBbiH Q Modsued] g} awayl

"Juswnoop aouepinb Buiuueld gNOY UoAs(Q
yinog ey Buipnjour syuswnoop Buiuoddns pue aoiape Buipuels ybnoayy papinoid aq AjBuisesiou [im sjesodoad JuawdojaAsp U0 aIAPY
20lape Bulpinoid 9d/ueld

‘saljijenb |e1oads pue Ajneaq |einjeu s, gNOY UoAS(Q YInog ay)

40 suoneoo| oylads ul abueyd o} AyARIsUSS 8y} uo aaoadsiad [e20] B apiroid 0} BNURUOD [IIM JUN GNOY 8yl “Aineag jeimeN Buipuesing
jo sealy Bunoaye siejew juswdojarep ajqeulelsns pue Buluueld uo as)nsuoo Aloynjes jediound ayy aq 0} SNURUOD |jIM puejbul |einjeN
$99)|NSuU0) Gd/ueld

"dNOV uoA(Q yinog
3y} Jo sapijenb |elpads pue Ainesq |einjeu sy Buoueyus pue Buiniasuod o) Jyblem jeslb Buinib saioijod 1SNQOJ PUE JUSISISUOD 2IND8S pue

ssao0.d uonesedald ueld ay} Jnoybnoiyy gNOY uore(Q Yyinos ay} jo Ainesq |eanjeu sy Buoueyus pue BuinIasuod Jo asodund ayj 0} piebau
pey aAey Aay) Jey) ainsus 0} 'sue|d auuepy Jo 10adsal ul uolesiueblQ Juswabeuel aULIB 8} 0) PUB ‘SYIOMBWE] Juswdojara s)sepn
pue sjesaully pue sue|d pooyinoqybiaN ‘sueld |ea0 Buuedsid senuoyiny Buiuueld [eooT 0} suopejuesaidal apinoid [im un GNOY dYL
suonejuasaiday pd/ueld

‘Bupiej-uoisioap pue Bupjew-ue|d wiojul 0} UOHEISPISUOD [BLBJEW B SE UB|d Juswabeue|y gNOVY uoAa( Yyinog ayj asn pue |0oojoid
Buiuueld peaibe sy Bumoljoy suoneoidde Buiuueld Jueoyiubis pue Aoijod Buluueld uo yun aNOY @y} }Insuoo |im sanuoyiny Buluueld 12007

Page 146



£l

‘papoddns pue pajowoud aq |im sailjenb

|eloads s, gNOY 8yl 9oUByUS JO 9AIBSUOD YdIym pue gNOV SU} Yiim uoleloosse [euoniped) e Buiaey s10)0as JuswAojdwg Jayjo yoes ulejsns
$924n0Ssal |eJnjeu JNO Jo Yjjeay ay} pue ymolb d1wouoos ajgeulejsns aiaym papoddns aq [im Awouods uaalb s eale ay) Jo Yymolb sy
Awouoda usslic) L4/uody

asudiajus |eloos pajejal
adeospue| sjeudoidde pue Ajunwwod uj uonedioied aAJOE B} pUE SaNI|I0.) PUB SBDIAISS 0} SS8008. paAciduw) :9A1)09[qo Aoijod Aay

"GNOV 8y} Ul Sjuswapies |eind Jg||ews
jo AJijiqeuleisns ay) J09 e 0] SONUNUOD SIDIAISS [BJNJ [BIJUSSSD JO DINSOO JO Bjed BY| "Bale 8y} Ul sessauisng [eins Buioey Apeadje sebuajjeyo
pajool-dasp ajenjuadde 0} PaAlas aAeY S82.04 JaxJew [eqolb ul sabueyo pue sainseaw Ajusisne ‘seoiales pue sjonpo.ud Jo 1sod Jaybiy ay |

"SaJjuad ueqin Agieau 0} SIaXJIom

Pa||1s jo uonelbiw-ino Jenwwod Ajlep }au jueoyiubis e piemo} sainguiuoo os|e uonisod siy| "siaxiom [enuew pajs pue ajdoad BunoA
Alrenonued ‘eolopiiom [ED0] B JO UOUS)SI PUE JUSLWINIOBL BY) O} 9j0BISqO UE 9)eald gNOV @y} ul sebem abelaae-mojaq pue Bulal| Jo 1500
dY] "uoIsiaAu0o Ag sesiwaid 80IAI9S pUB WSLINO] ‘SSauisNg JO SsO| panujuod e Buisneo si juswdojaaap |enuapisal o) puewsp ybiy ay |

"S}o|Wey |ednd paje|osi 0} SUMO} W) AleA Saljiunwiwod [ed0] JO spaau [e100s ay | aoe|d Bunje) Alanoe
dlouods pue ssauisng jo abuel apim ypm ‘edeaspue| Buppiom pue Bual e Jnoge |je s| S89IAIS pue Awouoo] jeiny :L| away |

‘papoddns aq ||Im JED BYj JO SN 8} 0} SSAIJEUIS)E JUSIUSAUOD pUB SadIAISS Jodsueld) olignd ajqeule)sns Jo uoisiroid ay |
podsuel} 2llgnd 9d/suea ]

"SpeO. Joulw }sow 8y} uo sapoiyeA Areay pue abie| Jo ainssaid ay) sonpad yolym papoddns aq |im sainsesw Juswabeuew oujel |
saolyan abie gd/sued |

‘pejowold aq |m s1eAlp abeuses pue siepu-asioy ‘s)sioAo ‘suel)sapad Ag speou psjjejewun jo asn a|qisuodsal pue |ebs| ay |

SaueT uaal9) pd/suel]

"UOIIPUOD

Jood ul Jo aAisnul Ajlensia ate yoiym sxaedied Buisixa 4oy Jybnos aq |im sjuswasaoidwi adeospue] "palsisal aq ||Im SIS |e}Se0D ajowal

Je Ajloedeo Bupped Jeos jeuonippe juesyiubis Jo UoORONJIISUOD BY) pue suoleso| Bulsixe uIyIm paulejuod aq Ajjesauab |m seunssaid aulog-ien
Bupjed gd/suea

"PanIasuoD pue pajoajoid aq ||Im J}Jomjau peol s, gNOY 8U) Jo Sainjes) jein)nd pue adeaspue| ay |
}IoM}au peol sy} Jo sainjeaq zd/suel|

Page 147



Ve

‘uoneaudap jo sjexood uappiy ul
Apople ayy )sbuowe Ajenonaed ‘pasusuadxa |§s aie uonejos pue Apeaod ‘yyesy Jood ‘UOISN|OX® |eln)Nd pue [eIo0S °||e 0} PuUd)Xa Jou Sa0p
aj1| Jo Ayjenb ybiy v ‘s1espunjon Buninioss A noyip o€} pue payolaus Ajulyy ale suonesiuebio Ayunwiwod pue ssoinss poddns jeins Auepy

‘Buisnoy jo 1s00 ybiy ay) pue sjons] abem sbelane
MO|3q JO 8snedaq gNQY au} Ul awoy e pioge o} ynoiyip Ajpwalixs )i puy sjdoad Buno -aisymasie sepiunuoddo qol pue uoneanps Jaybiy
0} 06 o) eaJe ay) Buines) ale synpe BunoA pue ‘uoneunsep aWoY PUOISS PUE JUBSWBINSI SAORINE U apircid 0] SSNUNUOD UOAS( YINOS

"uoisayoo abeinoous pue sssusleme asiel ‘yyeay aaoidwi ‘sis dojaasp djay 0} siay1o
ynm diysisuped ul Ayanoe pue saaneniul Apunwwod [eoo] dojeasp o) saiunpoddo o) sejejal ailnj}jn9 pue AJlunwWwo) :Z| away|

‘sasodind gNOV 0} 81nquUIU0D 0) SassaulIsng Isisse asaly) alaym Ajjenadsa uonesadood
pue Bupliomau ssauisng ‘esudiajue Ajunwwod ‘saiunpoddo Bulutes; ybnoiyy pepoddns aq jim eale ayy ul s||bjs pue Ayoeded olwouoo]
slivis pue Ayoede) 9d/uoaz

‘sanjioe} AJunwiwos panjea

40 31NN} 8y} 84Nd9s 0} | L 0Z 10V WsI[E00T 8y} Japun JoisiBay 19SSy AjlunwiwoD) sy} Jo apew 8 ||IM 8SN dAJ08YT "PalsISal aq ||IM SaSN JaUYo
0} UoIsiaAu00 Aq sa0IAISS [e00| pue sasiwald ssauisng Jo ssof 9y sabejjiA pue SUMO} Jo3JeL Ul 8njonJiSeul AJUNWIWOD PaJeIDOSSE UM
ayeboy yybnos aq |m sqnd pue sso1o jsod ‘sdoys se yons SaoIAIes [ed0] [eNUSSSa ‘9|qISSI00. ‘B|GRIA JO JUSWSACIdWI PUB UOHUS)S] BY |
S80IAISS |B00T §4/U023]

"pajowoid aq ||IM ‘JUSWIUOIIAUS [BD0] 9y} uo sjoedwi aanisod ypm JuswAhojdwse pue Ajuadsosd
8jeald yolym salbojouyos} ,ues|o, Jo asn pue juswdojarsp sy} pue ‘ssiuedwod [e20] Aq @ouewIopad [BJUSLLUOIIAUS JO Spiepuels ybiH
oueuLopad [BjuaWIUOIIAUT pd/uod]

‘Aadsoud pue yuswAojdwse 0) 8)NqUIUOD pue gNOV 8U) JO Jejorieyo adeospue| aAouNSIP
10 sanijenb [eoads ay) soueyus Jo UlejulEW 8sBY) aJaym papoddns aq (|Im SOARENIUI UOREOYISISAIP W) PUB SSBUISN [2INJ 3|qRUIBISNS
ssauIsng |einy g£d/uos3

"80onpoud pue sjelalew ‘[@nypoom ‘pooy Ayienb ybiy ‘pacinos Ajjeoo| Buiseyoind sioNsIA pue sisjielal ‘sjuspisal ul Jnsal jey) pabeinoous aq
ll!m S8AReRIuUl SjqeulelsNG "10}0as Juswabeuew pue| ay} Buiuoddns pue sawooul [eins Busiejaal ‘sjexlew Aqieau Buidojeasp ‘GNOV U
JO sisjem pue pue| ay} wouy pajsaaley Ajqeurelsns ale yoiym sjonpoud jo suteyo Ajddns pue Buissaoouid ey o} ybnos aq [im syuawanroidw)
suleyod Ajddng zd/uoo3

Page 148



4

‘leinyno e s1 gNOV UoAs( YInog 8y Jo jsow se Ajjeioadsa ‘saouaipne jualiayip 0} A[9Aljoaye 9)esjunwiwod 0} wia} }nduyip e st Aineaq
|einjeN "gNOV 2y} 40} Auepunog snoiaqo ue apiaoid Jo uoneulSewn o1gnd ayy ui 92e|d |eoiydesboab Jesjo e aAeY Jou S80p UoAS(] YINnosg

‘diyssauped ay) Jo yJom ay) pue sasodind syl ‘uoieubisap gNOY 2U) JO Ssauaieme ‘apisAijunod ay) jo Buipuelsispun
dojenap o} Buidjay sispoddns sy pue diysisuped gNOY 841 Jo Ayanoe ue si uojedsiunuwiwio?) pue ssaualemy gl awayl

"siapjoyayels J1no yum diysiauyied ul pabeuew Aj2A13094)9 si pue
jasse |e20] pue |euoibal ‘jeuoljeu e se panjeA pue pasiubooal st gNOY 2y} :Juswabeuely pue uonjesjunwwo)

‘uoneAudsp pue uopne|osi
SSalppe Yolym pue ‘saoinles AlBjunjoA pue uoisayod Ajlunwwod ‘uonoe pue Buiuueld Ajunwwod sjowoud yoiym papoddns aq [|im saAneniu|
Buiuue|d Ajlunwiwo) gd/wwo)

‘adeospue| pue ajdoad uaamiaq yul| ay} uayjbualis asay) aleym Ajjepadsae ‘pais)soy pue papoddns aq ||im sepel) pue
syelo ‘spe ‘sqnio ‘sdew ysued ‘suonnadwon ‘sepebau ‘siie) ‘sjuans se yons gNOY SU) JO suonipel) [ednjno ayj 80Jojulad Yolym saiialoy
Suoiipe |eanjny d/wwod

‘salji1oe) 0] sseooe poob yum ayl| jo Aljenb ybiy e Buiolus sanunwiwod jualisal pue Ayyeay ‘Jueiqia Buipjing ul papoddns aq |im sjdoad
20UDl|IS9Y £d/wwo)

"GNOV 84} JO Juswasueyus pue uoljeAlasuod
ay) yum s|quedwon ale Asyy aiaym pajowold pue pauoddns aq |m sajhisay] ajqeureisns ajowoud Jey) saaneniul peseg-Ajunwiwo)
sajAisayl| s|qeule}sng gd/wwod

‘padojarap pue pajowold aq |Im gNOY 2U) JO SoNsuajoeIeyD aAlOunSIp
pue sailjenb |eiads ay) Buidueyus pue Buiniasuoo ‘Bunelgs|ao ‘Buliojdxa ‘Buipueisiapun ul sauNWWOD |edo] abebua jey) seAleniu|
sanenb |enadg Ld/wwo)

‘saunuoddo Buussjunjoa pue uonedpiped [eo0)
pasealoul Aq adeospue| 8y} JO J8j0eIBUD SY) 90UBYUS PUB SAISSUO0D 0} SBAISS Jey) Awouoos (el ajqeulelsns v :aAldalgqo Asijod Aoy

‘Bunjew uoisioap
Ul 92UdPIUOD pue asuspuadapul Jo ssO| 8y} pue ‘sejlisayi| Alejuapas ‘AJISaqo Ul Pajoajjal ‘JUSLIUOIIAUS |BINJeU SY) PUe UaIp|IYd usamiag
uonoauuosIp Buimolb ay) ul pajoapiel suoniped) Buiwe) pue Juswabeuew pue| wolj padtoAlp AjBuisealoul Buiwooaq ale seuNWWo)

Page 149



9¢

Hun pue diysisuped gNOV au3 Jo sjoadse [euonesado sessaippe sdiysiaulied uonesiuel.Q uawabeue | sway]

"ANOY @y} Jo sanijenb
etoads ayy Bujpueyus pue Buiiasuoo ul sjos aagoe ue Buikeld ul papoddns pue pebeinoous aq |m sepUNWWOS pue sdnoib ‘suonesiuebio

auohians BuIn|OAU| 9d/aiemy

) woyy Buinl| e axew pue j abeuew oym sjdoad ayj pue adeaspue| ‘sanijenb [eioads s eale ay) uiejsns
Jey) seomuss pue sjonpoud Ajijenb ybiy ‘|eoo| poddns 0} S891040 JAWNSUCD 8¥ew 0} PaBEIN0OUS aq [[IM SIOYSIA PUE SBIIUNWLIOD |eao”
S9OIAISS pUB SPO0L) Gd/aIemy

"JUSWIUOJIAUS [BINjEU 8y} pue aji|p|im JO seoualadxa
pawuojul pue sjelspisuod Aolus pue ‘saoe|d [Bo0] JIsy} SjeIgeled pue plodal ‘ejeBisaaul o) pabeinoous aq |m sabe |je Jo ajdoay
Buiwes| Buojay] pd/eremy

"JUBWIUOIIAUS |EINJBU INO SN|EA }By) SUOI}OE pUB SUOISIOap
13)s0} 0} Bupjess ‘APAOR UOIEDIUNWWOD JO 8100 BU} Je 8q |IM SN 1oy sapiroid GNOY U} s)ijauaq ayj ||e Jo Buipuejsiapun panoiduwl uy
S80IAI9S WB)SAS00] gd/alemy

‘pajowoud aq ||IM gNOY
3U} JO S82JN0SaI |eunjeu pue saunjes) adeospue| ay) Jo aled ay) o} Buinquiuoo Ajeanoe ajdoad Jo} yoedsas pue Buipuejsiapun ‘ssausiemy

gNOV Jno Jo} Buuen zd/aiemy

"ANQY 8y} punoJe pue ul SIO)SIA pue suonesiuebio

‘'sassauisnq ‘sjuapisal jsbuowe pajowoid aq |im saijenb jepads sy pue gNOY uoAa( yinog ay jo Bulpuejsiapun pue ssaualemy
ssaualeme gNOVY Ld/2iemy

‘Juswabebus Joy seniunpoddo
jo ebuei pue diysiauped ay} Jo ajos ay) ‘uoieubisep ay) jo sesodind 3Ul "NOV 8y} Jo ssaualeme Jajealb v :aA3o3lgo Aoijod Aoy

"s19yew uoisiosp awos jsbuowe
Juswebeuew pue uoneubisep GNOY 8Y} JO @njeA pue 2oueAdjas ay) Buibus|jeyd aie yimolb s1wouods uo siseydwa ayy pue Asisny

‘uoIsnjoxa |e1o0s pue Ajjiqow ‘|eloueul ‘[eanynd - suoseal Jo abuel e 1o} GNOY @u) yim pabebus jou aie
‘seaJe uequn Bujuiofpe ul ssoy) pue BunoA ayj Ajjeioadse ‘eale sy} Jo sjuspisas Auepy “sjdoad Aqg pabeuew pue padeys adeospue| Bupjom

Page 150



LT
‘uoAs( yinog ul asodind
10y )1} pue ajeldoidde suiewsas uoieubisap ay) 1Y) 8INSUS 0} MBIABL JapUN gNOY 9 Jo Alepunoq ay) deay |im diysiauped gNOY @yl
Atepunoq gNQV Zd/Med
‘SEGNOV Jo uoneioossy jeuoneN ayj poddns Ajaanoe pue sadeospue| pajosjold 1ayjo yim A[2sojo yiom |im diysisuped gNOY @YL
SENQY 40} uoneloossy |euocieN 9d/ed
‘|JeA8] jeuoneulaUl
pue |euoneu ‘jeuoiBal ‘Ajunod ‘|eso) Je saAneniul o16ajens pue sdiysiauped Y)im syull 9AONNSUOD 18)s0) (M diysisuned gNOY @yl
sdiysisuped gd/ed
"‘GNOV @y} uo Buneaq juepodwi ue aaey yoiym Azepunoq
3y} apIsINo Seale aulew pue puepusiuly Buluiolpe asoy) ul pue gNOY @Yl apisul saAneniul jJuswabeuew joalip |im diysisuued gNOY 8y L
saAleniul Juawabeuep yd/ied

“Jun Jeis paseq Ajjeoo] pajesipap e Buipnjoul sjuswabuese diysiauped aAloaye ulejulew |Im sanuoyine Aiojnjels pue [eoo] gNOV UL
sjusweabueue diysisuped gNOV £d/Hed

‘ue|d AaalpQ o169)eas ay) Bunuaswe|dwi
Ag GNOYV @Y} 10} UOISIA S} BASIYDE 0} ¥88S [|IM ‘Yun Jels gNOV @yl pue suonesiuebio jaquaw s)i ybnoayy ‘diysisuped gNOV @4L
uoneuswa|dwi ue|d Juswabeue zd/Hed

"0002 10V Aepn Jo sybry pue spisAiuno) ey} Jo Gg uondag Aqg
paiinbal se ‘Bupjew uoIsioap pue suolouNny JIBY} Jo Jonpuod ay} ul uoieubisap gNOV J0 asodind ay) 1o} piebal aAey ||IM SaljlIOyINe JUBAB|DY

psebau jo Ainp |eba Ldied

"yJom S)1 U0 podau pue eale ay) Jo Juswabeuew pejeulpio-00 wWs}-Buo| ay) 104 Buipuny 81N9as 0} YoM
pue eaJe ay) Buioaye Bupjew uoisioep pue Aojjod eousnjul ‘siopessequie se jJoe [jim diysisuped gNOY @yl :aAnRoalqo Aojjod Aoy

‘abueyo

@ouanul o} diysiauped GNOY a1 Jo Aljige ayy sywil ‘Buipulq Ajjebs| saajasway) ul jou aie sueld GNOY ¥eyl 1oy ay) pue ‘uonesiba)

ay} Jo ssaweam ay | "eonoeld ul suop Bulag wop|as si siY ‘gNOY @ jo Aineaq jeisnjeu sy Buoueyus pue Buinsesuoo jo ssodind

ay Joy paebai aney o) Ainp Alojness sy yum soueldwoo Jiayy uo Jodas Ajreinbal pinoys salpoq a1ignd jueasjal jey) aouepinb eysq sidse(
"WJ8} Joys pue onsiunpoddo alow awoosq sey 3Jom joaloid “Buisiespuny ojul pausAlp 8q 0} sey

sy aJow jey) ueaw 196png Jiun gNOV U} 0} S1no [enuue pue Buipuny Jojoas olignd uo azaanbs Buinupuod sy 109ye oye) uonesiuebiosl
pue suononpaJ Je)s se ‘swnioj pue sdiysiauped yum abebus o0y ynoyjip AjBuiseasour )1 Buipuly aie suonesiuebio Jeuped Aay swog

Page 151



8¢

T1/WN| S a|dwexa Aq Buipes| diysieuped pue Jun gNOY
S | 10oedwi [eyuswuoiiaus Buisiwiuiw pue Aousiolye 80In0say
JUSWUOIIAUS JopIM
1 ssoljoeud Juswaebeuew g|qeulelsng 8d 01LdSayieN 8y} Buinoadwi pue Buoajoid
lajemalsem
S jo 10edwi ay) pue a)sem onseld s|gepioae Buonpay SEeS
puUE S2lIEN]SS ‘SISAL 8SIBAIP
Ajnoasoiq Buinoidua Ajleaibojoiq pue aanonpoud
N pue ‘suoljn|os juswabeuew pooy |einjeu Buidojena( 8d 011.d1s3 ‘gd 01 Ldiepy ‘Ayyeay ‘ues|o Buunoag
ajsem
sapionsad pue uonnjjod Buionpal pue
S pue siasi|iua) ‘Yjeay |10s uo siawie) yium Bupops 6d 0} Ldsuel] 6d OlLduepue] | Aousiole 92inosal Buisealou|
S ainjeu o} 8s0|0 aq 0} sjdoad Buibeinoou]
1 SI9]EM |BUOIIESIO8] UBSID UlRUIB\
1 seiunpoddo Buussiunjoa Ajunwiwos Buipiroig Buieq|jem pue
JUSWIUOIIAUS yjjeay aaoiduwl 0] JUBLUUOIIAUS
N [eanjeu ay} ybnouay) Bulaq)iem pue yyeay Bunowoid 8d 0} L 420y ay} yum ajdoad Buposuuon
sjoefoid Juswabeuew saads pue jejqeH sadeospug
jo Aineaq ay) Bupueyus
TN JuieB jau |ejuswiuolinug, JaAIIBp Jey) sjosfoid 8d 01 LdISIH ‘8d 01 Ldoanolg pue ainjeu BulaAooay
S GGd ‘v/1 — 2.1 4ddN Buisiuboosal sesuodsal Buiuue|g
ldHed ‘8d 0} Ldueld Alqeuiejsns
TN SaAljU8oUl Wa)sAs Juswsabeuew puej ainin4 8d 01 Ld S9HIeN ‘'/d O} LdueT puej Buibeuew pue Buisn
Auouyd | ajeosawin] suoddns jey) A1aal9p joefoid saloljod Jueasjay sawayj A1aalep oibajens

"Jeak yoea ssaooud Bujuueld

SS8uISNg |enuue Ino wuojul 0} 31 8sn pue Ajlenuue ssaiboid uo podas [Im SN “ueld JuawaBeuepy siyy Jusws|duwi 0) Wie sm moy sauipno ued
Aianjap |enuue ay] “ue|d JUSWUOIIAUT JBSA GZ B4 8Y) 0} Bupejel suonoe sialap uejd sy} Moy SMoys yJomawely Alaalap oibsjess siy |

}iomauwieldy Aiaalep oibajens

Page 152



6¢

‘|leanoeid aiaym PaJepPOLILLIODOE aq ||IM Ue|d SIU} JO SUOISIaA B]qISsa00e A|aAljeula)je 10} sjsanbay

‘pabpajmouoe pue pasiubosal si jeusjew

8y} JO 824N0S 8y} pue 1x8)uoo Buipes|siw . Ul pasn jou pue Aj@jeinaoe paonpoidal st )i papiaosd wnipsw Jo jewlo) Aue ul ebieyo jo eal) peonpoidal
aq Aew }1 Jo uonoas Aue Jo uoneolgnd siy) ‘s)ybuidoo aroge ay) jo suondaoxa ayy Y sbuipaasoid 110 Jo uoinosesoud o) pes| Aew uononpoid
pasuoyineun ‘panasal s)ybu |1y 9902600010 Aeaing soueupiO ‘g1L0Z B asegelep pue ybuAdoo umos) @ ejep Aeaing soueuplQ sulejuo)

D4l :Bumojjoy ay} jo 1ybLAdod @ pue uoissiwiad puny Aq ue|q diysiauped siyy ul pssn sydeibojoyd pue sdew ‘sabeuw ||y
‘sanwiwon diysisuped gNOY UoASQq UINos Jo jleyaq uo Jun gNOY uoaaq yinos ayy Aq paonpoud pue padojaasp usaq sey ue|d juswabeuepy siy |
sjuawabpajmouyoy

‘AIAoB pue yoleasal ainjny 1o) seale papuawiwodal sy juswsaldwi pue dojaasp
0] ¥29s 0S|e |IM pue SaAieniul Juswabeuew pue| pue suoile)nsuod Bujuueld 0} sasuodsal s} Ul SJUBWINJOP JSYI0 pue asay) o} Jajal |im diysisuped
pue Jun gNOV 8yl “n'Bio°'quoruoAspyINoS a)isgem gNOY 8y} U0 punoy} aq ued AJAloe gNQY 01 Builejal sjuswinoop Jayjo pue saxauue ay|

(8102 GNOVVN) SANOY 0} punoibxoeq pue 1xajuod dibajens

uonejuasaldal Jo JuswWLlelS

Juswissassy uone|nbay jeygqeH pue |esieiddy A)jIgeulBISNG ‘JUSLISSISSY [BjuawuOolIAUTg d168lens
uodal |eloads uoaa(] Yyinog sayew Jeypi

Hodal gNOV 8uj Jo sjels

(LA) oueping Buluueld gNOV

¥202- L10Z ueld Juswabeuely selenis3 gNOY UoAd(Q Yinos

“ N6 O N

‘ue|d Juswabeueyy 8y} jo ped |eibajul ue wioy saxauue Buimoljo) ay |

sjuswnoaop xauue Buioddns jo sjiejaq

‘uoday [enuuy Jun NOY 8l Ul paysijgnd sauewwns yjIim ajsqam gNOY @y} uo papodal aq |im uonejuswajdwl
ue|d Juswsabeuepy uo ssaiboid pue sjgejieAe Ajjuaiind UoeWIOUI 8y} s|iejep (¢ xauuy) Hodal gNOY 2y} Jo alels oy ‘suonesiuebio Alojnjels [elanss
WOoJ) S18S BJEp JO UOIINQUISIP PUB U01J08||00 8Y} SBAJ0AUI pue|bug [einjeN pue eyaq Ag padojaasp sJomawed) Buuoyuow adeospue| pejosjold jeuoneu v

abueys pue ssaiboid BurLinses|y

Page 153



0€

}Nn°640°qQUOBUOASPYINOS MMM

yn*Bio quoeuorspynos@sauinbus
~¥8€198 €0810 'I°L 191 INSG 6DL 'S8Uj0| ‘asnoH uole|jo4 ‘diysisuped gNOY uoAsq Yinos ey} Aq 610z dy paysiigng

Page 154



Page 155

31



Page 156



Agenda ltem 13a

Salc Harb 16.7.18
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF

THE SALCOMBE HARBOUR BOARD

HELD AT CLIFF HOUSE, SALCOMBE ON MONDAY, 16 JULY 2018

Members in attendance
* Denotes attendance oz Denotes apology for absence
* | CliIr J Brazil (Chairman) * | Ms A Jones
* | Clir J A Pearce * | MrM Long
@ | Clir KR H Wingate * | Mr M Mackley
@ | Clir S A E Wright * | Mr H Marriage (Vice-Chairman)
9 | Mr | Stewart
* | Mr M Taylor
Item No | Minute Ref No Officers in attendance and participating
below refers
All Salcombe Harbour Master; Deputy Monitoring Officer;
agenda Finance Community Of Practice Lead; and Senior
items Specialist - Democratic Services
9 SH.7/18 Community Of Practice Lead Assets; and Senior
Specialist Assets
SH.1/18 WELCOME
On behalf of the Board, the Chairman welcomed Cameron Sims-Stirling to
his first Board meeting since recently being appointed to the role of
Salcombe Harbour Master.
SH.2/18 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Salcombe Harbour Board held on
6 November 2017 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.
SH.3/18 CODE OF CONDUCT DISPENSATIONS

The Deputy Monitoring Officer reminded the Board of the implications
under the adopted Code of Conduct. She went on to advise that having
a mooring or payment of harbour dues constituted a contract with the
Council, and therefore should be declared as a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest (DPI). In the event of declaring a DPI, a Member would have to
update their Register of Interest forms immediately.

As a number of Board Members were in this position, the Deputy
Monitoring Officer granted a dispensation to all Members to enable them
to take part in the meeting, (as stated in Paragraph 8.1 (c) of the
Members Code of Conduct) as otherwise the meeting would be
inquorate. This dispensation would be in force until the next Annual

Council meeting in May 2019.
Page 157



SH.4/18

SH.5/18

Salc Harb 16.7.18
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business to
be considered during the course of the meeting, and the following were
made:

Ms Jones, Mr Mackley, Mr Marriage and Mr Taylor each declared a
disclosable pecuniary interest in all related agenda items by virtue of
having moorings or paying harbour dues to the Council. As a result of the
Solicitor granting each Board Member a dispensation, they were all able to
take part in the debate and vote on any related matters (Minute SH.3/18
above refers).

Clir J Brazil and Mr Taylor both declared a personal interest in agenda
item 12: ‘Update on the Egremont’ (Minute SH.10/18 below refers). Clir
Brazil declared his interest by virtue of virtue of having previously been
employed by the Island Cruising Club (ICC) and remained in the meeting
and took part in the debate and vote thereon. Mr Taylor declared his
interest by virtue of being a member of the ICC Committee and also
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

In accordance with the Procedure Rules, the following members of the
public addressed the Board:

(a) Tim Tucker (South Sands Ferry)

Mr Tucker stated his concerns over the recent dinghy races and the
fact that the Harbour had been closed for a 50 minute time period.
Whilst accepting that it was inappropriate for the Board to consider
this matter further at this meeting, Mr Tucker asked that consideration
be given in the future to implementing alternative measures rather
than closing the Harbour (e.g. by imposing staggered start times).

(b) Dick Martin (Egremont)

Mr Martin highlighted agenda item 12 (Minute SH.10/18 below refers)
and read a statement in support of the Egremont retaining its
mooring. In urging the Board to reconsider its current stance on the
return of the Egremont, Mr Martin’s statement made specific
reference to:-

(i) the local economic benefits arising from the Egremont’s return;
(i) the intention of the Egremont to offer sailing and other watersport
opportunities to disadvantaged children. Mr Martin asked that the

Board give consideration to the wellbeing of these children before
making a final decision;

Page 158



Salc Harb 16.7.18
(iif)his confidence that the Egremont would not become a noisy party
ship. It was confirmed that the intention would be for a well-
managed, tightly controlled facility to be created that would not be
a nuisance in the Harbour;

(iv)the intended corporate hospitality events would ensure the
financial wellbeing of the business;

(v) these proposals not constituting a new business start-up;

(vi)the contents and tone of the Board letter having caused a crisis in
confidence amongst the financial backers who were supporting
the business venture. Furthermore, Mr Martin questioned whether
it was fair for the Egremont to lose its rightful home especially
when considering that £300,000 had already been spent on its
restoration;

(vii) the Egremont’s Moorings having been paid up to and including
March 2018. In addition, Mr Martin clarified that no further
payments had been made since he had not received an invoice
for payment beyond this period;

(viii)the ship having previously been an eyesore and an
embarrassment. Mr Martin reassured the Board that the
returning ship would come back to the Harbour in an excellent
condition;

(ix) his guarantees that all aspects of the returning ship would be
fully compliant with the safe running of the Harbour. Moreover,
the ship would be an environmentally friendly vessel,

(x) the Rivermaid. For clarity, Mr Martin informed that the viability of
the Rivermaid was an important part of the overall project and its
operation was financially unsustainable without the Egremont;

(xi) it being his wish to present the financial modelling that
underpinned the project to a future Board meeting. When
questioned, Mr Martin reiterated that he had no reason to doubt
the veracity of the finance that supported this project.

In conclusion, Mr Martin thanked the Board for enabling him the
opportunity to make his address and he hoped that he could work
with the Board to bring the Egremont back to Salcombe.

(c) Stephanie Danby

Ms Danby informed the Board that she had previously been an ICC
instructor and had started a petition in support of the Egremont just
five days before this meeting. At the time of this meeting, Ms Danby
advised that the petition had already obtained 983 signatures and she
urged the Board to support the project.

Page 159



SH.6/18

Salc Harb 16.7.18
(d) Martin Jenkins

Mr Jenkins highlighted the Harbour’s adopted Strategic Business
Plan and emphasised that a number of facets within this document
(e.g. supporting a thriving local economy, the importance of taking
stakeholder engagement seriously and employment in the marine
industry) were relevant to the Egremont project. Mr Jenkins
proceeded to urge the Board to support the project.

(e) Phil Pritchard

Mr Pritchard expressed a contrary view to the previous speakers and
questioned where the Board would stand in the event of the
Egremont returning and the business not succeeding. In addition, Mr
Pritchard made reference to the proposed future hospitality uses for
the vessel and asked the Board to think very carefully before making
its decision.

(f) Martin Beck

Mr Beck acknowledged that there was an emotional connection with
the Egremont and was aware that vast amounts of money had been
loaned and/or gifted to support it. Having taken a keen interest in the
project, Mr Beck had not seen a Business Plan and was still to be
convinced that the proposals would be financially viable. In order to
generate revenue, Mr Beck emphasised the need for the operation to
be highly commercial and a training school would not go far enough
in this respect. Whilst expressing the view that times were changing,
Mr Beck felt sorry for the Board and Mr Martin alike but remained of
the view that, in the absence of a robust Business Plan, the vacant
Egremont mooring should be reallocated. Finally, Mr Beck
recognised that, despite there remaining a demand for a sailing
school, the ICC required a new vision.

(g) William Tucker (local landowner)

Mr Tucker handed a letter to the Chairman that stated that, as a local
landowner, he would not enter into any easement for services with
any party without having previously consulted the Harbour Authority.

FEEDBACK FROM HARBOUR COMMUNITY FORUMS

The Board received verbal update reports from those Members who
attended the Harbour Community Forums. The updates were given as
follows:

Salcombe Kingsbridge Estuary Conservation Forum (SKECF)

The representative advised that an issue had been raised regarding water
quality that had consequently been addressed by the Environment Agency
in September.

South Devon & Channel Shellfishermen

It was noted that Mr i@%(tfgdewly appointed Board Member) would
become the Board repr: ative’on the Forum.



SH.7/18

Salc Harb 16.7.18

Kingsbridge and Salcombe Marine Business Forum

The Forum had welcomed the appointment of the new Harbour Master
and it was noted that dialogue between him and the local marine
businesses was frequent.

Kingsbridge Estuary Boat Club (KEBC)
The representative advised that he had no issues to report to this meeting.

East Portlemouth
The representative advised that he had no issues to report to this meeting.

UPDATE OF BATSON MASTERPLAN

The Senior Specialist (Assets) conducted a presentation that made
reference to 7 key elements:-

- A multi-deck car park at Shadycombe;

- New units being created alongside the south Quayside;

- The construction of a new Harbour Depot;

- The proposal for permanent boat parking to the north;

- The proposal for seasonal boat and car parking to the south;

- Exploration of community housing being built on Croft Hill; and

- The potential for buildings to be constructed on the back of the Quay
for commercial units with residential use above.

In conclusion, the Senior Specialist (Assets) advised of the intention for a
further community stakeholder event to be held in September.

In the ensuing debate, the following points were raised:-

(a) With regard to the proposed commercial units, a Member questioned
the apparent lack of parking provision in that area;

(b) Some Members expressed their deep reservations over the loss of
boat, car and trailer parking that would result from the current
proposals. Indeed, such were the extent of these concerns, that
some Board Members stated the need for these issues to be resolved
before they would be able to support these proposals;

(c) In respect of the multi-deck car park proposals for Shadycombe, a
Member highlighted the detrimental visual impact and the extensive
engineering works that would be required in order to achieve this
element;

(d) The Board reiterated its wish for some form of incentivised scheme to
be in place to ensure that the proposed new commercial units be
allocated to genuine local marine businesses. Furthermore, a
Member requested that construction costs be kept as low as possible
to ensure that the units remained affordable for such local
businesses.

Page 161



SH.8/18

SH.9/18

Salc Harb 16.7.18
In conclusion, it was noted that an officer meeting was to take place in
the upcoming weeks to discuss these matters further and the Harbour
Master was asked to reflect the Board’s concerns at this meeting.

2017/18 YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT

Members were presented with a report that advised of the Harbour’s final
trading position in 2017/18 together with brief details of the main
variations from the original Budget.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) the new environmental projects. A Member expressed his
disappointment that only £1,893 of the £5,000 funding for
environmental projects had been used in 2017/18;

(b) the schedule of loans. Officers advised that there was one loan
currently outstanding which the Board may deem appropriate to
repay earlier than was required. Also, the Board noted the potential
for an additional loan to be taken out to construct some new pontoons
towards the end of 2018;

(c) the security patrol fees. Whilst acknowledging that the contract ran
for a further three years, some Members expressed their scepticism
that the current security patrol was providing adequate value for
money to the Authority.

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the income and expenditure variations for the 2017/18
Financial Year be noted;

2. That the overall trading surplus of £33,784 be noted; and

3. That the surplus (as referred to at 2 above) be allocated to the
Harbour's General Reserve Fund.

HARBOUR MASTER’S REPORT

A report was considered that summarised a number of topical issues that
affected the Harbour.

In the ensuing discussion, reference was made to:-

- the Board being supportive of the intention to publish the Annual
Report in September 2018;

- the Moorings Policy. The Board agreed the suggestion in the
published agenda report to establish a Working Group to review the
current Moorings Policy.

Page 162



SH.10/18

Salc Harb 16.7.18
In terms of timescales, it was felt that this should be undertaken
during the winter with the Group recommendations then being
considered by the Board at its meeting on 25 February 2019. With
regard to its membership, it was agreed that Clir Brazil, Ms Jones, Mr
Long and Mr Marriage would serve on this Working Group;
the Board supporting the proposal, as part of the retention policy, for
the Harbour Authority to request a current copy of the Council Tax bill
of the facility holder;
the noting of the appointment of the new ‘Designated Person’;
amending the date of the 2019 Harbour Board Inspection. The
Board agreed that the Inspection (and subsequent Board meeting)
should be held on Monday, 24 June 2019;
the creation of a one page performance report. In the future, the
Board asked that a performance report be included in the Harbour
Master report that included the latest statistical information relating
to: yacht visitor nights; the number of launches from Batson; and the
number of harbour dues paid at Batson.

It was then:

RESOLVED

1. That the proposal to publish the Annual Report in
September be supported;

2. That a Moorings Policy Review Working Group (comprising
of CllIrs Brazil, Ms Jones and Messrs Long and Marriage)
be established with the intention of reporting its findings to
the Board meeting on 25 February 2019;

3. That the Board support, as part of the retention policy, the
proposal for the Harbour Authority to write to every facility
holder requesting a current copy of their Council Tax bill;

4. That the appointment of the new ‘Designated Person’ be
noted;

5. That the 2019 Annual Harbour Inspection (and subsequent
Board meeting) be held on Monday, 24 June 2019; and

6. That a one page performance report be included in future
published editions of the Harbour Master’s report to the
Board.

EGREMONT UPDATE

A report was considered that presented the options for the Board in light
of the publicity regarding the Egremont’s return to a future mooing in
Salcombe.

Page 163



Salc Harb 16.7.18
In discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) A number of Members made reference to the eloquent points that
had been made during the Public Forum (SH.5/18 above refers) and
recognised that this was a very emotive (and difficult) issue for the
Board to determine. In particular, Members wished to put on record
their gratitude to Mr Martin, who had worked tirelessly on this project;

(b) One of the major issues for the Board to weigh up was the potential
liability and risk implications that would be placed on the harbour
should the vessel return. A Member also reminded the Board that the
vessel was yet to become compliant with a number of regulations
(including fire and rescue matters). In addition, it was the adopted
policy of the Board that any application for a ‘hotel vessel’ in the
Harbour would be refused and there was a consequent need to
maintain the integrity of the Moorings Policy;

(c) A further cause for concern was felt to be the continued absence of
any due diligence or a robust business plan that was able to provide
sufficient confidence to the Board that the project would be financially
viable;

(d) Some Members expressed the view that the vast majority of
operational difficulties associated with the project would be resolved if
the vessel was berthed alongside a Quayside;

(e) To counter some of the local comments that had been expressed,
Board Members emphasised that the argument that the primary
reason for the recommendation was to enable for additional moorings
to be placed in the Harbour was simply not true;

(f) Whilst incredibly regrettable, a number of Members felt that they had
no option other than to withdraw the vacant Egremont mooring for
reallocation.

It was then:

RESOLVED
That, having considered the current business case information

available, the Egremont Trust be advised that the vacant
Egremont mooring is to be withdrawn and reallocated.

(Meeting commenced at 1.30 pm and concluded at 3.55 pm)

Chairman

Page 164



Agendd’ltém 13b

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 26 JULY 2018

Members in attendance
* Denotes attendance
o Denotes apology for absence

9 | Clir | Bramble * Clir J A Pearce (Chairman)

*

Clir J Brazil * Clir J T Pennington (Vice-Chairman)

@ | Clir T R Holway

Members also in attendance:

Clir S A E Wright

Item No | Minute Officers and Visitors in attendance
Ref No below
refers
All Head of Paid Service; Section 151 Officer; Finance
ltems Community Of Practice Lead; Senior Specialist —
Accountant; KPMG Representatives; and Senior
Specialist — Democratic Services
A.9/18 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 June 2018 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
A.10/18 URGENT BUSINESS
The Chairman advised that she had no urgent items to be raised at this
meeting.
A.11/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of
business to be considered during the course of the meeting, but none were
made.
A.12/18 ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18

The Committee considered a report that presented the audited Statement
of Accounts and the audited Annual Governance Statement for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Page 165



Audit 26.7.18

In introducing the report, officers informed that there had been minimal
changes made to the Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance
Statement following the completion of the audit work. For clarity, it was
confirmed that these changes that had been made primarily related to the
presentation and format of these documents.

In discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) Those Members in attendance reiterated their previous tributes to the
achievements of the Finance Community Of Practice in meeting the
requirement to publish the Council’s Accounts a month earlier than in
2016/17,

(b) Since it was not directly evident in the Accounts, a Member questioned
how he would be able to ascertain the total expenditure that the Council
had spent on obtaining consultant advice. In reply, officers advised that
the Council did not have a budget for external consultancy and such
detail would be part of the business case for each specific project;

(c) In response to a request, officers agreed to write to colleagues at
Devon County Council to gain a breakdown of the overseas equities
asset allocation for pensions;

(d) A Member highlighted the comments in the Accounts relating to some
of the repair and maintenance costs being incurred due to the
vandalism of public conveniences. As part of the current pay on entry
for using public conveniences proposals, officers confirmed that the
potential for increased vandalism costs had been factored into the
business case.

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the wording of the Letter of Representation (as set out
in Appendix A of the presented agenda report) be approved;

2. That the audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended 31 March 2018 (as outlined in Appendix B of the
presented agenda report) be approved; and

3. That the Annual Governance Statement post audit (as
detailed in Appendix C of the presented agenda report) be
approved.

A.13/18 EXTERNAL AUDIT ISA260 REPORT 2017/18

The Committee considered a report that had been produced by KPMG that
was entitled: ‘External Audit ISA260 Report 2017/18’.

Page 166



Audit 26.7.18

The KPMG representatives introduced the report and wished to pay tribute
to the Finance Community Of Practice for their support and timely
responses to questions and issues raised.

In discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) With regard to Housing Benefit controls, the Committee was reminded
that the problems had now been resolved and reconciliations were up
to date and reported to the Finance Community Of Practice Lead on a
monthly basis;

(b) Members noted that the section of the KPMG report on Value for
Money Arrangements focused on whether or not the Council had
adequate arrangements in place as opposed to whether or not the
authority had achieved value for money. As with all other local
authorities, the representatives had identified that the delivery of a
balanced budget was the key risk. Having considered all of the
processes that the Council had put in place, the representatives were of
the view that these were fit for purpose;

(c) A Member questioned the lack of reference in the report to those recent
significant projects (e.g. One Council and the Local Authority Controlled
Company) that had not materialised. In response, the representatives
advised that the outcomes of such projects were considered and KPMG
had recognised that the associated risks had been highlighted as part
of the risk assessments for these projects. Furthermore, the
representatives were satisfied that the Council had taken its decisions
on these projects having weighed up all of those identified risks;

(d) As had been raised at the previous Committee meeting (Minute A.4/18
refers), a Member again expressed his surprise that there was a lack of
reference in the report to the intrinsic links between the financial
standing of West Devon Borough Council and the inevitable knock-on
effects to this Council. In response, the Section 151 Officer informed
that this point would be reflected in the strategic risk assessment report
that would be presented to the Audit Committee meeting to be held on
11 October 2018.

In conclusion, the Committee recognised that the Council would soon be
working with a new External Auditor and Members therefore wished to put
on record their thanks and best wishes to KPMG and its representatives
who had developed excellent working relationships with both Members and
officers.

Page 167



Audit 26.7.18

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the content of the ISA 260 Report for 2017/18 be noted.

(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and finished at 10.50 pm)

Chairman

Page 168



Adgenda. ltem.13c

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES, ON WEDNESDAY,

1 AUGUST 2018

Members in attendance
* Denotes attendance
o Denotes apologies

@ | Clir | Bramble * 1 Clir J M Hodgson
* | ClIr J Brazil * | Clir T R Holway
* | Clir D Brown 2| Clir J A Pearce
* | Cllir P K Cuthbert * | Clir R Rowe
* | Clir RJ Foss (Vice Chairman) * | Clir R C Steer (Chairman)
* | Clir P W Hitchins * | Clir R J Vint
Other Members also in attendance:
Clir Wright
Officers in attendance and participating:
Item No: Application No: Officers:
All agenda Planning Senior Specialist, Planning
items Specialists, COP Lead Place Making,
Deputy Monitoring Officer, Specialist —
Democratic Services
DM.16/18  MINUTES

DM.17/18

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 4 July 2018 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to minor
corrections as follows:

e DM.10/18 corrected to read ‘minutes of the meeting held on 6 June,
2018’, rather than 2 May 2018;
¢ ClIr Hodgson was in attendance for the whole meeting (not pm only)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of
business to be considered and the following were made:

Clir R Steer declared a personal interest in application 1710/18/HHO:
Householder application for proposed alterations and extension — 21 Court
Park Road, by virtue of the applicant having previously made a complaint
about him. The complaint had been investigated and it was found that
there was no case to answer. As a result, Clir Steer remained in the room
and took part in the debate and vote on this application;

Page 169



DM.18/18

DM.19/18

DM.20/18

Dev Management 01.08.18

Clir D Brown declared a personal interest in the following planning
applications that were sited within the South Devon AONB by virtue of
being a Member of the South Devon AONB Partnership Committee and
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon:

0124/18/ARM: Application for approval of reserved matters following
outline approval 58/0791/15/0 for demolition of store and
shelter and construction of 1 no. residential dwelling
(resubmission of 0428/17/ARM) — Proposed development
site at SX 502 502, Bovisand Lane, Down Thomas

1710/18/HHO: Householder application for proposed alterations and
extension — 21 Court Park, Thurlestone

CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman announced that there was one item of business on which to
update the Committee. The COP Lead Place Making advised the
Committee that Application 3475/17/OPA: Outline application with some
matters reserved (only access to be considered) residential development of
up to 210 dwellings, public open space, green infrastructure, strategic
landscaping and associated infrastructure — Proposed Development site SX
857 506, Land south of Townstal Road, Dartmouth, would be deferred from
this meeting of the DM Committee. A late letter of representation had been
received from the South Devon Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (SD
AONB) team and officers felt that more time was needed to assess the SD
AONB response against the new NPPF. Officers also felt it appropriate to
await the publication of the Inspector’s response to the Joint Local Plan,
which was expected imminently.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Chairman announced that a list of members of the public and town and
parish council representatives, who had registered their wish to speak at
the meeting, had been circulated.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered the details of the planning applications prepared
by the Planning Case Officers as presented in the agenda papers, and
considered also the comments of Town and Parish Councils together with
other representations received, which were listed within the presented
agenda reports, and RESOLVED that:

0124/18/ARM Proposed Development site SX 502 502, Bovisand
Lane, Down Thomas

Parish: Wembury

Page 170



Dev Management 01.08.18

Application for approval of reserved matters following outline
approval 58/0791/15/0 for demolition of store and shelter and
construction of 1no. residential dwelling (resubmission of
0428/17/ARM)

Case Officer Update: The application had been assessed in light
of the new NPPF document and the new
relevant chapter and paragraph numbers
were given; an updated ecology report had
been received and the outstanding on-going
reptile survey would be completed by the
end of August, hence the recommendation
seeking approval subject to receipt of a
satisfactory updated ecology report

Speakers included: Objector — Mr Bob Short: Supporter — Mr Garry
Dimeck: local Ward Member — Clir Brown

Recommendation: Authority delegated to COP Lead DM, in consultation
with the Chairman, to grant conditional reserved matters approval for details
of access, appearance, layout and scale (not landscaping), subject to an
acceptable updated ecology report

However in the event that three months after this resolution, the ecology
report raises issues not previously addressed or resolved, that the
application is reviewed by the COP Lead DM in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and delegated authority is given to the COP
Lead to refuse the application in the absence of the above required details
being properly addressed

During discussion, the Ward Member asked that he agree the details of the
Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP). In response, he was
advised that the planning authority would agree the CEMP in consultation
with Clir Brown.

Committee Decision: Authority delegated to COP Lead DM, in
consultation with the Chairman, to grant conditional reserved matters
approval for details of access, appearance, layout and scale (not
landscaping), subject to an acceptable updated ecology report

However in the event that three months after this resolution, the ecology
report raises issues not previously addressed or resolved, that the
application is reviewed by the COP Lead DM in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and delegated authority is given to the COP
Lead to refuse the application in the absence of the above required details
being properly addressed

Clir Brown would be consulted on the CEMP condition.

Conditions:

Page 171



DM.21/18

DM.22/18

Dev Management 01.08.18

In accordance with plans

Time limit for Reserved Matters applications

Compliance with the Recommendations of Ecology report
External lighting

Tree/Hedge retention

Tree/Hedge protection

Hedge height controls

Garage/Parking Provision/ Retention

CEMP

1710/18/HHO 21 Court Park, Thurlestone
Parish: Thurlestone

Householder application for proposed alterations and extension

Case Officer Update: The wall to the west elevation that was the
subject of condition 4 would be 2m high and
not 1.8m high

Speakers included: local Ward Members — ClIr Wright and ClIr
Pearce (statement read)

Recommendation: Conditional Approval

Committee Decision: Conditional Approval

Conditions:

= |n accordance with plans
= Time limit
= Materials
= Wall on west elevation installed prior to use of terrace

PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE

Members noted the list of appeals as outlined in the presented agenda
report.

AMENDMENT TO PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
Members were presented with a report that sought to recommend to

Council that the Development Management Public Participation Scheme be
amended to take account of General Data Protection Regulations.

Page 172



Dev Management 01.08.18

During discussion, Members suggested minor amendments to the
presented scheme, as it did not accurately reflect the current practice.
Officers asked that an additional recommendation be included that would
enable the Monitoring Officer to make minor amendments as necessary.
It was then:

RESOLVED that Council be RECOMMENDED:
1. That the proposed amendments to the Development
Management Committee Public Participation Scheme be

approved, as set out in Appendix 1; and

2. That authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make
minor amendments to the Scheme, as necessary.

(Meeting commenced at 2.00pm and concluded at 3.50pm)

Chairman

Page 173



Dev Management 01.08.18

Voting Analysis for Planning Applications — DM Committee 1 August 2018

Application Site Address Vote Councillors who Voted Yes Councillors who Voted No Councillors who Absent
No: Voted Abstain
(0) Clirs Bramble,

0124/18/ARM Proposed Development Site at SX | Conditional Clirs Rowe, Steer, Cuthbert, | Clirs Brazil, Hodgson, Vint, Pearce (2)

502 502, Bovisand Lane, Down Approval Foss, Hitchins, Holway (6) Brown (4)

Thomas

21 Court Park Road, Thurlestone Conditional Clirs Brown, Steer, Cuthbert, (0) (0) Clirs Bramble,
1710/18/HHO Approval Foss, Hitchins, Holway, Brazil, Pearce (2)

Vint, Rowe, Hodgson (10)

] abed




Agenda ltem 13d

0+S2.8.18

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON
THURSDAY, 2 AUGUST 2018

Panel Members in attendance:
* Denotes attendance ¢ Denotes apology for absence

@ | Clir K J Baldry @ | Clir E D Huntley

* | Clir J P Birch * | Clir D W May

* | Clir J | G Blackler * | Clir J T Pennington

@ | Clir B F Cane * | Clir K Pringle

* | ClirJ P Green * | Clir M F Saltern (Chairman)

* | Clir J D Hawkins * | Clir P C Smerdon (Vice Chairman)
2 | Clir M J Hicks

Other Members also in attendance:

Clirs H D Bastone, J Brazil, T R Holway, N A Hopwood, R C Steer, RJ Vint, KR H
Wingate and S A E Wright

Item No Minute Ref No Officers in attendance and participating
below refers
All Group Manager — Commercial Services; and Senior
Specialist — Democratic Services
8 0&S.20/18 Community Housing Lead
9 0&S.21/18 Fusion Strategic Development Manager and Assets
Specialist
10 0&S.22/18 Specialist — Performance and Intelligence; Contact Centre
Manager; and Specialist Manager
11 0&S.23/18 Monitoring Officer
16 0&S.27/18 Head of Building Control Partnership
0&S.15/18 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 28
June 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.
0&S.16/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of
business to be considered during the course of the meeting, but there were
none made.
0&S.17/18 URGENT BUSINESS

The Chairman informed that he had no items of urgent business to be
raised at this meeting.

Page 175



0&S.18/18

0&S.19/18

0&S.20/18

0+S2.8.18

PUBLIC FORUM

In accordance with the Public Forum Procedure Rules, the Chairman
informed that there were no questions that had been received for
consideration during this agenda item.

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

The Panel was presented with the most recently published Executive
Forward Plan.

In addition to the requests that had previously been made, the Panel also
formally asked to consider the ‘Public Toilet Pay on Entry Contract Award’
at its next meeting before its onward presentation to the Executive meeting
on 13 September 2018.

COMMUNITY HOUSING STRATEGY - SIX MONTHLY UPDATE

The Panel considered a report that sought to provide it with an update on
progress with the Community Housing Strategy and the programme of
action going forward.

To expand upon the details in the report, the Community Housing Lead
also conducted a presentation that outlined some of the design ideas that
were being developed through one of the early development schemes at
South Brent.

In the ensuing discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) the close linkages to the ‘Enabling Homes to Meet the Needs for All
agenda item. A Member highlighted the agenda item that had been
considered by the Panel at its meeting on 3 May 2018 (Minute
0&S.116/17 refers) that had presented a range of options for the
purpose of delivering social/affordable housing. In expressing his
surprise at the lack of reference to this item in both the agenda report
and presentation, the Member emphasised the importance of the
Council adopting a joined up and co-ordinated approach in this
respect. As an assurance, the Panel was advised that these close
linkages were recognised and lead officers were working in a co-
ordinated manner. Furthermore, the potential use of Section 106
monies and the Wholly Owned Company proposals were also relevant
to this Strategy and Members were reminded that updates on these
matters were also due to be considered by the Panel at future
meetings;

(b) the standardised financial models. A Member highlighted the
reference in the report to the financial models that had already been
developed and asked to be in receipt of more information outside of
this meeting;

Page 176



0&S.21/18

0+S2.8.18

(c) the opportunities presented through this Central Government allocation
of £1.88 million to the Council. A Member highlighted the Budget
Summary (Appendix B of the presented agenda report refers) and
expressed his concerns that one-third of this Fund had already been
paid and/or committed without any housing yet being developed;

(d) the potential for the Council to become a mortgage provider. Whilst
there was a great deal of bureaucracy aligned to financial regulations,
it was recognised that the Council could opt to become a mortgage
provider in its own right;

(e) the presentation. With regard to the development scheme referred to
in the presentation, whilst the need for good design and construction
was emphasised, it was also noted that there was a fine balance to be
struck to ensure that build costs did not become too high. As a
consequence, it was agreed that information relating to costs per unit
would be circulated to Members.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the update on the progress with the Community Housing
Strategy and the programme of action going forward be
welcomed.

SHWD SPORTS AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL
REPORT 2017 PRESENTATION (TO INCLUDE YOUTH LEISURE
NIGHTS UPDATE)

The Chairman introduced the Fusion Leisure Strategic Development
Manager and the Assets Specialist who were in attendance to provide a
presentation that focused on:

- the Fusion Strategic Community Development Team; and
- the Strategic Community Development Plan that included:
o means to increase regular participation;
o targeting older people, young people, disabled people and
disadvantaged and deprived communities;
o sporting and community events;
o healthy living; and
o partnership working.

Upon the conclusion of the presentation, it was agreed that a copy would
be circulated to all Members for their information and reference.

Page 177



0&S.22/18

0+S2.8.18
In the ensuing debate, the following points were raised:-

(a) With regard to the latest situation regarding the Youth Leisure Nights, it
was noted that:

o The scheme at Quayside Leisure Centre was working well;

o Dartmouth Leisure Centre had established a scheme that had
commenced on 11 May 2018;

o The team was working with a number of local agencies in Totnes
with a view to re-launching a scheme in September 2018; and

o There was currently no provision in lvybridge but this would be
reviewed again in September 2018.

(b) In terms of alternative funding streams, a Member highlighted that both
County and District Council Members had their own Locality Funds
which could be used to support some of the local initiatives referred to
in the presentation. To progress this point further, the Community
Development Team was encouraged to make contact with local Ward
Members;

(c) Members requested receipt of additional information in relation to
participation numbers in the South Hams outside of this meeting. The
representative also reiterated that Fusion would expect for its
participation numbers to increase further upon the completion of its
current centre development works. In reply to a specific query, the
Panel was informed that Fusion was considering a complete
renovation of the gym facilities at Totnes Pavilion as part of its Phase 2
renovation works;

(d) When questioned, the representative informed that, to date, the
outreach and engagement work in the smaller South Hams parishes
had been limited. Whilst accepting the point and noting that resources
were limited, Members still requested that progress be made that could
be demonstrated when Fusion presented its next annual report.

QUARTER 1 2018/19 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Members considered a report that presented the performance information
for Quarter 1 2018/19.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) accessing the latest information on the performance dashboards. Some
concerns were raised over difficulties that Members were experiencing
in accessing the latest dashboard information and it was requested that
officers follow up on this point outside of this Panel meeting;

(b) the average number of missed bins. Whilst an improving picture,

officers informed that the service was still aware of the need for further
improvements to be made to this performance indicator;

Page 178



0&S.23/18

0+S2.8.18

(c) the seemingly high number of abandoned telephone calls. Officers
informed that they were currently looking at methods of capturing how
many of those abandoned telephone calls were due to an increase in
channel shift. However, officers did confirm that the overall trend was an
increase in customer channel shift, which was directly resulting in a
reduction in the total number of calls into the Contact Centre. This trend
was subsequently welcomed by the Panel;

(d) staff turnover in the Contact Centre. In reply to a question, officers
advised that staff turnover was still felt to be too high in the Centre and
remained an ongoing issue;

(e) the Development Management (DM) performance information. A
number of Members considered the presentation and format of the DM
performance information within the published agenda to be
unacceptable. It was therefore agreed that the information would be re-
formatted and circulated to all Members following this meeting;

(f) universal credit update. In light of some concerns over the additional
workload arising from the universal credit initiative, it was agreed that
lead officers would prepare a briefing note that would be sent to all
Members.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the performance levels against target communicated in the
Balanced Scorecard and the performance figures supplied in the
Background and the Exception report be noted.

CODE OF CONDUCT HEARING PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS ON
THE COMPLAINTS PROCESS

Members considered a paper that presented the views and
recommendations of the Code of Conduct Hearing Panel in response to
concerns that had been raised over the Council’s current complaints
process.

In discussion, there was widespread support expressed for the

recommendations and it was confirmed that the Council would be willing to
host the suggested training session.

Page 179



0+S2.8.18

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Panel:

1.

request that a full review of the Council’'s Code of Conduct be
undertaken by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the
Members of the Code of Conduct Hearing Panel, with the
findings being presented back to a future meeting of the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel;

. ask officers to write to Town and Parish Council Clerks

outlining the total number of town and parish councillor
complaints that had been received by the District Council and
the consequent costs that were associated with their
administration;

RECOMMEND to Council that representations be sent to the
Secretary of State and local MPs outlining the Council’s
concerns over the current regulations (e.g. the lack of any
meaningful penalties and the unfairness of District Councils
having to absorb the costs of administering the scheme for its
local Town and Parish Councils);

promote to Town and Parish Council Clerks the benefits of
informally resolving complaints before a formal process is
instigated,;

ask officers to convene a ‘Code of Conduct and Councillor
Behaviour’ training session for town and parish clerks and
councillors;

. convene a meeting between the Hearing Panel Members; the

Monitoring Officer; and the Devon Association of Local
Councils County Solicitor to express the concerns of the
District Council over the number of complaints that are being
received against local town and parish councillors; and

encourage the Monitoring Officer to revisit the Council’s pool
of Investigating Officers in an attempt to build capacity to
ensure that complaints are dealt with in a more timely
manner.

Page 180



0+S2.8.18

0&S.24/18 TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATES

(a) Drug and Alcohol Abuse

By way of an update, it was confirmed that the Group would present its
initial recommendations to the next Panel meeting on 6 September 2018
before then presenting its final concluding report to the Panel meeting
on 4 October 2018.

(b) Community Funding

The Chairman advised that the Group had met on three separate
occasions and it was intended that its concluding report would be
considered by the Panel at its next meeting on 6 September 2018.

In light of the potential overlap, it was agreed that the Chairmen of this
Group and the Drug and Alcohol Abuse Task and Finish Group would

discuss the recommendations arising from these Reviews prior to their
consideration by the Panel.

0&S.25/18 ACTIONS ARISING / DECISIONS LOG

0&S.26/18

The contents of the latest version of the Log was presented for
consideration. In discussion, reference was made to:-

the meetings to be held between relevant officers and Members on a
ward by ward possible to investigate and ascertain possible
opportunities to the Wholly Owned Company. A Member expressed his
disappointment that these meetings had yet to be held and questioned
how these would be arranged since the matter was to be re-considered
by the Panel on 6 September 2018. In reply, it was noted that the lead

officer would be tasked with progressing this matter upon his return to
the office;

- the point again being made that the promised consultation with local

Ward Members on the Public Conveniences charging proposals was
still to take place;

- confirmation that rolling contracts that were managed by the Council
were currently being reviewed.

DRAFT ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME

In consideration of its Annual Work Programme, the following comments,
additions and amendments were made by the Panel to the most recently
published version:-

Page 181



0+S2.8.18

(a) The Chairman invited a Member to introduce his formal Scrutiny
Proposal Form that was entitled: ‘The Future of Our Town Centres in
South Hams’. In so doing, the proposer highlighted the uncertain
future being faced by town centres due to changes in retail activity
and asked that a Task and Finish Group be set up with the initial task
of presenting a draft set of terms of reference to the Panel meeting
on 4 October 2018 for its approval.

Following a lengthy debate into the merits of this proposal, it was
agreed that, as a way forward, the Community Of Practice Lead for
Place Making would be tasked with producing a paper for
consideration by the Panel at its meeting on 1 November 2018. It
was intended that this paper would present the officer views as to
how the Place Making Community Of Practice could have an impact
on the Town Centre Regeneration agenda. In addition and, before
this paper was considered, the Panel also agreed that the officer
should convene four separate meetings with the local Ward Members
for each of the four market towns;

(b) In light of the request made at the Special Council meeting held on
26 July 2018, the Panel supported the suggestion for it to consider
the proposed strategy for Commercial Property Acquisition and asset
development within the South Hams at its next meeting on 6
September 2018.

0&S.27/18 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
It was then:
RESOLVED
That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public and press be excluded from
the meeting during consideration of the following item of

business as the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Act is involved.

0&S.28/18 DEVON BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP UPDATE

The Panel considered an exempt report that provided an overview of the
performance of the Devon Building Control Partnership.

In discussion, assurances were given to the Panel that more information
(including the agenda and published minutes) related to meetings of the
Building Control Partnership Committee would now be distributed to the
wider membership.

Page 182



0+S2.8.18
It was then:

RESOLVED

That the update report be endorsed.

(Meeting started at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.50 pm)

Chairman

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 13e

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD AT
FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 23 AUGUST 2018

MEMBERS
* Clir D W May - Chairman

* Clir T R Holway - Vice-Chairman

@ Clir K Baldry @ Clir R J Foss

* Clir J 1 G Blackler @ Cllir P W Hitchins
* Clir D Brown * Clir N A Hopwood
@ Clir B F Cane * ClIr K Pringle

@ Clir P K Cuthbert * Clir R Rowe

* Denotes attendance
@ Denotes apology for absence

Officers in attendance and participating:
All Agenda Items: Senior Specialist — Licensing; Licensing Specialist; Deputy
Monitoring Officer and Senior Specialist — Democratic Services

L.01/18 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 11
January 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

L.02/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business
to be considered during the course of the meeting, but there were none
made.

Clir D W May declared a personal interest in ltem 6: ‘Determination of
whether to grant a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licence, in
effect to determine whether the applicant can be deemed a ‘fit and
proper person’ in light of previous criminal convictions and other relevant
motoring offences’ (Minute L.04/18 below refers) by virtue of having
undertaken limited business involvement with the applicants’ supporter
who was in attendance and remained in the meeting and took part in the
debate and vote thereon.

Page 185



L.03/18

L.04/18

Licensing 23.08.18
EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
It was then:
RESOLVED

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public and press be excluded from
the meeting during consideration of the following item of
business as the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act is involved.

DETERMINATION OF WHETHER TO GRANT A HACKNEY
CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE, IN EFFECT TO
DETERMINE WHETHER THE APPLICANT CAN BE DEEMED A °FIT
AND PROPER PERSON’ IN LIGHT OF PREVIOUS CRIMINAL
CONVICTIONS AND OTHER RELEVANT MOTORING OFFENCES

Consideration was given to an exempt report that sought to determine
whether an applicant was a ‘fit and proper person’ to hold a joint Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licence with the Council in accordance
with Sections 51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976.

At the invitation of the Chairman, the applicant and her supporter
provided background information relating to her previous convictions and
offences and responded to Member questions.

At 2.20pm (once all parties were content that they had no further issues
or points to raise), the Committee adjourned in the presence of the
Council’s Deputy Monitoring Officer and Senior Specialist Democratic
Services.

At 2.50pm, the meeting was re-convened and the Chairman announced
the decision.

RESOLVED

That the Committee has considered very carefully the application
for a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licence and has:

- read the Licensing Officer’s report (which the applicant has
also had sight of) and the Council’s Taxi Licensing
Convictions Policy;

- read the details on the Disclosure and Barring Certificate and
DVLA record taking into consideration the nature of the
offences and when these were committed;

- listened very carefully to the representations that have been
made to the meeting;

Page 186



L.5/18

L.6/18

Licensing 23.08.18

- acknowledged that the main priority of the licensing regime is
to ensure public safety. The Committee also recognises that,
as a civil matter, the evidence of proof is based on the
balance of probabilities; the onus being on the applicant to
satisfy the Authority that they are a ‘fit and proper person’ to
continue to drive a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle.

The Committee has decided to REFUSE the application for a
Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licence. This
decision is based on:-

1. Paragraph 22.3 of the Council’s Policy referring to multiple
convictions;

2. Paragraph 13.10 of the Council’s Policy referring to the
seriousness of driving without insurance; and

3. Failure to disclose an offence in the application which
happened 6 years ago.

RE-ADMITTANCE OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
It was then:
RESOLVED

That the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting.

CONSIDERATION OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE HACKNEY
CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY TO ADOPT A
PROCESS TO CHECK AND UPDATE THE NEW NATIONAL
REGISTER OF TAXI LICENCE REVOCATIONS AND REFUSALS

Consideration was given to a report that informed that the Local
Government Association had written to all authorities in August 2018
with their guidance on adopting the National Register of Taxi Licence
Revocations and Refusals.

The Committee noted that this guidance stipulated the procedure that a
local authority would need to follow in order to provide data for the
national register and to enable the Council to access it.

In discussion, some Members were of the view that, in light of the
guidance having only just been received, it would be more appropriate to
assess the likely impact and whether the benefits would outweigh the
potential resource implications before taking a decision. The Committee
therefore requested that this matter be deferred to a future meeting for
further consideration.

Page 187



L.7/18

Licensing 23.08.18

It was then:
RESOLVED

That a decision on the amendment be deferred to a future
Licensing Committee meeting.

ADOPTION OF PROCEDURES AND FEES IN RELATION TO THE
ANIMAL WELFARE (LICENSING OF ACTIVITIES INVOLVING
ANIMALS) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2018

Members were presented with a paper that advised them that the
Government had recently adopted the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018. The primary
purpose of these Regulations had been to amalgamate (and replace) a
number of pieces of legislation that governed the licensing of animals.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) the budgetary impact on the Council. Since the fee charged would
be dependent upon the length of the licence, officers advised that it
was impossible at this time to determine the budgetary impact of
these Regulations. With regard to determining the length of a
licence, it was noted that this would be based upon factors including:
previous history and a risk assessment having been undertaken;

(b) reviewing the fees. Members were assured that, in the event of the
proposed fees proving to be inappropriate, then they could be
reviewed (in the first instance) by the Committee.

It was then:
RESOLVED
That Council be RECOMMENDED to:-

1. adopt the Discretionary Powers contained within the Animal
Welfare Act 2006 and the Animal Welfare (Licensing of
Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018;

2. amend the Scheme of Delegation whereby decisions
relating to the determination of licences and enforcement
action be delegated to the Community Of Practice Lead for
Environmental Health and Housing; and

3. adopt the proposed fees and charges (as outlined in the
presented agenda report).

Page 188



Licensing 23.08.18

L.8/18 AGREEMENT TO CONSULT ON THE ADVERTISING AND
ADOPTION OF A NEW TAXI RANK AT CLIFTON PLACE,
SALCOMBE

The Committee considered a report that advised that, in July 2018, the
Devon County Council Highways Traffic Orders Committee had
determined to adopt a new Traffic Regulation Order creating a ‘no
waiting except for Taxis’ bay on Clifton Place, Salcombe.

In discussion, some concerns were expressed over the potential noise
nuisance arising from a Taxi Rank being located adjacent to residential
properties. As a result, the Committee asked officers to undertake a
consultation exercise and to:

- place an advert in the local newspaper;
- write to each of the local residents who lived on Clifton Place; and
- inform local Ward Members.

Upon the conclusion of this consultation exercise, the Committee also
requested that they receive a report on the outcome at its next meeting
on 1 November 2018 before making a final decision.

It was then:
RESOLVED
That a consultation exercise be undertaken on a proposal to
adopt a new Traffic Regulation Order to create a ‘no waiting
except for Taxis’ bay on Clifton Place, Salcombe, with the

outcome being reported back to the next Committee meeting
on 1 November 2018.

(Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.25 pm).

Chairman

Page 189



Licensing 23.08.18

Page 190



Agenda ltem 13f

0+56.9.18

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON
THURSDAY, 6 SEPTEMBER 2018

Panel Members in attendance:
* Denotes attendance ¢ Denotes apology for absence

* | Clir K J Baldry * | Clir E D Huntley

2 | Clir J P Birch @ | Clir DW May

* | Clir J | G Blackler * | Clir J T Pennington

* | Clir BF Cane * | Clir K Pringle

@ | Clir J P Green * | Clir M F Saltern (Chairman)

* | Clir J D Hawkins * | Clir P C Smerdon (Vice Chairman)
2 | Clir M J Hicks

Other Members also in attendance:
Clirs H D Bastone, | Bramble, J Brazil, R F D Gilbert, T R Holway, N A Hopwood, J A
Pearce, R J Tucker, R J Vint, KR H Wingate and S A E Wright

Item No Minute Ref No Officers in attendance and participating
below refers
All Group Manager — Commercial Services; and Senior
Specialist — Democratic Services
7(a) 0&S.33/18(a) Section 151 Officer
7(b) 0&S.33/18(b) Community Of Practice Lead — Environment Services
8 0&S.34/18 Group Manager — Business Development and Section 151
Officer
9 0&S.35/18 Group Manager — Business Development and Senior
Specialist — Place and Strategy
10 0&S.36/18 Community Of Practice Lead — Environment Services
11 0&S.37/18 Monitoring Officer
12(a) 0&S.38/18(a) Senior Specialist — Environmental Health
12(b) 0&S.38/18(b) Commissioning Manager
16 0&S.42/18 IT Community Of Practice Lead

0&S.29/18 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 2
August 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

0&S.30/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of

business to be considered during the course of the meeting. These were
recorded as follows:-

Page 191



0+S56.9.18

Clir P C Smerdon declared a personal interest in Item 12(b): ‘Task and
Finish Group Updates: Community Funding’ (Minute O&S.38/18(b) below
refers) and specifically part 1 of the recommendation by virtue of being a
Council appointed representative and trustee of the South Hams
Community and Voluntary Service (CVS). Having sought the advice of the
Council’s Monitoring Officer, Clir Smerdon advised that he would make an
introductory statement before leaving the meeting room during the debate
and vote on this item; and

CliIr K Pringle also declared a personal interest in Item 12(b): ‘Task and
Finish Group Updates: Community Funding’ (Minute O&S.38/18(b) below
refers) and specifically part 1 of the recommendation by virtue of being a
Council appointed representative of the South Hams CVS and remained in
the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon.

0&S.31/18 URGENT BUSINESS

The Chairman informed that he had no items of urgent business to be
raised at this meeting.

0&S.32/18 PUBLIC FORUM

In accordance with the Public Forum Procedure Rules, the Chairman
informed that there were no questions that had been received for
consideration during this agenda item.

0&S.33/18 EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

The Panel was presented with the most recently published Executive
Forward Plan and proceeded to note the likelihood that the agenda items
relating to the: ‘Governance Arrangements Post JLP Adoption’ and ‘Peer
Review Report’ would now be considered at a later meeting of the
Executive.

(a) Medium Term Financial Strategy — Presentation

Having formally requested that the Panel consider the Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) before its onward consideration by the
Executive, the Section 151 Officer conducted a presentation to Members
that also contained ten recommendations.

In the ensuing debate, reference was made to:-

(a) some concerns that Development Management Committee
Members were disengaged from the process of developing the
MTFS. To offset these concerns, officers confirmed that the MTFS
would be a standalone item on the Council agenda for its meeting on
27 September 2018;

Page 192



0+S56.9.18

(b) the Business Rates Pilot Scheme. Members considered that the
Council had little option other than to submit an application for
Business Rates Pilot status for 2019/20. That being said, the Panel
felt it to be very unfair that those local authorities that were located in
London did not have to re-apply;

(c) negative Revenue Support Grant. It was confirmed that the District
Council Network was working very hard to obtain a realistic business
rates baseline for all District Councils from 2020 onwards;

(d) the use of New Homes Bonus funding. Such was the level of detail
that was contained within the presentation slides in relation to New
Homes Bonus funding, that a Member did not feel in a position to
reach a view at this meeting;

(e) Earmarked Reserves. The Panel felt that there was a need for
ongoing review of the projects that were allocated within the
Earmarked Reserves. Furthermore, a Member felt that it would be
good practice to impose deadlines on such projects;

(f) the recommendations to take specialist pension advice and review
the terms and conditions of the Employment Green Book. In support
of the recommendations on the options for the Council’'s Pension
position and the conditions of the Employment Green Book,
Members considered these to be particularly important matters;

(g) the Treasury Management recommendations. The Panel was of the
view that any recommendations it made on External Borrowing levels
would be pre-empting the views of the Audit Committee. As a result,
the Panel did not feel it appropriate to make a recommendation on
this part of the MTFS at this time.

It was then:
RESOLVED
That the Executive RECOMMEND to Council that:

1. the strategic intention be set to raise Council Tax by the
maximum allowed in any given year, without triggering a
Council Tax Referendum, to enable continued delivery of
services (NB. the actual Council Tax for any given year will be
decided by the Council in the preceding February;

2. an application be submitted for Pilot status for 2019/20, with
agreement being given to a 40% District / 34% Devon County
Council / 1% Fire split for the 75% scheme. In the event of the
Pilot bid not being successful, then agreement be given to
remaining part of the Devon Business Rates Pool for 2019/20;

3. Central Government and Devon MPs be actively lobbied to
support a 2019/20 Devon Pilot bid;

Page 193



0+S56.9.18

4. the Government, Devon MPs and other sector bodies such as
the District Councils Network be actively lobbied and engaged
with for a realistic business rates baseline to be set for the
Council for 2020 onwards;

5. the Council responds to the technical consultation in support of
the Government eliminating Negative Revenue Support Grant
and continues to lobby for Rural Services Delivery Grant
allocations which adequately reflect the cost of rural service
provision;

6. for modelling purposes, the Council use £500,000 of New
Homes Bonus funding for 2019-20 to fund the revenue base
budget and then reduce this level to £400,000 by 2020-21 and
£250,000 by 2021-22;

7. the annual level of contributions to Earmarked Reserves
(£722,300) and the adequacy of the existing level of
Unearmarked Reserves (£1.8 million) and Earmarked Reserves
(£8.3 million) be reviewed by Members as part of the Budget
Setting process. (NB. this will assess the adequacy of
Reserves levels, in light of future plans and pressures);

8. it takes specialist pension advice on the options for the
Council’s Pension position, with the aim of reducing the current
contributions, increasing affordability, whilst best managing the
pension deficit;

9. it continue with the Local Government Terms and Conditions of
Employment Green Book for at least 2019/20. That a review
be undertaken into all options for reducing staff costs by varying
terms from the Green Book from 2020/21, with an initial report
being presented back before the end of 2018/19.

(b) Public Toilet Pay on Entry Contract Award

At the request of the Panel, the Community Of Practice Lead —
Environment Services provided an update on the Public Toilet Pay on
Entry Contract Award. In so doing, she advised that two tender
submissions had been received and, following their evaluation,
clarification answers to queries had been sought and received. It was
confirmed that the next step would now be to award the contract.

During the subsequent debate, the following points were raised:-

(i) The Panel was assured that the tender documentation had been
compiled in such a way to ensure that the Council was not committed
to specific Public Conveniences becoming Pay on Entry facilities.
Furthermore, the process of determining exactly which facilities
would become Pay on Entry would only be completed following a
consultation exercise with the relevant local Ward Members;

Page 194



0+S56.9.18

(i) In reply to a question, officers advised that the tenderers had been
asked to provide a view on what they considered to be the most
appropriate means of delivering a Pay on Entry solution at each of
the Public Conveniences;

(iii) Whilst the Council continued to lobby, the Panel noted that Business
Rates were still payable on Public Conveniences. As part of an
upcoming review, officers advised that each of the Rates would be
assessed to see if a formal appeal on the Rateable Value should be
made to the Valuation Office.

0&S.34/18 ACTIVITIES TO SUPPORT ECONOMIC GROWTH

The Panel considered a report that sought to recommend that the
Commercial Property Strategy be adopted. Furthermore, the report also
sought to recommend that a total borrowing limit of £60 million be agreed
for the Strategy.

During discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) As with the earlier comments during the debate on the Medium Term
Financial Strategy (Minute O&S.33/18(b) refers), the Panel was
reluctant to make any recommendations on the total borrowing limit
and felt that it should be a matter for the Audit Committee to consider
in detail at its next meeting;

(b) With regard to the proposed Governance arrangements, some
concerns were expressed. In particular, it became apparent that there
were differing views over whether or not the Investment Member Group
was to become a formal decision-making body. In the event of the
Group becoming a constituted decision-making body, then serving
non-Executive Members roles (that require independence) would be
compromised. As a way forward, it was suggested that the non-
Executive Members could attend meetings of the Group in a non-voting
capacity.

Such was the extent of the concerns and differing views, that the Panel
asked that further consideration be given to the Terms of Reference for
the Member Group and the proposed delegated decision-making
process. A recommendation to this effect was subsequently
PROPOSED and SECONDED and when put to the vote declared
CARRIED;

(c) A debate ensued on the proposal for the Head of Paid Service to be
given delegated authority, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer
and the Leader of Council and the Chair of the Member Group. Some
Members could not understand the suggestion whereby the Section
151 Officer (who was only a consultee in the decision) would then have
a casting vote in the event of a ‘split decision’. Furthermore, the point
was raised on a number of occasions that the Council was a Member
led authority and the governance arrangements should reflect this fact.

Page 195



0&S.35/18

0+56.9.18
(d) To reflect his personal concerns, a Member formally PROPOSED that:-

‘In light of the lack of information available at this time, the Commercial
Property Strategy should not be approved.’

However, this proposal was not seconded and was therefore not
debated.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the Overview and Scrutiny Panel wish to express the
following views to the Executive:-

1. that the Panel endorse the principle of a Commercial Property
Strategy that includes the following multiple objectives:

- to support regeneration and the economic activity of the
District;

- to enhance economic benefit;

- to grow business rate income;

- to assist with the financial sustainability of the Council as
an ancillary benefit;

- to help the Council continue to deliver and/or improve
frontline services in line with the Council’'s adopted
strategy and objectives; and

2. That the proposed Commercial Property Strategy be revised,
with a detailed Terms of Reference for the Investment
Member Group being drafted and further consideration being
given to the proposed delegated decision-making process in
time for consideration at the next Executive meeting on 13
September 2018.

(NOTE: in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.6, Clir J T
Pennington requested that his vote against this recommendation be
formally recorded).

NEXT STEPS — ENABLING HOMES TO MEET THE NEEDS FOR ALL

The Panel considered a report that set out a business case for the
formation of a Housing Wholly Owned Company (WOC). The report
concluded that, on balance, there was no requirement for the formation of
a Council Housing Wholly Owned Company at this time.

In discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) In support of the intention to ‘enable homes to meet the needs for all’, a
number of Members acknowledged that this could be achieved
irrespective of whether or not a Wholly Owned Company was formed;

Page 196



0&S.36/18

0+S56.9.18

(b) In expressing disappointment, some Members felt it regrettable that the
Council had not built (or facilitated the building of) any genuinely
affordable housing for local working people in recent years. In
addition, these Members stated the need for the Council to reconsider
its definition of the term ‘affordable’ and review its Affordable Housing
Policy;

(c) Despite receiving assurances to the contrary, a Member remained of
the view that there was a need to set up a Wholly Owned Company as
a means to overcome the right to buy provision.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Panel RECOMMEND to the Executive agreement of the
following principles:

1. That there is no requirement to form a South Hams District
Council Housing Wholly Owned Company at this time;

2. That Council borrowing in order to acquire or develop
affordable homes is acceptable in principle;

3. That affordable homes may be acquired or developed via the
Community Housing Strategy OR through existing work with
Registered Providers or Developers. (NB. these properties
will be allocated in accordance with Local Lettings Plans and
may be managed via the Council’s Direct Lets Service; and

4. That the Council’s affordable housing development /
acquisition plans be guided as outlined in Section 5 of the
presented agenda report.

(NOTE: in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.6, Clir K J Baldry
requested that his vote against this recommendation be formally
recorded).

PAY & DISPLAY MACHINES

The Panel considered a report that updated Members of the steps that
had been taken by officers to improve the effectiveness of car parking
equipment.

Page 197



0&S.37/18

0&S.38/18

0+S6.9.18
In discussion, reference was made to:-

(i) the latest compensatory offer to the Council. Officers informed that
the latest compensatory offer from the Metric Group to reflect the lost
income incurred by the Council was unsatisfactory. In the event of
the offer remaining unsatisfactory, Members requested that senior
representatives from the Metric Group should then be invited to
attend a future Panel meeting;

(i) future pay and display equipment. In recognition of the changing
face of car parks, it was agreed that measures such as ‘pay on exit’;
construction of barriers; and flexible forms of payment should be
considered as part of the 2019/20 Budget Setting process.

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the actions taken be endorsed and the steps being
taken by the Metric Group be noted; and

2. That, in the event of their compensation offer remaining

unsatisfactory, then senior representatives of Metric Group be
invited to attend a future Panel meeting.

DECISION NOTICES RELATING TO ALLEGATIONS OF BREACHES
OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT HEARING PANEL

Members were presented with two formal decision notices arising from
recent Hearing Panel meetings.

It was noted that these two Panel Hearings had been convened to consider
allegations that ClIr Gina Coles (Dartmouth Town Council) and ClIr Rosie
Adams (Totnes Town Council) had breached their respective Council’s
adopted Member Code Of Conduct.
It was then:

RESOLVED

That Decision Notices SH 09 170817 and SH 11 071117 be
formally noted.

TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATES

(a) Drug and Alcohol Abuse - Interim Report

An interim report of the Task and Finish Group was presented to the
Panel that sought to:

Page 198



0+S56.9.18

- consider the contents of a Briefing Note on designing out intravenous
drug use in South Hams District Council Public Conveniences; and

- recommended that works be undertaken to design out the use of
intravenous drugs in the male toilets at Coronation Road, Totnes.

In the ensuing discussion, the contents of the interim report were
supported and the Panel wished to extend its gratitude to the Task and
Finish Group Members and lead officers for their work on this Review.

It was then:

RESOLVED

1.

That the Briefing Note on designing out intravenous drug use
in South Hams District Council public conveniences (as
outlined at Appendix A of the presented agenda report) be
noted; and

That the Panel RECOMMEND that the Executive spend
£2,500 from the Repairs and Maintenance Earmarked
Reserve to pay for the works necessary to design out the use
of intravenous drugs in the male toilets at Coronation Road,
Totnes.

(b) Community Funding

The Panel considered the concluding report of the Community Funding
Task and Finish Group.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(i) the South Hams Community and Voluntary Service (CVS). As
indicated when declaring his interest (Minute O&S.30/18 above
refers), the Vice-Chairman made a statement in support of the CVS
that included:

The significant impact of previous funding reductions and his hope
for a period of stability for the organisation;

The organisation having relocated from the Council offices in
March 2018. In making the point, the Member highlighted that the
office had remained vacant since and stated that, had it been re-
let, then the income generated could have helped to meet the
financial reduction being proposed in this agenda report; and

The amount of work undertaken by the CVS that was closely
aligned to the Council’s wellbeing priority theme.

(Upon the conclusion of his statement, the Vice-Chairman left the
meeting room.)

Page 199



0&S.39/18

0+S56.9.18

In agreement with these views, another Member felt that a one-off
reduction from £22,616 to £0 was rather harsh. In disagreement,
some of the Task and Finish Group Members felt the links to the
Council’s corporate priorities were rather tenuous and questioned the
added value that was being obtained by the Council. This view was
expanded upon, with reference being made to the close linkages
between the work of the CVS and the social care sector.
Furthermore, these Members also highlighted that, despite being
invited to do so each year, 53 of the 59 town and parish councils still
chose not to make any financial contributions to the CVS.

(i) the proposed funding reductions to the South Devon AONB. In

support of the recommendation, Group Members advised that
assurances had been sought whereby, despite the proposed
reduction, the AONB would still have sources of funding to deliver
projects;

(iii) the South West Rotary Youth Games. It was confirmed that clarity

was still being sought over the role of the Rotary Club in the Youth
Games. This clarity was being sought in response to some Members
being of the view that the Council should not be seen to be
supporting organisations such as the Rotary Club. In the event of an
unsatisfactory response being received, these Members advised that
they may have a differing view when the proposal to retain funding at
the existing level was presented to the Council for a final decision.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Panel RECOMMEND that the Executive RECOMMEND
to Council that:

1. the proposed funding reduction to the South Hams
Community and Voluntary Service be endorsed in
accordance with paragraph 5 of the presented agenda report;
and

2. the proposed funding reduction to the South Devon Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty be endorsed in accordance with
paragraph 5 of the presented agenda report.

(NOTE: in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.6, Clir E D Huntley
requested that her vote against recommendation 2 be formally recorded).

ACTIONS ARISING / DECISIONS LOG

The contents of the latest version of the Log was presented for
consideration. In discussion, it was agreed that the difficulties that
Members were still experiencing in accessing the latest performance
dashboard information on their IPads would be followed up.

Page 200



0+S56.9.18

0&S.40/18 DRAFT ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME
The Panel noted the contents of its latest Annual Work Programme
without any further comments, additions or amendments.
0&S.41/18 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
It was then:
RESOLVED
That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public and press be excluded from
the meeting during consideration of the following item of
business as the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Act is involved.
0&S.42/18 IT PROCUREMENT

The Panel considered an exempt report that provided an update on the
IT Procurement exercise.

In discussion, the Panel expressed its support for the proposed way
forward.

It was then:
RESOLVED
That the Panel endorse the IT Procurement exercise and
RECOMMEND to the Executive that the proposed way forward

(as outlined in the exempt agenda report presented to the Panel)
be approved.

(Meeting started at 10.00 am and concluded at 1.00 pm)

Chairman

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda‘ltém 13g

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON THURSDAY 6 SEPTEMBER 2018

Members in attendance
* Denotes attendance
o Denotes apology for absence

* | ClIr | Bramble * Clir J A Pearce (Chairman)

* | Clir J Brazil * Clir J T Pennington (Vice-Chairman)

* | ClIir T R Holway

Members also in attendance:

Clirs N A Hopwood, R J Tucker, and S A E Wright

Item No | Minute Officers and Visitors in attendance
Ref No below
refers
All Section 151 Officer; Group Manager — Business
ltems Development; Community Of Practice Lead —
Environment Services; Senior Specialist —
Accountant; Devon Audit Partnership Manager; and
Senior Specialist — Democratic Services
A.14/18 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 July 2018 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
A.15/18 URGENT BUSINESS
The Chairman advised that she had no urgent items to be raised at this
meeting.
A.16/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of
business to be considered during the course of the meeting, but none were
made.
A.17/18 ACTIVITIES TO SUPPORT ECONOMIC GROWTH

The Committee considered a report that sought to recommend that a
Commercial Property Strategy be adopted. Furthermore, the report also
asked that the Committee agree a total borrowing limit of £60 million for
this Strategy.

Page 203



Audit 6.9.18

In his introduction, the Leader of Council outlined the draft Strategy to the
Committee and provided an update on the views of the Overview and
Scrutiny Panel, who had considered this agenda item earlier in the day.

Following this introduction, it became evident that Members wished to ask
questions on exempt Appendix B and it was therefore PROPOSED and
SECONDED and when put to the vote declared CARRIED:

RESOLVED

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of the following item of business as the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of
Schedule 12A to the Act is involved.

In addition to these questions being answered, the Leader of Council also
provided the Committee with a confidential outline of some of the potential
projects that were currently under consideration.

Once all Members were satisfied that they had no further issues to raise in
exempt session, it was then PROPOSED and SECONDED and when put
to the vote declared CARRIED:

RESOLVED
That the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting.
That in accordance with
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) The Committee was of the view that the aspects of the current Strategy
relating to ‘Development on Council Owned Land’ and ‘Commercial
Property Acquisitions in the South Hams’ were effectively separate
strands. As separate strands, Members were of the view that the
governance arrangements for these should be different.

In particular, the Committee recognised that the time constraints
associated with open market competition were not so applicable for
‘Development on Council Owned Land’. As long as they complied with
the Council approved total borrowing limit and contained (as an
appendix) a full and detailed Business Plan in each instance, then the
Committee felt that such matters could be determined at a formal
meeting of the Executive, with the appropriate delegations being in
place from the Council. As a further level of assurance, a Member also
made the point that such decisions would then be subject to the
Scrutiny Call-In Procedure Rules.

Page 204



Audit 6.9.18

With regard to decisions relating to ‘Commercial Property Acquisitions
in the South Hams’, the potential need to act very quickly (and therefore
outside of the formal decision making process) was recognised. That
being said, Members shared some of the concerns that had been
raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel in respect of the current
proposals related to the delegated decision-making process being in
need of further revision. As a result, the Committee asked that the
Leader give further consideration to the proposed delegated decision-
making process for ‘Commercial Property Acquisitions in the South
Hams’ in time for the next Executive meeting on 13 September 2018;

(b) Whilst Members did still have some reservations, the Committee felt
that a number of its risks had been mitigated by the proposal now being
to only acquire Commercial Property that was located within the South
Hams;

(c) A Member was of the view that a 1% net yield return was very slim
given the levels of investment being proposed. Whilst accepting that a
1% return may be appropriate for proposals relating to Development on
Council Owned Land, the Member felt that a 2% net yield return should
be a reasonable assumption for Commercial Property Acquisitions in
the South Hams;

(d) A Member considered that it would be incredibly difficult to base any
decisions on the ability to measure social factors and community gain;

(e) In respect of a total borrowing limit, the Committee emphasised the
importance of suitable governance arrangements being first put in place
to underpin such decisions. Moreover, Members were supportive of the
suggestion of the Leader whereby, in the event of a total borrowing limit
being set at £60 million, this should be capped at £30 million before the
upcoming May 2019 local elections. It was therefore PROPOSED and
SECONDED and on being put to the vote declared CARRIED that:-

‘Subject to suitable governance arrangements being in place, a total
borrowing limit of £60 million (capped at £30 million before 30 April
2019) be agreed for the Commercial Property Strategy.’

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Audit Committee wish to express the following views to the
Executive:-

1. that the Committee endorse the principle of a Commercial
Property Strategy that includes the following multiple objectives:

- to support regeneration and the economic activity of the
District;
- to enhance economic benefit;

Page 205



A.18/18

Audit 6.9.18

- to grow business rate income;

- to assist with the financial sustainability of the Council as an
ancillary benefit;

- to help the Council continue to deliver and/or improve frontline
services in line with the Council’s adopted strategy and
objectives; and

2. that the proposed Commercial Property Strategy be revised
to contain two separate strands to the governance
arrangements (one part for ‘Development on Council Owned
Land’ and one part for ‘Commercial Property Acquisitions in
the South Hams’) with decisions relating to the
‘Development on Council Owned Land’ becoming a function
of the Executive (through appropriate delegations from the
Council and assuming that the proposed expenditure
complies with the Council approved total borrowing limits)
and further consideration being given to the proposed
delegated decision-making process for ‘Commercial
Property Acquisitions in the South Hams’ in time for
consideration at the next Executive meeting on 13
September 2018; and

3. that, subject to suitable governance arrangements being in
place, a total borrowing limit of £60 million (capped at £30
million before 30 April 2019) be agreed for the Commercial
Property Strategy.

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2017/18

In accordance with regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003, the Committee considered a report that presented an annual
treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and
treasury indicators for 2017/18.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) the Treasury Management performance. The Committee congratulated
officers on the investment results and obtaining £140,126 income
during 2017/18. In particular, the excellent rates of return from the
Council’'s CCLA investment was noted and it was felt that, as part of the
2019/20 annual budget setting process, consideration should be given
to increasing the amount invested in this Fund;

(b) Member Training. The Committee requested that Treasury
Management Training for Members be arranged both before and after
the May 2019 local elections. In addition, officers committed to
arranging a specific training session on the new CIPFA (Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) guidelines before the end
of 2018.

Page 206



A.19/18

A.20/18

Audit 6.9.18

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the actual 2017/18 prudential and treasury indictors (as
outlined in the presented agenda report) be approved; and

2. That the Annual Treasury Management Report for 2017/18
be noted.

PAY AND DISPLAY MACHINES - LOST INCOME

The Community Of Practice Lead — Environment Services was invited to
provide an update and outlined some of the steps that had been
undertaken by the Metric Group to improve contract performance.

In discussion, the following points were raised:-

(a) Officers informed that the latest compensatory offer from the Metric
Group to reflect the lost income incurred by the Council was
unsatisfactory and negotiations were ongoing;

(b) To build resilience, it was felt that all Council Car Parks should be
installed with a second pay and display machine thereby minimising the
impact of one machine not working. The Committee felt that this
requirement could be part of the ongoing negotiations with the Metric
Group;

(c) When questioned, officers informed that lost income was calculated by
profiling against the income generated in the previous year and adding
any charging increases that had been implemented.

AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME

In considering its draft Work Programme, the Committee paid particular
attention to the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel at its meeting
on 28 June 2018 (Minute O&S.6/18 refers) for the Committee to undertake
an assurance review of the relationship between Civica and the Council.

Having considered the request, Members felt that all avenues had now
been explored and there would therefore be little benefit in undertaking a
review.

The Committee was therefore unsupportive of this request and asked for
this item to be removed from its Work Programme.

(Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and finished at 3.55 pm)

Chairman

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 13h

Executive 13.09.18

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE EXECUTIVE
HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE ON THURSDAY 13 SEPTEMBER 2018

Members in attendance:
* Denotes attendance

o Denotes apologies for absence
*

* | Clir H D Bastone Clir R J Tucker (Chairman)

* | Clir R D Gilbert * | Clir S A E Wright (Vice Chairman)
* | Clir N A Hopwood * | Clir KR H Wingate
Also in attendance and participating
Item 6 E.30/18 Clirs Baldry, Green, Pearce, and Pennington
ltem 7 E.31/18 Clir Green
ltem 9 E.33/18 Clir Green
Item 10 E.34/18 Clirs Baldry, Bramble, Cuthbert, Green, Hodgson,
Pennington and Rowe
ltem 11 E.35/18 Clirs Cuthbert and Rowe
Iltem 12 E.36/18 Clirs Baldry, Brown, Cuthbert, Green, Hicks and Rowe
Item 14 E.38/18 Clirs Green and Pearce
Also in attendance and not participating
CliIrs Blackler, Brazil, Holway, Huntley, Pringle, Steer and Vint

Officers in attendance and participating

All items Head of Paid Service, Group Manager Customer First
and Support Services, s151 Officer and Specialist —
Democratic Services

ltem 9 E.33/18 Specialist Assets and Place Making
ltem 10 E.34/18 Senior Specialist Environmental Health
ltem 11 E.35/18 Specialist Benefits

ltem 14 E.38/18 COP Lead IT

E.26/18 MINUTES

The minutes of the Executive meeting held on 19 July 2018 were confirmed
as a true and correct record and signed off by the Chairman.

E.27/18 URGENT BUSINESS

The Chairman advised that there were two items of Urgent Business as
follows:

Firstly, Clir Bastone advised Members that the Council had become a
member of the Institute of Customer Service, the purpose was to be able to
benchmark against other organisations and learn from the best from both
the private and public sectors.

Page 209



E.28/18

E.29/18

Executive 13.09.18

A Customer Satisfaction Survey had been carried out with customers and
with staff, and the results of the survey were being analysed. Clir Bastone
sought approval of Executive to request that Overview and Scrutiny Panel
review the results and action plan at their meeting on 4 October, 2018, and
report back their recommendations to the next Executive on 11 October,
2018. The Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Panel had accepted the
request, and the Executive agreed with the proposed way forward. The
matter was urgent as Overview and Scrutiny were required to consider this
matter at their next meeting on 4 October, 2018.

Secondly, the Leader advised that he had received a petition from the
South Devon Liberal Democrat Group. The matter was urgent as there was
a requirement under the petition rules to respond within ten days. In
responding to the petition, the Leader made the following statement:

‘Councils have the right, as set out in legislation, to exclude members of the
public from a meeting during an item of business where it is likely that
confidential information would be disclosed to them, and councillors have an
obligation under the Code of Conduct, not to disclose that information.

The Council does keep residents informed when it can and will continue to
do so in the future by various methods such as direct contact with town and
parish councils, face to face meetings with residents and groups, email,
website and social media. In respect of the particular issue that is the
subject of the petition, the decision for this matter to remain confidential has
been taken in line with the recommendations of the Council’s Monitoring
Officer in order for the Council to protect its commercial interests.’

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items
of business to be considered during the course of this meeting and the
following were made:

Clir N Hopwood and Clir R Gilbert both declared a disclosable pecuniary
interest in item 10: Civil Penalties for breaches of Housing Standards
Enforcement Notices by virtue of being landlords and they left the meeting
for the duration of this item;

Clir H Bastone declared a personal interest in item 10: Civil Penalties for
breaches of Housing Standards Enforcement Notices by virtue of being
an agent and he remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and
vote on this item.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

It was noted that no public questions had been received in accordance
with the Executive Procedure Rules, for consideration at this meeting.

Page 210



E.30/18

E.31/18

E.32/18

Executive 13.09.18

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019/20 TO 2023/24
Members were presented with a report that set out the Council’s
Medium Term Financial Position over a rolling five year timeframe to
2023/24. The Council, along with other local authorities, had faced
unprecedented reductions in Government funding since the
Comprehensive Spending Review in 2010.

The Leader introduced the report. The s151 Officer responded to
questions related to the Business Rates Pilot and the Negative
Revenue Support Grant, and confirmed that a budget workshop would
be taking place on 11 October, 2018.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Executive:

1.

2.

note the forecast budget gap for 2019/20 of £0.638 million and
the position for future years;
notes the current options identified and timescales for closing
the budget gap in 2019/20 and future years, to achieve long term
financial sustainability; and
RECOMMENDS to Council to approve recommendations 1 to

10 as set out in the presented report.

QUARTER 1 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2018/2019
Members were presented with a report that enabled monitoring of
income and expenditure variations against the approved budget for
2018/19, and provided a forecast for the year end position.

The Deputy Leader presented the report. In response to questions
regarding the loss of car parking income through machine breakdown,
the Lead Member for Commercial Services advised that discussions
were taking place with the contractor.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the Executive note the forecast income and expenditure
variations for the 2018/19 financial year and the overall
projected overspend of £74,000 (0.8% of the total budget £8.983
million).

WRITE OFF REPORT

The Deputy Leader introduced a report that informed Members of the

debt written off for revenue streams within the Revenue and Benefits

service. Debts up to the value of £5,000 were written off by the s151

Officer under delegated Isuthorité. %ermission was sought to write off
age 21



E.33/18

E.34/18

Executive 13.09.18
individual debts with a value of more than £5,000.

During discussion, he confirmed that a Debt Recovery report would be
presented to the next meeting of the Audit Committee on 11 October,
2018.

It was then:

RESOLVED

1. That in accordance with Financial Regulations, that the s151
Officer had authorised the write-off of individual South Hams
District Council debts totalling £38,326.04 as detailed in
Tables 1 and 2 be noted; and

2. That the write off of individual debts in excess of £5,000
totalling £52,344.65, as detailed in Table 3 of the presented
report, be approved.

TAMAR VALLEY AONB MANAGEMENT PLAN 2019-2024
CONSULTATION DRAFT

Members were presented with a report that outlined the process of the
review of the Management Plan for the Tamar Valley AONB, the issues
identified for consideration within the Plan review, and detailed the
method by which members could contribute to the formal consultation
response by the Council, with a view to bringing the final Plan to
Executive for adoption in early 2019.

The Lead Member for Customer First introduced the report. The
Specialist Assets and Place Making advised that the areas around
planning still needed exploration.

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the content of the Consultation Draft of the
Management plan be noted, and members send any
comments to the author of the report for incorporation
into a formal Council consultation response before the
end of October 2018;

2. That authority be delegated to the COP Lead Place
making the final content of the formal Council
consultation response; and

3. That the final version of the Management plan for
2019-2024 be brought to Executive prior to adoption in
early 2019.

CIVIL PENALTIES FOR BREACHES OF HOUSING STANDARDS

ENFORCEMENT NOTICES

Members were presented with a report that outlined how Civil Penalties

had been introduced overnment legislation as an alternative to
SNEVA.



E.35/18

E.36/18

Executive 13.09.18

traditional criminal law enforcement against landlords, mostly relating to
Housing offences. Local Authorities had the power to set civil penalty
amounts locally up to a statutory maximum. Civil Penalties allowed for
a higher financial penalty than the currently low court fines, they would
provide an effective deterrent and protect residents against rogue
landlords, unscrupulous letting agents and other poor business
practices. Civil penalties would also deliver more cost efficient and
faster enforcement in the area of housing disrepair.

The Lead Member for Customer First presented the report. The Senior
Specialist Environmental Health responded to questions. Members
praised the report for clarity.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That Council be RECOMMENDED to update the existing
Enforcement Policy with the Civil Penalty Policy.

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2019/20

Members were presented with a report that set out the annual
requirement for Councils to revisit their existing council tax support
scheme and decide whether to replace or revisit their scheme, the
requirements for changing the scheme and the associated time
constraints.

The Lead Member for Customer First presented the report. The Benefit
Specialist responded to questions of clarity.

It was then:
RESOLVED

1. That the proposal to consult on Option 1 (as set out in section 4 of
the presented report) on a banded scheme which would assess the
maximum level of Council Tax Reduction based on the net income
of the claimant and partner, be approved; and

2. That the results of the consultation exercise be presented back to
the Executive prior to a revised scheme being considered for
approval by the Council.

REPORTS OF OTHER BODIES

a) Overview and Scrutiny Panel — 6 September 2018

i) 0&S.33/18: Medium Term Financial Strategy —
Presentation

Page 213



Executive 13.09.18

It was noted that the Panel recommendations on the Strategy
had already been taken into account during consideration of
agenda item (Minute E.30/18 above refers).

i) 0&S.34/18: Activities to Support Economic Growth

Whilst there was not a specific recommendation to Executive under
this item, the Executive noted the views of the Panel that were
contained within the published minutes and the Leader made the
following statement:

‘In light of the views expressed by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel
and Audit Committee on the draft Strategy last Thursday, | have
consulted with my fellow Executive Members and we have
concluded that an amended Strategy should be presented to the
Council on 27 September 2018 that proposes the following
revisions:-

1. That the Strategy contain two separate strands to the
governance arrangements: one part for ‘Development on Council
Owned Land’ and one part for ‘Commercial Property Acquisitions
in the South Hams’;

2. That, for decisions relating to the ‘Development on Council
Owned Land’, these become a delegated function of the
Executive (assuming that the proposed expenditure complies
with the Council approved total borrowing limits);

3. That, for decisions relating to the ‘Commercial Property
Acquisitions in the South Hams’, delegated authority be given to
the Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer, in consultation
with the Members of the Executive. Executive Members will be
given two clear working days to respond to a request and, in the
event of three or more Executive Members expressing their
opposition to the proposal, then the matter will proceed no
further;

4. That, for decisions made to proceed on ‘Commercial Property
Acquisitions in the South Hams’, a report will be presented (for
noting purposes) to the next meeting of the Executive;

5. That, whilst a minimum net yield return of 2% is targeted, in
some circumstances, e.g. where community benefits are likely to
be achieved, a lower return may be acceptable;

6. That, based upon the specific governance concerns raised at the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel meeting, the Investments Member
Working Group be disbanded with immediate effect.

In line with the views of the Audit Committee and, with these
governance arrangements being put in place, | will also be proposing
that the Council report includes a recommendation for the total
borrowing limit for the Strategy to be set at £60 million (to be capped
at £30 million before 30 April 2019).’

Page 214



Executive 13.09.18

It was then:
RESOLVED

That a report be presented to the meeting of Council on 27
September 2018 setting out a revised Commercial Property
Acquisitions and Development Strategy.

iii) 0&S.35/18: Next Steps — Enabling Homes to meet the
needs for all

It was then:
RESOLVED
That the Executive agree the following principles:

1. That there is no requirement to form a South Hams
District Council Housing Wholly Owned Company at this
time;

2. That Council borrowing in order to acquire or develop
affordable homes is acceptable in principle;

3. That affordable homes may be acquired or developed
via the Community Housing Strategy OR through
existing work with Registered Providers or Developers.
(NB. these properties will be allocated in accordance
with Local Lettings Plans and may be managed via the
Council’s Direct Lets Service; and

4. That the Council’s affordable housing development /

acquisition plans be guided as outlined in Section 5 of
the presented agenda report.

iv) 0&S.38/18: TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATES
(a) Drug and Alcohol Abuse - Interim Report
It was then:
RESOLVED
That the Executive spend £2,500 from the Repairs and
Maintenance Earmarked Reserve to pay for the works

necessary to design out the use of intravenous drugs in
the male toilets at Coronation Road, Totnes.

Page 215



Executive 13.09.18
(b) Community Funding

During debate on this item, some Members expressed
concern over the reduction in funding to the South
Devon Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). It
was PROPOSED, SECONDED and on being put to the
vote declared LOST, that recommendation 2 be deferred
to enable further discussions to take place with the
AONB team.

It was then:
RESOLVED
That the Executive RECOMMEND to Council that:

1. the proposed funding reduction to the South Hams
Community and Voluntary Service be endorsed in
accordance with paragraph 5 of the presented
agenda report; and

2. the proposed funding reduction to the South Devon
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty be endorsed in
accordance with paragraph 5 of the presented
agenda report.

0&S.42/18: IT PROCUREMENT

The Chairman confirmed that the Panel recommendation
would be consideration during agenda item 14 (Minute
E.38/18 below refers).

b) Audit Committee — 6 September 2018
A.17/18: ACTIVITIES TO SUPPORT ECONOMIC GROWTH

Whilst there were no specific recommendations from the Audit
Committee to the Executive, the comments of the Audit
Committee on the Commercial Property Strategy as set out in
the agenda item ‘Activities to Support Economic Growth’, were
noted by the Executive, and taken into account in the way
forward proposed above and set out in the response to Minute
0&S.34/18.

Page 216



Executive 13.09.18

E.37/18 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
RESOLVED

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public and press be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following
item of business as the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A
to the Act is involved.

E.38/18 IT SYSTEMS PROCUREMENT
Members were presented with an exempt report that sought direction
on a preferred option in respect of the IT systems procurement.

The Lead Member for Customer First and Support Services presented
the report.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the Council be RECOMMENDED to endorse the ICT
systems procurement and recommendations that are set out
in the presented report.

(NOTE: THESE DECISIONS, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF E.30/18(3), E.34/18,
E.36/18 a) iv) (b) and E.38/18 WHICH WERE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE
COUNCIL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 27 SEPTEMBER 2018, WILL BECOME
EFFECTIVE FROM 5.00PM ON MONDAY 24 SEPTEMBER 2018 UNLESS CALLED
IN, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULE 18).

(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.30 am)

Chairman

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes - 26 July 2018

	7 Commercial Property Strategy
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	8 Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24
	Appendix A - Budget pressures and savings
	Appendix B - Modelling of the MTFS Position
	Appendix C - Components of a MTFS
	Appendix D - Schedule of Reserves (Earmarked and Unearmarked)
	Appendix E - Contributions to Reserves
	Appendix F - Sensitivity Analysis
	Appendix G Exempt - Borrowing Advice from Treasury Management Advisers

	9 Public Toilet Pay on Entry Contract Award
	Appendix A Exempt - Contract Award report

	10 South Devon AONB Management Plan Review 2019-24 Consultation Draft
	Appendix A

	13a Salcombe Harbour Board - 16 July 2018
	13b Audit Committee - 26 July 2018
	13c Development Management Committee - 1 August 2018
	13d Overview & Scrutiny Panel* - 2 August 2018
	13e Licensing Committee - 23 August 2018
	13f Overview and Scrutiny Panel - 6 September 2018
	13g Audit Committee - 6 September 2018
	13h Executive* - 13 September 2018

